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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE
“STOCK EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the
decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for
any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group’) collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars
given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM
Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is
accurate and complete in all material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the
omission of which would make any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THEZERS

BUSINESS REVIEW

The Group recorded a loss of approximately HK$15.8 million for
the year ended 31 December 2023, compared with the loss of
approximately HK$30.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2022, it reduced by approximately HK$14.9 million. As disclosed
in the Company’s announcement dated 11 March 2024, the loss
for the year ended 31 December 2023 was mainly attributable to (i)
the decrease in revenue and (ii) the increase in the finance costs in
various business segments. The reduction in loss this year (when
compared with the corresponding period in 2022) is mainly due to
the Company recorded gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss.

The Group for the year ended 31 December 2023 recorded total
revenue of approximately HK$150.0 million, which was a decrease
of approximately HK$30.8 million compared with the last year. It was
due to a record of revenue of trading of motor vehicles, provision of
agency services and accessories sourcing segment approximately
HK$149.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2023, compared
with approximately HK$180.4 million for the previous year,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$30.7 million.

The performance of the trading of motor vehicles segment has been
seriously affected since the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic, the
on-going Sino-US trade war and the change of the PRC government
policy. It was noted that the trading of motor vehicles industry
experienced a rapid change for the past few years in particular
most countries are now adopting new energy as a strategic
development direction and encouraging the green transformation of
the automotive industry. It was estimated that the demand for petrol
vehicles is expected to shrink further, and competition in models and
pricing will intensify resulting in more intense market competition
than expected in 2023. For the year ended 31 December 2023, the
Group recorded the revenue of trading of motor vehicles where the
Group acts as principal approximately HK$148.3 million and agency
and service fees income from accessories sourcing approximately
HK$1.4 million. Approximately HK$180.4 million and approximately
HK$8,000 were recorded respectively for the revenue of trading of
motor vehicles where the Group acts as principal and agency and
service fees income from accessories sourcing for the year ended 31
December 2022.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Given that the performances of the businesses of Sinofortune
Securities Limited, Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited and
Sinofortune Asset Management Limited have not been satisfactory
and have been continuously operating at a loss. The Company and
a potential purchaser entered into a memorandum of understanding
in respect of the disposal of 100% equity interest in Sinofortune
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited in April 2023 but terminated the
memorandum of understanding in September 2023 as no agreement
could be reached on the terms and conditions of the possible
disposal before the expiry of the extended exclusivity period of the
memorandum of understanding. For more details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 24 April 2023, 24 May 2023,
23 June 20283, 24 July 2023, 24 August 2023 and 22 September
2023.

In 2019, the Group invested in the new medicine development
market in the PRC, the limited partnership of the Group co-operates
with its business partner in the joint development of four new
medicines in the treatment of lymphoma, cell tumors, colorectal
cancer and multidrug-resistant tuberculosis. In November 2023,
the Group entered into a disposal agreement to sell 50% of the
investment in the limited partnership at the consideration of RMB15
million to the general partner of the limited partnership due to the
outbreak of COVID-19 and the anti-epidemic measures implemented
by the PRC government including lockdown had delayed the
progress of and pushed up the research and development expenses
for the new medicine development projects undertaken by Bl #8 5 /&
EIRBR BRI AR AT (transliterated as Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin
Medicine Technology Company Limited) (“Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin”)
as resources in the medical industries were being drawn to prioritise
in the fighting of the COVID-19 pandemic and the development of
COVID-19 vaccines which resulted in the general partner raising
additional capitals for those projects and diluted the effective interest
of RINEBEMBFEERBRAE (transliterated as Shenzhen
Huayi Biotechnology Group Company Limited) in Chengdu Jia Bao
Yao Yin from 45% to 22.375%, moreover, the delay has prolonged
the original expected investment period by the Group in the limited
partnership of five years. Despite the anti-epidemic measures in
the PRC were being removed and communities and businesses
are resurging to normal in the beginning of 2023, it was noted that
capital expenditures and investments in medicine research in the
PRC have been on the decline. For more details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 17 November 2023, 24
November 2023 and 1 December 2023. As at 31 December 2023,
one of the new medicines has entered into the phase Il of clinical trial
and the others are still in the researching stage.

For trading of listed securities, the Group recorded an unrealised

gain of approximately HK$60,000 for the year ended 31 December
2023.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THEZERS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Results of the Group

The Group recorded total revenue of approximately HK$150.0 million
for the year ended 31 December 2023 as compared to total revenue
of approximately HK$180.8 million for the previous year, representing
a decrease of approximately HK$30.8 million or approximately
17.0%. The decrease of revenue was primarily due to the decrease
in trading of motor vehicles business in the PRC.

The Group recorded a loss for the year amounted to approximately
HK$15.8 million, compared with a loss of approximately HK$30.7
million for the corresponding year, representing a decrease of loss
of approximately 48.5%. The loss of the year encompassed an
unrealised fair value gains on listed equity securities of approximately
HK$60,000, compared with unrealised fair value losses on listed
equity securities of approximately HK$0.7 million for the previous
year.

The loss included the fair value losses arising from the Group’s
interest in the limited partnership engaged in the business of
investing in new medicine development projects at the fair value
through its profit or loss of approximately HK$3.7 million for the
year under review, compared with fair value losses of approximately
HK$6.2 million of that project for the previous year.

The loss also included the gain on disposal of financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss of approximately HK$16.4 million for the
year under review, no gain or loss on disposal of financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss recognised for the previous year.

The loss also took the impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables of approximately HK$0.4 million for the year under
review, compared with the impairment loss recognised on trade
receivables of approximately HK$1.3 million for the previous year.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

Liquidity and financial resources

The Group’s current assets as at 31 December 2023 amounted
to approximately HK$220.3 million compared with approximately
HK$201.3 million as at 31 December 2022 and the liquidity of
the Group, as demonstrated by the current ratio (current assets
over current liabilities) was 1.8 times, compared with 2.2 times
for previous year. Among them, the financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss were approximately HK$0.8 million (2022:
approximately HK$0.8 million) which invested in the equity securities
listed in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s cash
and bank balances were approximately HK$24.8 million (2022:
approximately HK$38.9 million) of which approximately HK$5.3
million (2022: approximately HK$5.9 million) were held on behalf of
clients in trust and segregated accounts.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s total other borrowings
amounted to HK$30 million (2022: HK$25 million) was repayable
within one year. That borrowings were secured by charges over the
Group’s leasehold land and buildings as well as corporate guarantee
issued by the Company. The gearing ratio of the Group as at 31
December 2023 (calculated by the total liabilities of approximately
HK$126.1 million over equity attributable to the owners of the
Company of approximately HK$118.1 million) is 106.8% (2022:
69.5%).

The equity attributable to the owners of the Company amounted
to approximately HK$118.1 million as at 31 December 2023,
representing a decrease of approximately HK$19.2 million, or 14.0%
from that of 31 December 2022. The decrease was mainly due to
loss for the year attributable to the owners of the Company.

The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure arising from
its normal course of business activities and investments in foreign
operations by funding its local operations and investments through
cash flow generated from business transaction locally. As at the end
of the year, the Group did not have any material un-hedged foreign
exchange exposure of interest rate mismatch. Foreign currency
exposure did not pose a significant risk for the Group. However, we
will continue to stay vigilant and closely monitor our exposure to
movements of relevant currency.

Capital structure

As at 31 December 2023, the Company’s issued share capital was
7,748,958,120 shares of HK$0.01 each.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

THRIES

MHEERMBER

KEBR _E-=F+"H= + = i
& E4220,300,0008 5w MR 2 -
E+-"HA=+—HA/4201,300,000% 7T
URAEBZ R LR ERBE R (B
TEEERLURBIAE) £1.8F> MEAEL
BB HPRANTEFAERZETHE
E#9800,000/8 7T (ZZE T4 : £9800,000
BIL) CRETMBENLKREREB TN
EARBHF R_E_=F+-"B=+—H>
K%@E’Jﬁ%&f@ﬁﬁﬁ%?’]%l 800,0007 75
(ZZEZ — 4 : #9388,900,0007E 7T0) @ EH4Y
5,300,000 75 (Z & Z 4 . 95,900,000

7o) IREBERUEEARRBIERIFE

RIE_=ZF+"HB=+—H &xE@Z
H & 48 %8 430,000,000 T (ZE - =
& 1 25,000,000 7T) » BR—FEREE It
fERUSEMZAE LM RIEFTRIFURAE
NEBITHNABDERFER AEBNR T
=+ ZB=+—HZEXREBELX (5
B EABEEL126,100,0008 7Tk L7
NEHEE NE(E#AI118,100,00058 7T) %
106.8% (CE - "4 : 69.5%) ©

RIEZ=F+"B=+—H> &x28%AB
AFE(E#E2549118,100,0008 T B - - —
F+ "B =+—HRE/1419,200,0008 7t ok
14.0% c ZRBEERNARBER ABMN
FENEERTS

AERUAMEBRGEEZREREBRN
AMEBRREMMT THEILEREE R
EGRMREBINEGRETELEZINER
o R ER REFLEBEMAKEREZE
R AR ¥ S BE JELBR o It 5 51 BB L B I R ¥ s
EEBRERER AT & B EER
SER BRUERARNEREH-

A 4518
RIEBE=F+"A=+—H ' AAFZE
BT AN A7,748,958,120 SRR E E0.01
BT 2 IRD



CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THE SRS

Trading of motor vehicles and provision of agency services

It recorded approximately HK$149.7 million of revenue for the year
under review compared with approximately HK$180.4 million for
the last year, representing a decrease of revenue of approximately
17.0%. It is principally engaged in motor vehicles business in the
PRC, in particular, trading of motor vehicles and motor vehicles
parts. As the trading of motor vehicles industry experienced a rapid
change for the past few years in particular most countries are now
adopting new energy as a strategic development direction and
encouraging the green transformation of the automotive industry. The
Group estimated that the demand for petrol vehicles is expected to
shrink further, and competition in models and pricing will intensify
resulting in more intense market competition than expected in 2023.
This segment incurred a loss of approximately HK$5.9 million for the
year which is arrived at after taking into impairment loss recognised
on trade receivable amounted to approximately HK$0.4 million,
compared with loss of approximately HK$1.7 million for the last year
(2022: impairment loss recognised on trade receivables amounted to
approximately HK$1.3 million).

Brokerage and securities margin financing service

Total revenue of this segment recorded approximately HK$0.4
million for the year ended 31 December 2023, compared with
approximately HK$0.4 million for the last year. This segment loss
reached approximately HK$3.7 million while loss of approximately
HK$0.8 million for the last year.

Trading of listed securities

The securities trading recorded no realised gain or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2023 and 2022. It recorded an unrealised fair
value gains of approximately HK$60,000 for the year under review,
compared with an unrealised fair value losses of approximately
HK$0.7 million of the previous year. This segment showed an
operating loss of approximately HK$0.5 million for the year 31
December 2023 and it recorded a loss of approximately HK$4.2
million last year.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

Leasehold land and buildings of the Group with a carrying amount of
approximately HK$19.5 million (2022: approximately HK$21.1 million)
were pledged for credit facilities granted to the Group.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2023, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2022: Nil).
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL OF
SUBSIDIARIES/FUTURE PLAN FOR MATERIAL
INVESTMENTS

Disposal of Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited,
Sinofortune Securities Limited, Sinofortune Financial Capital
Limited and Sinofortune Asset Management Limited

On 24 April 2023, The Company and a potential purchaser entered
into a memorandum of understanding in respect of the disposal of
100% equity interest in Sinofortune Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited
but terminated on 22 September 2023 as no agreement could be
reached on the terms and conditions of the possible disposal before
the expiry of the extended exclusivity period of the memorandum of
understanding. For more details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 24 April 2023, 24 May 2023, 23 June 2023,
24 July 2023, 24 August 2023 and 22 September 2023.

On 27 February 2024, another memorandum of understanding has
been entered between the Company and the proposed purchasers.
But the Company was informed by the solicitors of the proposed
purchasers that they have not received payment of the deposit
from the proposed purchasers by the deadline on 5 March 2024.
Pursuant to the memorandum of understanding, the time for
payment of the deposit is legally binding amongst the parties of the
memorandum of understanding. For more details, please refer to
the announcements of the Company dated 27 February 2024 and 6
March 2024.

Divestment in FEEBER E R X EIB A (Transliterated as
Chengdu Lan Bao Zhen Business Management Centre)
(“Limited Partnership”)

On 1 December 2023, a completion of disposal of 50% of the
Group’s equity interest in Limited Partnership has taken place.
Shenzhen Huayi Biotechnology Group Company Limited (“Shenzhen
Huayi Biotechnology”) has agreed to sell 25% equity interest in the
Limited Partnership to the general partner (B £ EE {2 i (> 2 S I8
Ly transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Kun Business Management
Center) at the consideration of RMB15 million. Upon Completion,
Shenzhen Huayi Biotechnology’s equity interest in the Limited
Partnership has reduced from 50% to 25%. For more details, please
refer to the announcements of the Company dated 17 November
2023, 24 November 2023 and 1 December 2023.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT
THEZERS

Save as disclosed, there was no other material acquisition/disposal
which would have been required to be disclosed under the GEM
Listing Rules for the year under review and the Group has no
concrete plans for other material investments.

EMPLOYEE INFORMATION

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had a workforce of 46
employees (2022: 50). The total staff costs, including Directors’
emoluments, amounted to approximately HK$13.7 million for the
year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: approximately HK$13.8
million). The Group’s remuneration policies are reviewed on an
annual basis and commensurate with the industry pay level. The
remuneration package includes basic salary, provident fund, medical
benefits and discretionary bonus.

OUTLOOK

As at 31 December 2023, almost 99.8% revenue of the Group came
from the segment of trading of motor vehicles, provision of agency
services and accessories sourcing in the PRC.

As disclosed in the circular of the Company dated 19 March 2018,
the motor vehicles business has a risk of reliance on a small number
of customers. As at 31 December 2023, EEK A hEEHEEZH
PR/~ &) (transliterated as Chongging Sheng Yu Hong Jia International
Trading Company Limited) (“Sheng Yu Hong Jia”) has improved its
number of customers and increased to 121 customers and with 45
customers in the progress of negotiation. Sheng Yu Hong Jia will
strive to increase more customers to reduce the level of reliance in
the future.

As disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated 7 March
2022, due to the change of government policy in the PRC on the
China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles, the PRC government
requires the parallel importers of motor vehicles to obtain certification
administered by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the
PRC (“EE Certificate”) for China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles
before offering the same for trade in the PRC. As at 31 December
2023, the Group obtained EE Certificate for six types of China 6
Standard imported motor vehicles, and the others are still in the
certification process. The Group has been closely monitoring the
certification process for their China 6 Standard imported motor
vehicles. To seize the market and improve the business performance
under the segment of trading of motor vehicles in the coming year,
the Company is planning to make some reforms in this business
segment, such as to introduce more new energy vehicles to promote
the trade of petrol vehicles and new energy vehicles and to expand
the duty-free car business in Hainan province.
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S STATEMENT

The PRC has been reforming the regulatory landscape in the
pharmaceutical industry leading it has a steady growth in the past
few years, especially for major new medicines development like the
promotion of more lifesaving and safe medicines to be listed and
included in medical insurance. Therefore, the Company will continue
to pay attention to the new medicine development market in the PRC
in order to diversify the business of the Group.

The Group will continue to develop other businesses and seek
opportunities to expand its revenue sources to enhance the Group’s
revenue.

| would like to take this opportunity to thank our shareholders, Board
of Directors, our staff and business partners for their continuous
support and commitment.

By order of the Board
Wang Jiawei

Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2024
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE

EESREREEBAERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Wang Jiawei (Former name: Wang Xufeng), aged 37, has
been an executive Director, a member of nomination committee
of the Company since May 2013. Mr. Wang was also appointed
as the chairman and chief executive officer of the Company and a
member of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from
22 September 2015. He is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Mr. Wang obtained a Bachelor of Science in Mathematics
at Imperial College London in the United Kingdom in 2009 and a
Master of Science in Finance at City University London in the United
Kingdom in 2010. In August 2011, Mr. Wang has been a manager of
Sinofortune Securities Limited, a subsidiary of the Group. Mr. Wang
is also the director of Victor Creation Global Limited from August
2014 and Elpis Capital from September 2014.

Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, aged 54, has been an executive Director of the
Company since 1 August 2015 and she was appointed as a member
of remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 22
September 2015. She is a director of various subsidiaries of the
Group. Ms. Lai received her Bachelor of Arts Degree in Financial
Services from Edinburgh Napier University in Scotland. Ms. Lai
joined the Company on 14 July 2008 as the executive secretary and
has been promoted to the Head of Personnel and Administration
Department of the Company since 13 February 2009.
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Liu Runtong, aged 50, was appointed as a non-executive
Director of the Company on 2 February 2010. Mr. Liu obtained
Bachelor Degree from Department of Chinese of Nankai University
in 1996. He also holds qualifications of economist, registered
securities investment consulting analyst and registered insurance
broker issued by various professional organizations in China. For
the past 25 years, Mr. Liu has held different positions in various
financial media institutions and financial services institutions
in Mainland China. During his tenure from 1998 to 2002 as a
responsible person for marketing the newspaper “Securities
Times”, he participated in establishing the “Panorama Network”
(www.p5w.net), a well-known securities website in China and acted
as its major responsible person. In 2000, he acted as consultant in
establishing and operating the program “Securities Times” produced
by “China Central Television”. From 2002 to 2007, he served as
Program Supervisor” in “Shenzhen Stock Exchange Shenzhen
Securities Information Co., Ltd”, where he participated in setting up
and managing “Trading Day”, the 24-hour PRC program regarding
securities. Because of his outstanding performance, he was elected
as one of the “Ten Best Staff” of the “Shenzhen Stock Exchange”
in 2004. From 2013 to July 2015, Mr. Liu served Convoy China
Financial Services Holding Ltd as a Vice President. He was the
executive director of Shenzhen Qianhai CONVOY Asset Management
Co., Ltd. from 2013 to July 2015. Mr. Liu has found Shenzhen
Qianhai Yinyan Asset Management Co., Ltd. since 2014 and serves
as the executive director.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Professor Zhang Benzheng, aged 84, has been an independent
non-executive Director of the Company since 30 September 2008
and he was appointed as a chairman of nomination committee and
a member of audit committee of the Company in 2008. He was also
appointed as a member and chairman of remuneration committee
of the Company in 2008 and 2011 respectively. Professor Zhang
graduated with a Bachelor Degree from the Faculty of Engineering
Physics of the Tsinghua University in 1965. He was a visiting
scholar in the Brookhaven National Laboratory of USA and the
Stuttgart University of Germany. He was the vice director of the
Tsinghua University R&D department and the general manager of
Tsinghua University Science and Technology Corporation. During
the period from 1999 to 2002, he held various senior positions in
two companies listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange, namely
Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited and Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan
Group Corporation. He was the chairman and legal representative
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Guhan Group Corporation and president
of Tsinghua Unisplendour Limited before he left these companies in
2002. He then joined Tsinghua Unisplendour (Group) Corporation
in 2002 and was its president until 2004. Professor Zhang was
the general vice president and secretary of the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science & Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
With his remarkable business leadership as well as exploratory
initiatives, Professor Zhang had made tremendous contribution to
the companies he worked for. He has not only gained compliments
from the society at large, but has also won a series of honors.
In 1997, Professor Zhang received the national prize of “The
Third Term Science and Technology Light Award for Outstanding
Scientific and Technological Entrepreneur”. In 2000, he won the
“Hong Kong Bauhinia Cup Outstanding Entrepreneur Award” and
the “Entrepreneurial Talent” award issued by the Beijing Non-
Governmental Science and Technology Entrepreneurs Association.
In 2002, he was selected as the first lot of “Zhongguan Village
Outstanding Entrepreneurs”. Professor Zhang is currently the Chief
Consultant of REERK (bR R EXEZERAR AT (transliterated
as Ronghui Future (Beijing) Technology Development Co., Ltd.).
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Mr. Li Jianxing, aged 66, has been an independent non-executive
Director, a member of audit committee, nomination committee and
remuneration committee of the Company since 28 March 2011. He
was also appointed as chairman of audit committee of the Company
with effect from 22 September 2015. Mr. Li graduated from Shanghai
Maritime University with a Bachelor Degree in accounting. He also
received a Master Degree in Business Administration from Canisius
College of Buffalo. Mr. Li has over 30-year experience working in
the field of accounting and corporate finance and has substantial
experience in management in various listed companies, investment
business, investor relations and project management. He was the
senior manager of both the investment department and finance
department of China Everbright Holdings Co., Ltd from April 1998
to June 2000. He served as the Chief Finance Officer for Intermost
Corporation from June 2000 to 2003. From April 2003 to May 2004,
he was a General Manager of Investor Relations in China Resources
Power Holdings Co., Ltd. He was a director of Concord Investment
Holdings Limited from 2004 to 2012. Mr. Li was an independent
non-executive director of Farnova Group Holdings Limited (Hong
Kong Stock Exchange Stock Code: 8153) from March 2021 to
September 2022.
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Professor Chen Shu Wen, aged 69, has been an independent
non-executive Director, a member of audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee of the Company since
23 September 2011. Professor Chen graduated from B ILE4
#KE (Dongbei University of Finance and Economics) with a
Bachelor Degree in Economics and obtained a Master Degree and
a PhD in Economics from FH#AZ (Jilin University). He was a
practising solicitor at FEERXGEENEFT (Liaoning Tianhe Law
Firm). Professor Chen has substantial management and leadership
experience serving in the PRC government. He commenced his
career as the deputy county chief of the Benxi Manchu Autonomous
County, Liaoning Province, PRC, in 1992 and became the vice
director general (BIE1E) of KEMAERFINEZEE (Benxi City
Commission for Restructuring the Economic Systems) from 1995. He
was the director (F1F) of RETHINKEEZSEEZE L (Benxi
Foreign Trade & Economic Cooperation Committee) from 1998 until
2001. From 2001 to 2009, Professor Chen was the professor and
the tutor for doctorate students at KEIE T K2 EIEZLT (Faculty
of Management and Economics of Dalian University of Technology).
From 2010 to 2014, he was the dean at KEIET AL NHEIE
BEBAEA[R (School of Public Administration and Law of Dalian
University of Technology). From 2010 to 2020, Professor Chen was
the professor and the tutor for doctorate students at AEIE T K
NHEEEERKEERT (School of Public Administration and Law of
Dalian University of Technology). He was an independent director
of KEAEIEREMER AT (Dalian Dafu Enterprises Holdings
Co., Ltd.) (delisted on Shanghai Stock Exchange in December 2019
with stock code: 600747) from 2015 to 2020 and & EHKM A
FR/A3 (Yingkou Port Liability Co., Ltd.) (Shanghai Stock Exchange
Stock Code: 600317) from Feb 2020 to Nov 2020. Professor Chen
is currently an independent non-executive director of Weigiao Textile
Company Limited (Hong Kong Stock Exchange Stock Code: 2698).

BREXETE ~tAm B E——FNA
TH=ZAHEEARRBBIUIERITESE FX
ZEEME - RLEZEgHEBRITNEES
BB RERBENRRILFRAZMENER
BEETEBEA WREMASEREKEZE
TRIETEMA-FEAESERSEMEBZM
HAERM e BMBENFPEBFIEEES
FEEBREELE FR—HAAL_EHET
HEELXEUTRAFEESSERZERER R
BREBRE HBN AN AERARETL
BRI NELZEGRIEE -H—AANER
TEE-FORARNETHIKBEEZ S
ZEEFF-HIZEZTFEZTETNF

BRYBEIAEETIALEEERHIEH
BTEEM A S 2FEFE 25>
HETREETABAHEEREA LS SRR
R-BAZE-SEE_Z_FTEF REKG
EREEIABAHLEEE FSBRHE
FE TS EM- A —RFEE_E_F
FAREABERRMDERRAR (BRZE
—NWE+ZBRLEEEERZFET &

85 1 600747) 2 BIUBEE A _S_Z4F
TRECE_ZEFE+—RBAEOBERNAE
[RAE] (EBEHR S 1 600317)
ZEMIFHNTERE MBI IRAMBHEAR
MBERRE (EEBHZFAKRMASE: 2698) 2
BIFERMITES

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EEMREREEBAERE

Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan, aged 61, has been an independent non-
executive Director and a member of remuneration committee of the
Company since 8 May 2023. Mr. Lee is veteran in the insurance
industry of Hong Kong. Mr. Lee obtained a Bachelor of Arts degree
in the University of Hong Kong in 1986 and Master of Business
Administration degree in Lingnan University in 2003. Mr. Lee had
been appointed, from 2005 to 2006, as the President of the General
Agents and Managers Association of Hong Kong Limited, from 2007
to 2011, as the member of Insurance Training Board of Vocational
Training Council, from 2011 to 2014, as the Founder and First
Convener for the Insurance and Financial Practitioners Alliance, from
2012 to 2016, as the member for the Insurance Advisory Committee
in the Financial Services and the Treasury Bureau of the Hong
Kong Government, and from 2014 to 2020, as the Vice President
of The Life Underwriters Association of Hong Kong Limited. Mr.
Lee is also the Committee Member of Insurance Management
Committee of The Hong Kong Management Association since 2007,
the President of the International Asset Planner Association since
2011, the Vice President of Asset Management Committee, CEPA
Business Opportunities Development Alliance since September
2014, and the Deputy Convener in the Insurance Industry Regulatory
& Development Concern Group since August 2019. Mr. Lee was
appointed as the President of The Life Underwriters Association of
Hong Kong Limited in 2021. He was appointed as the Chairman for
the Greater Bay Area committee in The Life Underwriters Association
of Hong Kong Limited in 2022. In 2023, he was appointed as the
Convener in the Insurance Industry Regulatory & Development
Concern Group under The Life Underwriters Association of Hong
Kong Limited and the General Agents and Managers Association
of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Lee is an independent non-executive
director, the chairman of the remuneration committee and member of
the audit committee of Bonjour Holdings Limited (Hong Kong Stock
Exchange Stock Code: 653) since August 2020.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
EEFETHRSE

The Directors are pleased to present their annual report together
with the audited consolidated financial statements of the Company
and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023.

CORPORATE INFORMATION
The Company was incorporated on 24 May 2001 as an exempted
company with limited liability in the Cayman lIslands under the
Company Law of Cayman Islands.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal
activities and other particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries are set
out in note 20 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
are set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 105 to 106.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend nor
transfer of any amount to reserves for the year ended 31 December
2023 (2022: Nil).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the
Group and the Company during the year are set out in note 16 to the
consolidated financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL
Details of the movements in share capital of the Company are set out
in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

Under the Companies Law of the Cayman lIslands, the share
premium of the Company is available for distribution as dividends
to its shareholders subject to the provisions of its Memorandum
and Articles of Association and a statutory solvency test. In
accordance with Article 134 of the Articles of Association of the
Company, dividends may be declared and paid out of the profits of
the Company or from any reserves set aside from profits which the
Directors determine to be no longer needed. With the sanction of
an ordinary resolution, dividends may also be declared or paid out
of share premium account. Accordingly, the Company’s reserves
available for distribution was HK$Nil as at 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were as follows:

Executive Directors
Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Lai Yuk Mui

Non-executive Director
Liu Runtong

Independent Non-executive Directors
Zhang Benzheng

Li Jianxing

Chen Shu Wen

Lee Kwun Kwan (appointed on 8 May 2023)

In accordance with Article 84(1) of the Company’s Articles of
Association, the Directors retiring by rotation at the forthcoming
annual general meeting are Mr. Wang Jiawei and Professor Zhang
Benzheng. Both Directors are being eligible for re-election and will
offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting. The remaining Directors shall continue to hold office.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company or
any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the employing
company within one year without payment of compensation other
than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES
AND DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December 2023, the interests or short positions of the
Directors and chief executive of the Company in the shares,
underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of its
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) which were notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and
8 of Part XV of the SFO (including interests or short positions which
they are taken or deemed to have taken under such provisions of
the SFO), or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the
SFO, to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were
required, pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules,
to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange, were as
follows:

(@) Long positions in shares of the Company
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(a) MEATRGZEFE

Approximate

Number of percentage of
Name of Directors Capacity shares held shareholding
ESER 515 FRf5he i 8B FHRIBAHT S
Wang Jiawei Beneficial owner 2,123,395,935 27.40%
ITEE BmEAA
Lai Yuk Mui Beneficial owner 2,780,127 0.04%
REiE BaEEAA
Liu Runtong Beneficial owner 2,646,000 0.03%
= pESp i Em#EAA

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2023, none
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company
had an interest or short position in any shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any associated
corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests and short positions in which they
were taken or deemed to have under such provisions of the
SFO) or which were required pursuant to section 352 of the
SFO to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
(@) Long positions in shares of the Company
As at 31 December 2023, the Directors and the chief executive
of the Company are not aware of any person (not being a
Director or a chief executive of the Company) who had an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
which were notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of
the SFO as recorded in the register required to be kept under
section 336 of the SFO.

(b) Long positions in underlying shares of the Company

As at 31 December 2023, the Company had not been notified
of any person (other than the Directors whose interests
are set out in the section “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s
Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and
Debentures” above) who had an interest or short position in the
shares or underlying shares of the Company and was required
to be recorded in the register required to be kept under Section
336 of the SFO and/or was directly or indirectly interested in
5% or more of the issued share capital carrying rights to vote in
all circumstances at general meetings of any other members of
the Group.

DIRECTOR’S RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its
subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debt
securities (including debentures) of, the Company or any other body
corporate and neither the Directors, nor the chief executive, nor any
of their respective spouses or children under the age of 18, had
any right to subscribe for the securities of the Company, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or existed during the year ended 31 December 2023.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
There was no transactions, arrangements or contract of significance,
save as disclosed in the consolidated financial statements, in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any of its
subsidiaries was a party and in which a Director of the Company had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end
of the year or at any time during the year.

LITIGATION

Arbitration Application Filed by JFIIEEH TR EBHNERAR
(Transliterated as Shenzhen Sinofortune Education Investment
Consultancy Co., Ltd) (“Sinofortune Education”) Concerning
the Repayment of Refundable Earnest Money

As reported in the 2018, 2020, 2021 and 2022 annual reports of the
Company, the parties of this arbitration case, Sinofortune Education
and the five defendants of the arbitration case (collectively, “Five
Defendants”), including Yang Shunhong, Liu Zulin, Yang Rui, Zhai
Qingguo and R#EFHERBIRAE (transliterated as Mingin
Quantum New Energy Co. Ltd.) (“Mingin Quantum”) entered
into an arbitration settlement agreement in September 2020
(“Arbitration Settlement Agreement”) and applied to Shenzhen
Court of International Arbitration (also known as South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission) (“SCIA”)
for adjudication according to Arbitration Settlement Agreement. On
30 December 2020, SCIA made an adjudicated judgement in favour
of Sinofortune Education in terms of the Arbitration Settlement
Agreement (“Judgement”).

The PRC legal advisor of the Company formed an opinion that
the Arbitration Settlement Agreement is legal and valid and the
Judgement is legally binding with all parties with effect from the date
of issuance.

As a result of Mingin Quantum’s failure to repay the refundable
earnest money of RMB20,000,000 to Sinofortune Education on or
before 31 December 2020 as adjudicated under the Judgement,
Sinofortune Education applied to Intermediate People’s Court of
Wuwei City, Gansu Province, China (“Wuwei Court”) in January 2021
for compulsory execution against the Five Defendants for not fulfilling
the obligations of the Judgement.
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As at 31 December 2021, the Wuwei Court had frozen the 100%
equity interest of Mingin Quantum as well as the equity shares of
Yang Shunhong, Yang Rui and Zhai Qingguo in other companies.
During the execution process, the properties, machine and
photovoltaic power generation equipment in the factory and bank
accounts which under the name of Mingin Quantum were waiting
to be seized in accordance with the law, therefore they cannot be
handled due to the seizure.

Sinofortune Education has applied to the Wuwei Court for an inquiry
and evaluation of auction procedures for the 100% equity interest
of Mingin Quantum. Yang Shunhong had requested for more time
to look for a purchaser for the equity interest of Mingin Quantum
in order to pay off the outstanding amounts owe to Sinofortune
Education, however, he was unable to find purchaser with firm and
clear intention.

In February 2022, the PRC legal advisor of the Company has
received an execution objection application from the Wuwei Court
stating that Mingin Quantum, Yang Shunhong and Yang Rui have
jointly proposed an enforcement objection and have requested to
withdraw or terminate the execution, but was then rejected by the
Wuwei Court.

Yang Shunhong had communicated with Sinofortune Education and
the PRC legal advisor many times to request for an extension of time
to look for a purchaser for the equity interest of Mingin Quantum
in order to pay off the outstanding amounts owe to Sinofortune
Education. The PRC legal advisor had suspended the application to
Higher People’s Court of Gansu, China several times for execution
supervision, however, he was unable to find purchaser with firm and
clear intention.

In December 2022, REITEHAALAREEBRAT (transliterated as
Mingin Jusheng Photovoltaic Industry Company Limited) which is
wholly owned by Yang Rui had actively transferred RMB1,000,000 to
Sinofortune Education for repayment of Mingin Quantum’s liability on
its behalf.

Sinofortune Education received payments of RMB400,000 and
RMB600,000 in May and June 2023 respectively from the Wuwui
Court recouped through execution.

In 2023, the PRC legal advisor has applied to the Wuwui Court for
continuously frozen the 100% equity interest of Mingin Quantum as
well as the equity shares of Yang Shunhong, Liu Zulin, Yang Rui and
Zhai Qingguo actually entitled for 3 years until August 2026.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

DirRecTors’ REPORT
EETHRS

R_E_—F+_B=+—H REZ
EHERIEFHI100% 58 1 LU K B B 4~
BN BEEBEREMATIRE HITHETRE
FoRETLTHNEME BREARIKEE
REEBREBERIBITRASMREEFNE
EHNEmEEINE.

ERYBEOREERPFHRYPE T
100%RENPEREFETHERTE B
IEHBERIERFBEUSRSEFNRES
BB LEBRERBESHNXRM M H
RELEERRENER -

RIEZZFZH > ARBFRBEEREBEBW
AREERNBTEZRFB EREYE
F BIBALRGRARBERHITEZ 2
KEHEARERT BERZEREERK
@o

BIEHE 2 RAZERABE RPEVERERE
B ERERFEBUSRHEFHIRESR
B UEERERABTHRR  REIER
BREEZREFRTEEREESRARER
REFMITEE A HRERIERBERE
MER-

A CE T T E+ RO BREEEENRED
BEANREEBRADEIHREREHETEA
AR 1,000,000 KEREEEFEEAES

& o

TEC=FRARNA EREEEBIT
BEE AR DR ER AR 400,000 A
R #5600,0007T Y& X ©

TR REERBB AR EE
FREERERPEFI00%REUKRE
B2 EM BRRBERBERERNR
B R =FE_F_F/\HAHL-

23



24

DIRECTORS' REPORT
EEFETHRSE

Yang Shunhong had communicated with Sinofortune Education and
the PRC legal advisor many times to request for an extension of time
to look for a purchaser for the equity interest of Mingin Quantum
in order to pay off the outstanding amounts owe to Sinofortune
Education. In addition, Yang Shunhong has told that the other
previous enforcements of Mingin Quantum were nearing completion
and subsequent income after deducting operating costs could be
used to repay to Sinofortune Education.

Apart from failing to repay the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 to Sinofortune Education on or before 31
December 2020 as mentioned above, Mingin Quantum has also
failed to pay penalty and other compensation fee, arbitration
fee and interest on behalf of the Five Defendants to Sinofortune
Education before 31 December 2023 in the approximate sum
of RMB49,500,000 (after deducting a total of RMB2,000,000
repayment mentioned above) as adjudicated under the Judgement.

The PRC legal advisor of the Company formed an opinion that
since the Five Defendants did not fulfil the obligations under the
Judgement, Sinofortune Education has the right to apply to the
People’s Court for compulsory execution for the sale of 100% equity
interest of Mingin Quantum and has priority to be compensated from
the sale proceed generated therefrom.

Sinofortune Education is still in the process of taking steps to
execute the Judgement against the Five Defendants.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
The percentages of purchase and sales for the attributable to the
Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases

— the largest supplier 75.55%
— five largest suppliers in aggregate 100%
Sales

- the largest customer 23.96%
— five largest customers in aggregate 64.81%

None of the Directors, their associates or any shareholder (which
to the knowledge of the Directors owns more than 5% of the
company’s share capital) had an interest in these major suppliers or
customers.
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DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN COMPETING BUSINESS
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Directors were
not aware of any business or interest of each Director, controlling
shareholder (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) and the respective
associates of each that competes or may compete with the business
of the Group and any other conflicts of interest which any such
person has or may have with the Group.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 5.48 TO 5.67 OF THE GEM
LISTING RULES

The Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. The Company’s Directors have complied with such
code of conduct and the required standard of dealings.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association or the laws of the Cayman lIslands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to
existing shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company is committed to maintaining a high standard of
corporate governance and a detailed corporate governance report is
set out on pages 27 to 40 of this annual report.

The compliance officer of the Company is Ms. Lai Yuk Mui whose
biographical details are set out on page 12 of this annual report.
Ms. Woo Man Yi is the company secretary of the Company. She is
an associate member of both The Chartered Governance Institution
in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong Chartered Governance
Institute.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

We are committed to building an environmentally-friendly corporation
and minimising our impact on the environment. Discussion on the
environmental policies and performance is set out in the section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages
41 to 94 in this annual report. The discussion therein forms part of
the Directors’ Report.
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PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the best of the Directors’ knowledge, as at the date of this
annual report, there was a sufficient prescribed public float of the
issued shares of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

At no time during the year and up to date of this report, there was
or is, any permitted indemnity provision being in force for the benefit
of the Directors of the Company (whether made by the Company or
otherwise) or any of its subsidiaries (if made by the Company).

AUDITORS

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been audited by CCTH CPA Limited.
CCTH CPA Limited will retire at the conclusion of the forthcoming
annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer itself for re-
appointment at the forthcoming annual general meeting. A resolution
for reappointment of CCTH CPA Limited as auditor of the Company
will be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
Hong Kong, 22 March 2024

ARFFRE

BREALRDERZARBENRMESIR
Mo RAFRNNELR ZRFEEHTRN
ZABMFFREFTEACGEM EHRAIEE KT

EEFREMRX
RERKRBERKRS B LEEAER BE
BREFERREFERAUTL T NEAE MM E
AN (HEARABEIIL) ZEEFAZmAZE
EFFRERXEN FTRESHEARTHH
tABETIL) °

%S B

RERHBE_TE =+ _F=+—HILEF
ENiGEe B REREHAPEXRESHMER
NEBIZ PIEREGHEMERADBRE
EREBFEASEREERE UHAERT
EEREEFAST L BESENET -NER
REBFAG L BREREENEZTFIEXRE
GBI ARAT AR QB IZEIMARES

REESY

ITEE
FE
S8/ "FE_WE=ZB”"+_H

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023



CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Board assumes overall responsibility for the leadership and
control of the Group, including providing and setting the Group’s
directions and strategies in the interests of the Group. It believes in
good corporate governance and corporate governance practices
that promote investor confidence, development of the Group, and
transparency while having the long-term interest of the Group and
enhancement of shareholders’ value as the ultimate objectives.
[t has adopted the code provision numbering as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix C1 of the GEM
Listing Rules (the “Corporate Governance Code”). The Company
has complied with the applicable code provisions of the Corporate
Governance Code, except for the following deviation:

CODE PROVISION C.2.1

Code provision C.2.1 stipulates that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed
by the same individual. The division of responsibilities between the
chairman and chief executive should be clearly established and set
out in writing.

Mr. Wang Jiawei is the chairman and chief executive officer of the
Company. In view of Mr. Wang has extensive experience in project
management and securities investments and is responsible for the
overall corporate strategies, planning and business development
of the Company. Under the supervision by the Board which is
comprised of four independent non-executive Directors and a
non-executive Director, which represent more than half of the Board,
the interests of the shareholders of the Company will be adequately
and fairly represented.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

In respect of the standard of dealings required of Directors, the
Company has adopted a code of conduct regarding Directors’
securities transactions on terms no less exacting than the required
standard of dealings as set out in rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquires of all Directors, they
confirmed that they have complied with the Company’s code of
conduct regarding Directors’ securities transactions during the year.
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THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Comprising of two executive and five non-executive Directors
(including four independent non-executive Directors), the present
board has an appropriate composition of Directors. The Company
has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors
an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 5.09
of the GEM Listing Rules and is in the opinion that all independent
non-executive Directors are independent. The present board is
composed of more than one-third of independent non-executive
Directors.

The present board of Directors consists of:

Wang Jiawei (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Lai Yuk Mui (Executive Director)

Liu Runtong (Non-executive Director)

Zhang Benzheng (Independent Non-executive Director)

Li Jianxing (Independent Non-executive Director)

Chen Shu Wen (Independent Non-executive Director)

Lee Kwun Kwan (appointed on 8 May 2023)
(Independent Non-executive Director)

The biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 12 to
17 of this annual report.

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Directors and Senior
Management Profile” to this annual report, the Directors have
no other financial, business, family or other material/relevant
relationships with one another.

The Board is mandated to determine and review strategic objectives,
appoint and supervise senior management, approve quarterly,
interim and annual reports, and review the principal risks of the
Group’s business to ensure that these risks are within manageable
limits. It is also mandated to approve any substantial investment,
acquisition or disposal by the Company. Major corporate matters
that are delegated to the management include the execution of
business strategies and initiatives approved by the Board and the
preparation of quarterly, interim and annual reports for the Board’s
approval.
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Responsibilities, accountabilities and contributions of the
board and management

The Board should assume responsibility for leadership and control
of the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising its affairs. All
Directors should take decisions objectively in the interests of the
Company.

The Board reserves for its decision on all major matters relating
to policy matters, strategies and budgets, internal control and risk
management, material transactions (in particular those that may
involve conflict of interests), financial information, appointment of
Directors and other significant operational matters of the Company.
Responsibilities relating to implementing decisions of the Board,
directing and coordinating the daily operation and management of
the Company are delegated to the management.

There were four board meetings during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the board meetings were as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEGERE
Members 54} EREITEERY
Wang Jiawei TEE 3/4
Lai Yuk Mui RE1g 4/4
Liu Runtong EApER 3/4
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 4/4
Li Jianxing ERAT 4/4
Chen Shu Wen 19 3/4
Lee Kwun Kwan (appointed on 8 May 2023) =@ (R _E_=ZF£H8/\HEZMD) 2/2
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There was one general meeting during the year. The attendance of
Directors at the general meeting was as follows:

FARBT - RARRERG - EFINREAE
ZHBERINT

Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HEGERE
Members 541 EREITEERY
Wang Jiawei TEE 1/1
Lai Yuk Mui HENE 11
Liu Runtong 2 E 1/1
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 1/1
Li Jianxing ZRAT 1/1
Chen Shu Wen e 1 T 1/1
Lee Kwun Kwan (appointed on 8 May 2023) Z=@Wa (R _E_=ZEH 8/ \HEZDE) 1/1

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING AND PROFESSIONAL
DEVELOPMENT

Pursuant to the Corporate Governance Code, all directors should
participate in continuous professional development to develop
and refresh their knowledge and skills. This is to ensure that their
contribution to the board remains informed and relevant.

During the year, all Directors have attended training courses
conducted by professional parties. The attended Directors have
provided the Company with their respective training records pursuant
to the Corporate Governance Code. All Directors were provided with
reading materials on relevant rules and regulatory updates.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a remuneration committee
(“Remuneration Committee”) with specific written terms of reference.
The present Remuneration Committee consists of a majority of
independent non-executive Directors.
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As at year end date, the present Remuneration Committee
consisted of six Directors, Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang
Jiawei, Ms. Lai Yuk Mui, Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor Chen Shu
Wen and Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan. Four out of the six Directors are
independent non-executive Directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng,
being an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of
the committee. The Remuneration Committee’s role and function
includes making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration of Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of formal and transparent
procedures for developing policy on such remuneration. It also has
the delegated responsibility to determine the specific remuneration
packages of all executive Directors and senior management.

The Company’s remuneration policies are determined on the basis
of the contributions of staff and Directors. Long-term incentive
schemes for staff and Directors include cash bonuses.

The amounts paid to each Director for the year ended 31 December
2023 are set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the annual remuneration of the members of the senior
management (other than the Directors) for the year ended 31
December 2023 by band is set out as follows:
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Nil to 1,000,000 2 %1,000,000 2

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

31



CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TtEEARS

The Remuneration Committee held two meetings during the year and #IMEZE SR ERNERITM NG H  HE 2
the attendance of its members was as follows: ZHERMT .

Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service
HEGERE
Members [p4=] EFRRITEERY
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 2/2
Wang Jiawei TEE 2/2
Lai Yuk Mui REIE 2/2
Li Jianxing FREAT 2/2
Chen Shu Wen [ 1 ~C 2/2
Lee Kwun Kwan (appointed on 8 May 2023) ZF@i W_Z_=S£H8/\REZT) 1/1

During the year, the Remuneration Committee’s work includes
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration of an
independent non-executive director according to his experience,
duties and responsibilities as well as the market conditions. Ensuring
that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his
own remuneration. Also, conducting a review over the Company’s
policy and structure for remuneration. There was no Director’s
service contract requiring approval during the year.

NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company has established a nomination committee (“Nomination
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at year
end date, Nomination Committee consisted of four Directors,
Professor Zhang Benzheng, Mr. Wang Jiawei, Mr. Li Jianxing and
Professor Chen Shu Wen. Three out of the four Directors are
independent non-executive Directors. Professor Zhang Benzheng,
being an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman
of the committee. Thus, the present Committee consists of a
majority of independent non-executive Directors. The Nomination
Committee’s role and function includes, but is not limited to,
reviewing the structure, size, composition and diversity (including
but not limited to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age,
cultural and educational background, or professional experience)
of the Board at least annually and make recommendations on any
proposed changes; draw up, review and update, as appropriate,
the diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due regard to
the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, review and update the
objectives that the Board has set for implementing such policy, and
monitor the progress made; identifying individuals suitably qualified
to become Board members and select or making recommendations
to the Board on the selection of individuals nominated for
directorships based on the board diversity policy; and assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors.
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The Nomination Committee held two meetings during the year and
the attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meeting attended/
Number of meeting
during term of service

HEGERE
Members 541 EREITEERY
Zhang Benzheng RAIE 2/2
Wang Jiawei TEE 2/2
Li Jianxing FRAT 2/2
Chen Shu Wen ek At 2/2

On the nomination process, the Nomination Committee reviews
the suggested candidates for directorship having regard to the
candidates’ reputation and the specific skills or expertise that
these candidates can contribute to the Company in the light of the
structure, size, composition and diversity (including but not limited
to skills, knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and
educational background, or professional experience) of the board
of Directors. Only candidates who have integrity and can provide
specific contributions to the Company thereby enhancing the value
of the Company are considered for nomination to the board of
Directors by the Nomination Committee.

During the year, the Nomination Committee’s work includes reviewing
one candidate for directorship, having regard to his reputation
and his specific skill, in view of their potential contribution to the
Company. Also, reviewing the structure, size, independence,
composition and diversity (including but not limited to skills,
knowledge and experience, gender, age, cultural and educational
background, or professional experience) of the Board and made
recommendations thereon. Drawing up, reviewing and updating, as
appropriate, the diversity policy for the Board’s approval having due
regard to the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, reviewing and
updating the objectives that the Board has set for implementing such
policy, and monitor the progress made.
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Board diversity

The Company has adopted a board diversity policy setting out
the approach to achieve diversity on the Board with the aims of
enhancing Board effectiveness and corporate governance as well as
achieving sustainable and balanced development.

Board diversity has been considered from a number of aspects,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, skills, knowledge and
length of service and any other factors that the Board may consider
relevant and applicable from time to time.

Selection of candidates will be based on the Company’s nomination
policy and will take into account the board diversity policy. The
ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that the
selected candidates will bring to the Board. Having due regard to the
benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs of the Board
without focusing on a single diversity aspect.

The Nomination Committee will monitor and review the
implementation of the board diversity policy, as appropriate,
to ensure the effectiveness of the board diversity policy. The
Nomination Committee will discuss any revisions to the board
diversity policy that may be required and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

A copy of the board diversity policy has been published on the
Company’s website for public information. Currently, the Board
comprises seven members and the Board composition and diversity
are as follows:

Capacity: Executive Directors, non-executive Director and
independent non-executive Directors

Gender: Male and female

Age: 37-84

Nationality: Chinese and American

Length of service: 9-15 years

Board expertise: Finance, law, accounting, investment,
engineering, economic, insurance, investment

consulting analysis
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (“Audit
Committee”) with specific written terms of reference. As at
31 December 2023, the Audit Committee consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, Mr. Li Jianxing, Professor
Zhang Benzheng and Professor Chen Shu Wen. Mr. Li Jianxing,
being an independent non-executive Director, is the chairman of
the Committee. The Audit Committee’s role and function includes
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
reappointment and removal of the external auditor, and to approve
the remuneration and terms of engagement of the external auditor;
review and monitor the external auditors’ independence and
objectivity and the effectiveness of the audit process in accordance
with applicable standards; develop and implement policy on the
engagement of an external auditor to supply non-audit services;
monitor the integrity of financial statements, annual reports and
accounts, half-yearly and quarterly reports of the Company, and
review significant financial reporting judgments contained in them;
review the Company’s financial controls, internal control and
risk management systems; and review the Group’s financial and
accounting policies, procedures and practices.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the consolidated financial
statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2023
pursuant to the relevant provisions contained in the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules and was of the opinion that such statements had complied
with applicable accounting standards and that adequate disclosures
had been made in respect thereof.

The Audit Committee held five meetings during the year and the
attendance of its members was as follows:
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Attendance number
of meetings attended/
Number of meetings
during term of service

HEGERE
Members 54} ERANEITEERH
Li Jianxing ZRAT 5/5
Zhang Benzheng SRAIE 5/5
Chen Shu Wen R 41 SC 5/5
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The Directors’ responsibilities for preparing the accounts and the
reporting responsibilities of the auditors are set out on pages 95 to
104.

The accounts for the year ended 31 December 2023 were
audited by CCTH CPA Limited whose term of office will expire at
the conclusion of the forthcoming annual general meeting of the
Company. The Audit Committee has recommended to the Board that
CCTH CPA Limited be reappointed as the auditors of the Company
at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1. The Board reviewed the Company’s corporate
governance policies and practices, training and continuous
professional development of Directors and senior management, the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements, the compliance of the GEM Listing Rules,
and the Company’s compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code and disclosure in this Corporate Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the remuneration paid to
the auditors, CCTH CPA Limited in respect of audit services and
non-audit services amounted to HK$630,000 and HK$100,000
respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and for reviewing its effectiveness. The
Board requires management to establish and maintain sound and
effective system of internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group’s assets. The Board should conduct a
review of risk management and internal control system of the Group
at least annually, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls as well as environmental, social and climate-
related risks.
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Risk management

The Group has adopted a three-tier risk management approach to
identify, assess and manage different types of risks. At the first line
of defense, business units are responsible for identifying, assessing
and monitoring risk associated with each business or transaction.
The management, as the second line of defense, defines rule sets
and models, provides technical support, develops new system
and oversees portfolio management. It ensures risks are within
acceptable range and that the first line of defense is effective. As
the final line of defense, the internal audit function (either in-house
or outsourced) assists the Audit Committee to review the first and
second lines of defenses. With the assistance of the independent
internal control consultants, a risk register with risk rating and
risk owners were compiled by taking into account for continuous
risk assessment purpose. Risk owners are required to take
mitigating actions to address the identified risks and such actions
are integrated in the day-to-day activities and their effectiveness
is closely monitored. During the year, the risk register has been
circulated for discussion and assessed the ratings by key personnel
and management, by considering the likelihood and impact of each
identified risk. A written risks assessment report with the identified
key risks, evaluation of related risks and relevant mitigating actions
have been reported to the Audit Committee and reviewed by the
Board. The written report facilitates the Board in considering the
changes in the nature and extent of significant risks (including ESG
risks), the Group’s ability in responding to changes in its business
and the external environment, as well as management’s ongoing
monitoring of risks (including ESG risks) and of the internal control
system.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

EXERRS

B ER
AEERMN=REAREE S ELHA 5T
REEBEHERR ETHE—BHE EXHEM
BEHM FERERASREBAXZE
FHER PR BN BEEBRER
ARG R AR B SR AT S5~ I E R I E
REEHGEE UEFRRREAZEZEE
ARE—BHBRITZER -FRERE—ED
iR NERE AL (RERSINH) B ERE
BEERNE—BRE _EHER THILAL
EREBENGE T TR ERR (G
EREEERRIRKAREEANERE
LE-EREE AL EARNENTHEYE
A ER BARITEHARMABBES S
MEAMMRRBIEZ - RNER ARE
CHEEDERITBEABREEE N W KRG
TR (REBRIEEH AR A S R
) - SECHNE2EE 8RR K
HRAENTHNEEARTGKREE LRE
ZEEEUWKEFEER -EERSTAENE
FEEBEKRRAR (BEESGRR) MHERRE
ERNEs AERRYHEBRINDIRIEE
EREN UKREEEREEER R (815
ESGRKR) KM EBEIE R4 o

37



38

CoRPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TtEELARS

Internal controls

The Group emphasises the importance of a sound internal control
system which is also indispensable for mitigating the Group’s key
risk exposures. The Group’s system of internal control is designed
to provide reasonable, but not absolute, assurance against material
misstatement or loss and to manage and eliminate risks of failure
in operational systems and fulfillment of the business objectives.
The internal control system is reviewed on an ongoing basis by
the Board in order to make it practical and effective in providing
reasonable assurance in relation to protection of material assets
and shareholders’ interests. For any identified internal control
weaknesses or defects, the Group is committed to enhance control
measures to rectify such control weaknesses or defects. The
Group has implemented an effective control system which includes
a defined management structure with limits of authority, a sound
management system and periodic review of the Group’s performance
by the Audit Committee and the Board.

Review the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems

Through the Audit Committee, the Board has conducted annual
review of the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and
internal control systems for the year ended 31 December 2023 by
considering written reports prepared by the independent internal
control consultants, covering the material financial, operational and
compliance controls, which are considered effective and adequate.

Audit Committee has annually reviewed the adequacy of resources,
staff qualifications and experience, training and budget of the
accounting, internal audit and financial reporting functions as well as
those relating to its ESG performance and reporting.

INSIDE INFORMATION

The Company assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the shares of the
Company or their trading volume and decides whether the relevant
information is considered inside information and needs to be
disclosed as soon as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules
17.10 and 17.11 of the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information
Provisions under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors have
responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or circulars
to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by the Board
from time to time.
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The Company has put in place on handling and dissemination of
inside information in a timely manner in such a way so as not to
place any person in a privileged dealing position and to allow time
for the market to price the listed securities of the Company with the
latest available information. The Company has appropriate internal
control and reporting systems to identify and assess potential inside
information. Dissemination of inside information of the Company
shall be conducted by publishing the relevant information on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company, according to the
requirements of the GEM Listing Rules.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Ms. Woo Man Yi. The
Company Secretary assists the Board by ensuring good information
flow within the Board and that Board policy and procedures
are followed. She has taken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional trainings to update her skills and knowledge in 2023.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company has adopted a dividend policy, pursuant to which the
Company gives priority to distributing dividend in cash and shares
its profits with its shareholders. The dividend payout ratio shall be
determined or recommended, as appropriate, by the Board at its
absolute discretion after taking into account the Company’s financial
results, future prospects and other factors, and subject to:

the Articles of Association of the Company;

- the applicable restrictions and requirements under the laws of
the Cayman Islands;

- any banking or other funding covenants by which the Company
is bound from time to time;

- the investment and operating requirements of the Company;
and

- any other factors that have material impact on the Company.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Convening an extraordinary general meeting

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Articles and Associations of the
Company, any one or more shareholders holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the voting rights,
on a one vote per share basis, in the capital of the Company shall
at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or
the Secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general
meeting to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
or resolution specified in such requisition; and such meeting shall
be held within two months after the deposit of such requisition. If
within twenty-one days of such deposit the Board fails to proceed to
convene such meeting the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may
do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred
by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may put forward proposals at general meeting of the
Company by sending the same to the Company at the principal
office of the Company in Hong Kong ten days before general
meeting.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board, shareholders
may send written enquiries to the Board of Directors/Company
Secretary at the Company’s head office. For the avoidance of doubt,
shareholder(s) must deposit and send the original duly signed written
requisition, notice or statement, or enquiry (as the case may be)
to the Company’s head office and provide their full name, contact
details and identification in order to give effect thereto. Shareholders’
information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company adheres to high standards with respect to the
disclosure all necessary information to the shareholders in
compliance with GEM Listing Rules. The Company strengthens
its communications with shareholders through various channels
including publication of interim and annual reports, press release
and announcements of the latest development of the Company in its
corporate website in a timely manner.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
amended its articles of association pursuant to a special resolution
passed at the annual general meeting held on 9 June 2023. Details
of the amendments are set out in the circular dated 15 May 2023 to
the shareholders of the Company. The latest version of the articles
of association of the Company is available on the websites of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

ABOUT US

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group” or “we”), are the integrated
financial service provider in Hong Kong, and the parallel-imported
motor vehicles supplier in the People’s Republic of China (“PRC” or
“China”). We are dedicated to creating a comprehensive financial
services platform which integrates services of financing, brokerage
and financial information.

The Group is principally engaged in the: (i) trading of motor vehicles,
provision of agency services and accessories sourcing in the
PRC, excluding Hong Kong, (i) provision of securities and futures
contracts trading services in Hong Kong, and (i) trading of listed
securities in Hong Kong.

ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE REPORT

This Environmental, Social and Governance Report (‘ESG Report”)
summarises the environmental, social and governance (“ESG”)
initiatives, plans and performances of the Group and demonstrates
its commitment to sustainable development.

Reporting Period

Unless otherwise stated, the ESG Report covers the activities,
challenges and measures with respect to ESG aspects of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2023 (the “Reporting Period” or
“2023”).

Reporting Scope

The reporting scope is consistent with the annual report and is
determined based on the materiality and revenue contribution of the
business segments under the Group’s direct operational control.
The ESG Report covers the overall performance, risks, strategies,
measures and commitment in five areas, namely, corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operating practice and community investment of the Group’s
major subsidiaries in the PRC and the office in Hong Kong. ESG
key performance indicators (“KPIs”) data are obtained from these
operations. We will continue to expand the scope of disclosure in the
future when the data collection system of the Group is more refined
and the sustainable development work is enhanced.
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Reporting Framework

The ESG Report has been prepared in accordance with the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” (the “ESG
Reporting Guide”) as set out in Appendix C2 of the Rules Governing
the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the GEM of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
Information relating to the Group’s corporate governance practices
can be found in the “Corporate Governance Report” of the annual
report.

During the preparation for this ESG Report, the Group has applied
the reporting principles in the ESG Reporting Guide as follow:

Materiality: A materiality assessment was conducted to identify
material issues during the Reporting Period, thereby adopting the
confirmed material issues as the focus for the preparation of the ESG
Report. The materiality of issues was reviewed and confirmed by the
Board of Directors (the “Board”) and the ESG Working Group (the
“Working Group”). For further details, please refer to the sections
headed “STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT” and “MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT”.

Quantitative: The standards, methodologies and applicable
assumptions used in the calculation of KPIs data were supplemented
by explanatory notes.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the preparation approach
of this ESG Report is consistent with the fiscal year ended 31
December 2022 (“2022") for comparison. If there are any changes
in the scope of disclosure and calculation methodologies that
may affect comparison with previous reports, explanations will be
provided to the corresponding data.
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
Dear Valued Stakeholders,

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to present the ESG Report
of the Group, which demonstrates our growing commitment to
improving our ESG performance in five aspects, including corporate
governance, environmental protection, employment practice,
operating practices and community investment.

In order to achieve sustainable development, the PRC government
implemented the “Limits and Measurement Methods for Emissions
from Light-Duty Vehicles” (China Phase 6) (GB 18352.6-2016)
(“China 6 Standard”) in July 2020, suggesting more stringent
emission requirements on motor vehicles in the PRC. In view of
uncertain factors such as policy change, the business segment of
trading of motor vehicles of the Group has been affected. The Group
will closely monitor the changes in the business environment and
policy, and capitalise on the opportunities brought by the expansion
of the demand for motor vehicles in time of China’s economic
recovery, so as to stimulate the trade and clear the stocks of motor
vehicles. With the aim of pursuing a sustainable business model,
the Group will also adjust and formulate appropriate business
strategies, strive to complete the process of obtaining certification
administered by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC
(“EE Certificate”) for the trading of China 6 Standard motor vehicles.
As at 31 December 2023, the Group obtained EE Certificate for six
types of China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles, and the rest
are going through the certification process. The Group has been
closely monitoring the certification procedures of imported China 6
Standard vehicles. To mitigate risks, the Group will also outsource
procurement from third party agents and invest in and develop other
businesses to achieve the diversification of the Group’s business.

The Group believes that sustainable development is vital to the earth
and contributes to the long-term prosperity and development of
the Group’s business. Therefore, the Group continues to improve
its governance structure to effectively manage ESG matters
related to the Group. The Board must assess the potential impact
of ESG issues on the overall strategy of the Group, set out ESG
management approach and strategy, and supervise the Group’s ESG
issues. Information about the Group’s ESG governance structure is
stated in the section headed “ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE”.
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To identify and prioritise major ESG issues that have a significant
impact on our operations and stakeholders, we continuously
communicate with internal and external stakeholders. The Board
has delegated the Working Group and hired an independent
third party to conduct materiality assessments. Information
about the stakeholder engagement channels and the materiality
assessment conducted by the Group is stated in the section
headed “STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT” and “MATERIALITY
ASSESSMENT” respectively. In order to have a deeper
understanding of stakeholders’ expectations of the Group’s
sustainable development, the Group will further strengthen its
communication with stakeholders and formulate relevant policies
and measures based on their opinions to improve the Group’s ESG
performance.

As an enterprise that upholds corporate social responsibility, the
Group acknowledges the importance of reducing its impact on
the environment. To fulfil the Group’s commitment to corporate
social responsibility and allow the Group’s stakeholders to better
understand the Group’s progress in improving ESG performance,
the Group has set quantifiable environmental targets. These targets
cover aspects of energy conservation, emission reduction and waste
management, with the aim to align with the national vision of carbon
neutrality and enhance corporate reputation. To achieve these
targets, the Group actively implements the principles of sustainable
development and adopts relevant measures at operational levels.
The Board has delegated the Working Group to collect relevant ESG
data, track and review our performance, and evaluate the Group’s
progress towards the targets. The relevant progress is summarised
in the section headed “Environmental Targets”.

In closing, on behalf of the Board and the management team of the
Group, | would like to express my sincere gratitude to our valued
stakeholders for the persistent support, while also expressing my
appreciation to our employees for their valuable contribution to the
development of the Group. Looking forward, the Group will continue
to deepen the integration of ESG concepts into its business strategy
and management system, and operate its business in a more
responsible and sustainable manner in order to create sustainable
value for shareholders and pursue a sustainable future.

Wang Jiawei
Chairman
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ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Group has developed an ESG governance structure to ensure
ESG governance aligns with its business strategy focusing on
sustainable development and to integrate ESG management into its
business operations and decision-making process.

The Board holds the overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG
issues and sets out ESG management approach, strategy, priorities
and objectives. The Board is diverse in its composition and the
members are equipped with the appropriate technical capabilities,
experience, knowledge and perspectives required to supervise the
ESG matters of the Group. In order to better manage the Group’s
ESG performance, related issues and potential risks, the Board
discusses ESG issues collectively, evaluates and determines ESG
related risks and opportunities of the Group, reviews the materiality
of ESG issues, as well as reviews its performance against ESG-
related targets at least once a year. The Board is also responsible
for ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems and approving disclosures in the ESG
Report.

To develop systematic management of ESG issues under the
Board’s delegations, the Group has established the Working Group.
The Working Group is composed of core members from various
departments who have relevant expertise in various aspects of ESG
to facilitate the Board’s oversight of ESG matters. The Working
Group has the responsibility for collecting and analysing ESG data,
monitoring and evaluating the Group’s ESG performance, keeping
track of and reviewing the progress made against the Group’s ESG
related targets, and ensuring compliance with ESG-related laws and
regulations. The Working Group collaborates with an independent
third party to assist in conducting materiality assessment and
preparing ESG reports. The Working Group also needs to assist
in assessing and identifying ESG risks and opportunities of the
Group, and ensure the implementation and effectiveness of risk
management and internal control systems. The Working Group
arranges meetings at least once a year to evaluate the effectiveness
of current policies and procedures, and formulates appropriate
solutions to improve the overall performance of ESG policies. The
Working Group reports to the Board at least once a year about its
findings, decisions and suggestions.

During the Reporting Period, the Group confirms that it has
established appropriate and effective management policies
and monitoring systems on ESG issues, and confirms that the
disclosures meet the requirements of the ESG Reporting Guide.
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

As a responsible enterprise, the Group attaches great importance to
communication with stakeholders and their feedback regarding our
business operation and ESG affairs, while proactively developing our
business and improving profitability, to balance the interests of all
parties and foster sustainable development. Therefore, stakeholder
engagement plays an indispensable role in the Group’s continuous
improvement in sustainable development performance. To fully
understand, respond, and address the core concerns of various
stakeholders, we have been maintaining close communication
with key stakeholders, including but not limited to investors and
shareholders, clients, business partners and suppliers, employees,
community, non-governmental organisations (“NGOs”) and media.
We are dedicated to working with our stakeholders to improve
the Group’s ESG performance and create higher value for a larger
community.

By using the diversified cooperation methods and communication
channels shown in the table below, we bring the expectation of our
stakeholders into our operation and ESG strategies.

Stakeholders Communication channels
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Expectations

FinE BEEE HAZ

Investors and shareholders ° Annual general meetings and ° Disclosing the latest information in

KREEMKE other general meetings due course
REBFERGREMBKRRE & KRB AR ERMEN

° Annual reports,
interim reports and
quarterly reports

FH - FHRBERFTERS

° Announcements and circulars

RNEFRIBE

° Email
B

° Company website
PAN/NET A

° Focusing on financial growth,
improving operation efficiency and
creating stable returns
EIEERE EAKSENERE
Szl

° Reinforcing corporate governance
and risk control
hns& k2 B8 K R kg

° Complying with relevant laws and
regulations

BTHEBARRIER
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Communication channels

B HERELBRS

Expectations

Fin& BEEE HAEE

Clients ° Customer service hotline and ° Identifying client needs and

=R email improving product and service
HRIRB AR B quality

Business partners and suppliers

BEBH KRR
Employees
{[=3=]

Community, NGOs and media

HEF RSB R R e

EREEERARQARF | ZF==

FER

Supplier meetings and events
HEEE &% S E

Business cooperation

72 75 78 B¢

Regular management
communications and
performance review

EHRRY B IR M A TR R IR 5T Z
Email

5

ESG reports
ESGH &

THREFPZE -FENSERKR
° Respecting clients’ privacy and

protecting their interests

EERRIMRERERERZ R &

° Forging partnership to grow
together
BUSERGR ERAKE

° Providing safe workplace
REZ2TFIRE

° Respecting all employees and
ensuring fair treatment
EEMAEBLRERATFE

° Supporting career growth and
providing internal training
TRETHEEERRIEHAEE
Bl

o Giving back to society and
promoting self-reliance
ClEEt g B A B8

° Fulfilling environmental protection
responsibility
BITIRBERESE

o Raising awareness of
environmental protection and
helping the needy, nurturing virtue
and values
W EBTIRMR MM AERR ) BIIE
HEEE
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

In hope of understanding the views and expectations of stakeholders
on the Group’s ESG performance effectively, we adopt a systematic
approach in conducting the annual materiality assessment. With
reference to the Group’s business development strategy and industry
practices, the Group identified and determined a list of material
ESG issues, which covers five major areas: corporate governance,
environmental protection, employment practice, operating practice
and community investment. The Group prepared a questionnaire
based on the list and invited relevant stakeholders to rate the
potential material issues according to the level of importance of the
ESG issues and their impacts on the economy, environment and
society. The results of the survey were analysed and a materiality
matrix was developed. The materiality matrix and the identified
material topics were reviewed and confirmed by the Board and the
Task Force and disclosed in the ESG Report. During the Reporting
Period, the Group’s materiality matrix is shown below:

EEMFL
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LRARBEATEER) > H P A FEBEKESG
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Mo RMHBEERENERETHONLRR
BEEMERE BEEMERRERMBNEKRE
BEEHESE AT/ NEERRES I
RAESGHIR S FH M EE - RIS HIMRE » A&
ENEZMERENT :

=

2
7

INFLUENCE ON STAKEHOLDERS
ASSESSMENTS AND DECISIONS
HEF R EHEEORENR

00
© 00
06

High The Group’s Materiality Matrix during the Reporting Period
= AERM RS AR Z EE TG EREE

&

ﬂ Emissions Control and Climate Change Adaptation 6 Improving Safety Awareness

Low SIGNIFICANCE OF ECONOMIC, ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL IMPACTS High
1& B Ed e SR B

© Customer Communication

BRI R B R AR RAZZEH HEFER Lifile7s =4
9 Waste Management @ Training Management @ Customer Privacy Protection @ Community Investment
BEEYER EIER FELBRE HERKE
@ Use of Resources @ Prevention of Child and Forced Labour {§) Advertising and Labeling
HIRHRE By 1-% T Roghlss T & RigE
o Employment Practice 6 Supply Chain Management @ Anti-corruption and Anti-fraud
RIBED s ER RES KR ERE

@® Prevention of Money Laundering
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CONTACT US

The Group welcomes opinions and suggestions from stakeholders.
You can provide your valuable advice on the ESG report or the
Group’s performance on sustainable development via:

Address: 16/F, CMA Building,
64-66 Connaught Road Central,
Hong Kong

Phone: (852) 2297 9900

Fax: (852) 2865 3888

Email: info@sinofortune.hk

A. ENVIRONMENTAL

Environmental Targets

To ensure that we are able to effectively implement a
sustainable business model, the Group established a number
of environmental targets in line with its direction and strategic
approach, and will closely monitor and regularly review its
progress against these targets. Relevant data and year-on-year
comparisons are presented in the subsequent sections. The
Group plans to achieve the following targets:
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BRI LG REBGHRS

Subject Area Target
[BE B 1%

Progress

ER

Exhaust Gas Emissions Gradually reducing the total exhaust

gas emissions intensity by the year

ending 31 December 2026 (“2026”),

using the year ended 31 December
2021 (“2021”) as the base year.

NBE_Z-_—F+_"B=+—HLt
FE(MZE

(TZEZRE)) 2 E S RIE4E
BEREMEE o

“—F)REEE B
ECRTARFTA=1T—HLFE

The Group has set an additional short-
term target: reducing the total
exhaust gas emissions intensity by
2% in the year ended 31 December
2023 (“2023"), using 2021 as the
base year.

Although the Group was unable to
achieve the short-term target in
2023 (for specific reasons, please
refer to the “Exhaust Gas Emissions”
section), the Group will continue to
strive towards the long-term target
set for 2026 and regularly review the
progress of the goals. To achieve this
target, the Group has implemented
relevant measures to reduce exhaust
gas emissions (for specific measures,
please refer to the “Exhaust Gas
Emissions” section).

AEBEBCAIIETEHERE UZE

——FEREES ﬁééjzﬂ_g:zﬁ

+ZB=+—BHLtFE(ZZ2Z=
F)) BRERBERINEE2%-

BPRARERTE _S = FRESHRZE
HEZ (BRRRFLEERIERU
—&) B REEMBEBE HHE
“ECRENERFBEEEE  wEHS
EREERNERBR AERE—H
12 REBBE KB 7 18RS 5K
DEREE (ARERFE2RAER
BERU—HR) ©
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Subject Area
i=di]

Target
B1E

B HERELBRS

Progress

ER

Greenhouse Gas (“GHG”)
Emissions

Gradually reducing the total GHG
emissions intensity by 2026, using
2021 as the base year.

UZEZ—FFREFE REEZT
TAREFRZAZTREERERE
HREERE-

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

The Group has set an additional short-
term target: reducing the total GHG
emission intensity by 2% in 2023,
using 2021 as the base year.

Although the Group was unable to
achieve the short-term target in 2023
(for specific reasons, please refer to
the “GHG Emissions” section), the
Group will continue to strive towards
the long-term target set for 2026
and regularly review the progress
of the goals. To achieve this target,
the Group has implemented relevant
measures to reduce GHG emissions
(for specific measures, please refer to
the “GHG Emissions” section).

AEEBR/IIETEMAER UZE
——HREEE RN _Z=FR%NE

BERBEIIMEERE2% -

HATEBE_S_=FREBRZE
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52

RIE LB RER

Subject Area
i=di]

w5

Target Progress

BiE ER

Hazardous Wastes
Management

Non-hazardous Wastes
Management

Due to the business nature, the Group
has not set quantifiable targets.

Due to the business nature, the Group
has not yet set quantifiable targets,
but in order to raise awareness of
waste reduction among employees,
the Group will conduct annual
seminar and other activities (i.e.
waste charging scheme) related to
waste reduction starting from 2024.

BEREBME AEERTIETELCE EREBUEE XEENESETEE
1o B BREEEINRERH &

SERRN S NFRSFRBREE

(I - Bk EE ) FREMERE

o

Gradually reducing the total non-
hazardous wastes intensity by 2026,
using 2021 as the base year.

The Group has set an additional short-
term target: reducing the total non-
hazardous wastes intensity by 2% in
2023, using 2021 as the base year.

Although the Group was unable to
achieve the short-term target in
2023, the Group will continue to
strive towards the long-term target
set for 2026 and regularly review the
progress of the goals. To achieve this
target, the Group has implemented
relevant measures to reduce non-
hazardous wastes (for specific
measures, please refer to the “Non-
hazardous Wastes Management”
section).
MZEZ—FFEEF RIZTIRFE AEECSH/IEITERHER  UZE
HZABTRBEREEEYBE - —fET’E% FORIEBE=FRBNE
EEEMHBIEERE2%

BPAREBRE _S _—FREBIRZE
HEE BRERNBEELE HAE
TECRENRPEEZEE LE
EREENERBR ABRE—FH
12 REB B KB 7 18R 5 28R
DEEEEYHN (BARBHEZSE
MEEEEYEIE —) o
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Subject Area
i=di]

Target
B1E

“HERERBERS

Progress

ER

Energy Management Gradually reducing the total energy
consumption intensity by 2026,

using 2021 as the base year.

Conduct annual seminar and other
activities to raise awareness
of energy conservation among

employees.
FEREIR UZEZ—FFEEEF RIET R
W AR T ERAEREREERE -
STFHEEESEE WEE BTN

A =z s
BEEM o

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

The Group has set an additional short-
term target: reducing the total energy
consumption intensity by 2% in
2023, using 2021 as the base year.

Although the Group was unable to
achieve the short-term target in
2023 (for specific reasons, please
refer to the “Energy Management”
section), the Group will continue to
strive towards the long-term target
set for 2026 and regularly review the
progress of the goals. To achieve this
target, the Group has implemented
relevant measures to reduce
energy consumption (for specific
measures, please refer to the “Energy
Management” section).

In the future, the Group will dedicate
more effort in raising awareness
by conducting annual seminar or
participating in activities when the
situation allows.

REBBER/IETRAERS U=
—HFREEFE R _ZE=F%BNE
AR HFEEEE2%
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RIE 8 RE

Subject Area
i=di]

AW E

Target
B1E

Progress

ER

Water Management

Due to limitations in data collection,
the Group has not set quantifiable
targets. The Group will conduct
seminar or participate in activities
such as World Water Day annually
to raise awareness of water
conservation among employees.

In the future, the Group will dedicate
more effort in raising awareness
by conducting annual seminar or
participating in activities when the
situation allows.

RREB R T AERRSRKE
ZEREASFREBENSREFHU

ReE#H-

KIEEIER ERYBERERS ~EBEFITAI =
EEE-AEEESFEHERBERS
PR HEES) UIEe 8 THE
HRKEWH -

A1. Emissions

54

The Group realises that the public and investors are
paying more attention to environmental protection and
corporate social responsibility. Therefore, we always
attach great importance to sound environmental
management and strive to protect the environment to fulfil
the Group’s social responsibility. To minimise pollution and
environmental damage arising from our daily business
operations, we have established the Environmental Policy
and strive to improve the environmental management in
our business process through a series of measures and
comply with the applicable environmental regulations and
standards.

The Group has established environmental management
system and procedures for the business operations in
Hong Kong and the PRC to regulate the exhaust gas,
GHG and non-hazardous wastes generated during
the operation in order to contribute to environmental
protection and to pursue the goal of sustainable
development.

A1,
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To comply with relevant local laws and regulations and
implement environmental policies, the Group keeps
track of the latest national and regional environmental
protection laws and regulations regularly, and uses
them as a basis to strengthen our environmental
protection measures. The Group strictly abides by the
regulations including the “Environmental Protection
Law of the People’s Republic of China”, “Law of the
People’s Republic of China on Prevention and Control
of Water Pollution”, “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on Prevention and Control of Environmental
Pollution by Solid Waste” in the PRC and “Air Pollution
Control Ordinance”, “Waste Disposal Ordinance”, “Water
Pollution Control Ordinance”, “Product Eco-responsibility
Ordinance” in Hong Kong and other legislations regarding

environmental protection in the PRC and Hong Kong.

During the Reporting Period, there was no incident of
non-compliance with the relevant local environmental
laws and regulations relating to exhaust gas and GHG
emissions, discharges of pollutants into water and land
and generation of hazardous or non-hazardous wastes
that have a significant impact on the Group.

Exhaust Gas Emissions

The Group’s exhaust gas emissions are mainly generated
from the consumption of petrol by vehicles. To mitigate
emissions, the Group actively executes the following
exhaust gas emission reduction measures:

° Regularly maintain and repair vehicles to prevent
them from generating excess exhaust gas emissions
from broken parts and other reasons; and

° Phase out unqualified trucks in accordance with the
local emission regulations.
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Due to increased need of transportation as a result of the
relaxation of epidemic prevention and control measures,
and the usage of new vehicles in 2023, the emission
intensities’ of nitrogen oxides (“NOx”) and particulate
matter (“PM”) have increased from approximately
248.40 g/employee and 18.20 g/employee in 2022
to approximately 1,198.26 g/employee and 105.22 g/
employee in 2023. Meanwhile, the emission intensity
of sulphur oxides (“SOx”) has slightly increased from
approximately 4.20 g/employee to approximately 4.78 g/
employee. This increase can be attributed to the lifting
of travel restrictions imposed during the 2022 pandemic,
resulting in a higher usage of vehicles in 2023. The
performance of exhaust gas emissions is summarised
below:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SocIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE  HEREABRS

R_E_ZF - HREBHE
EMMEER T BEEHMNEX
M REFIEERNER A%
Baat (TNOxJ) REK Y
(TPM)) BEREBEE ' DRR
— T #9248.405% B E % 18.20
%/ EEEEIAE B =
#91,198.265¢ R E 5% 105.225%%
J1RE B FAEEY (TSOxy)
HEEMZE B HN4.20%, BRE 1Y
EEHN4.78% EBE THHERE
TRHBELEBE I T =
ERERZ - AEEMNERIEN
RIBME AT -

Type of exhaust gas® Unit 2023 2022

BSR4’ (i —E== —E

NOx kg 55.12 12.42
A

SOx kg 0.22 0.21
AR

PM kg 4.84 0.91
A

Notes: e

1. As at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022, the total 1. BE_Z_=F+"_A=+—HK

number of employees of the Group was 46 and 50, respectively.
This data is also used to calculate other intensity data.

2. The calculation method of exhaust gas emissions refers to “How
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance on
Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange.

TE_E+-A=+—RH &&
ENRERELAED B H46 A K50
Ao b8BT RIEFEHEMEE
ko

2. BER PR BT E 75 A S RE PR 3
R (A ERRE - HERELR
T RIERREENIERE
SRR
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GHG Emissions

The major sources of GHG emissions of the Group are
direct GHG emissions from the consumption of petrol by
vehicles (Scope 1), energy indirect GHG emissions from
purchased electricity (Scope 2) and other indirect GHG
emissions from employees’ business trips (Scope 3). In
line with the nation’s strategic development of overall
GHG emissions reduction to achieve the sustainable
development goal of energy-saving and carbon reduction,
the Group has been actively reducing GHG emissions
by reducing energy consumption, thereby enhancing
the Group’s reputation. With respect to the emission
sources mentioned above, we actively adopt the following
emission reduction measures:

° Actively adopt emission reduction measures on
vehicles, which is explained in the section “Exhaust
Gas Emissions” in this Aspect;

° Actively adopt environmental protection and energy-
saving measures, which is explained in the section
“Energy Management” in Aspect A2;

o Reduce the frequency of business trips through
electronic communication channels, such as
conference calls and WeChat conferences; and

o Post notices and posters with green messages at
prominent locations in the office to promote the best
practice of environmental management and raise
employees’ awareness of environment protection.
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“HEREGBRS

As a result of the relaxation of epidemic prevention and
control measures, there has been an increase in business
travels. The total GHG emissions intensity of the Group
has increased by approximately 25.86% compared to
2022. The performance of GHG emissions is summarised
below:

MEBHERERE > ZRITRE
WML M ET THMFL AEE
BEREHRIRETEERTH
25.86% ° A B BV R E RIS HEK
RIBHAIT

Indicator® Unit 2023 2022

it (i —E== —ET_—

Scope 1 — Direct GHG emissions

HE-——BRRERBIWK

e Fuel consumption by vehicles t1CO2e 39.51 38.60
BIRRHIH AR M_REREE

Scope 2 — Energy indirect GHG emissions

#HE - - REERER BN

e Purchased electricity tCO2e 35.33 41.87
SMREEE /) Wi —FAERE 2

Scope 3 — Other indirect GHG emissions

HE=—HMEERERBEN

e Business air travel tCO2e 26.11 6.54
TR S AT W —EEREE

Total GHG emissions (Scope 1, 2 and 3) tCO2e 100.95 87.01

BERBHREE BE— kD) Wi —FAERE 2

Total GHG emissions intensity tCO2e/employee 2.19 1.74

BEREBHRBERE

M-SR ESE RS

Notes:

3. GHG emission data are presented in terms of carbon dioxide
equivalent and are based on, including but not limited to, “The
Greenhouse Gas Protocol: A Corporate Accounting and Reporting
Standards” issued by the World Resources Institute and the
World Business Council for Sustainable Development, the “Notice
on the Management of Enterprise Greenhouse Gas Emissions
Reporting by Power Generation Industry for 2023-2025" issued
by the Ministry of Ecology and Environment of the PRC, the global
warming potential values from the “Fifth Assessment Report”
issued by Intergovernmental Panel on Climate Change, “How
to prepare an ESG Report — Appendix 2: Reporting Guidance
on Environmental KPIs” issued by the Stock Exchange and the
“Sustainability Report 2022” released by Hong Kong Electric.

BaE

3. BERBHREHDZ _ALKE
B2 U2REBEBEEFBRIER
BRMEMRERTFERRTE
BEETEN(RERBEZERR
TERZEERERE) PEAR
FE B A AR IR 15 B 8% 4 09 (R 1L 1R
$$2023-2025F B BITHRERAE
FHBEEEFMIENEN)
FERBFBEREEEMAINE
FIZEEMMEMN(ELRTHER
=) WBIR IR T AE(E ~ B 3P 8
BN EFHIRE B REBR
ST IRBFARENIERE
RIS RBRBBNREBRAT
HEN(CE__FaFBEER

H)e

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023



ENVIRONMENTAL, SociaL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Sewage Discharge

Given the nature of the Group’s business, it does not
generate any industrial wastewater in the course of
operation, but only domestic sewage. Water supply and
discharge are solely controlled by the office building
management, of which it is not feasible for the Group to
obtain water consumption and discharge data or sub-
metering from the relevant management office. Therefore,
the Group cannot provide statistical data on water
consumption and discharge. However, we believe that
the domestic sewage discharge amount of the Group is
normal and reasonable.

Waste Management

The Group adheres to the principles of waste
management and is dedicated to the reasonable
management and disposal of wastes generated from our
business activities. The Group maintains a high standard
in reducing wastes, educates employees the importance
of sustainable development and provides them with
relevant supports to improve their skills and knowledge in
sustainable development.

Hazardous Wastes

Due to its business nature, the Group does not generate
any significant amount of hazardous wastes during daily
operation, and therefore no relevant targets have been
set. Nevertheless, we are devoted to waste reduction.
If any hazardous waste is generated, the Group must
appoint a qualified chemical waste collector to handle
such waste to comply with relevant environmental laws
and regulations. Besides, we will conduct annual seminar
and other activities to raise awareness of waste reduction
among employees, and reduce the generation of e-waste
by various methods such as donating used electronic
gadgets to charitable organisations.
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Non-hazardous Wastes

The major non-hazardous wastes generated during
our operation is paper. In addition to requiring our
employees to properly dispose of such office wastes
and encouraging them to sort them before disposal, we
arrange for staff to handle them centrally. With regard to
paper consumption in the office, we have implemented

the following measures:

° Use more electronic documents and establish

electronic work processes;

. Recycle used paper;

° Try to avoid printing and copying documents; and

o Try to print or copy on both sides.

With effective control of paper consumption, the Group’s
non-hazardous wastes intensity has remained at similar
level compared to 2022. The performance of non-
hazardous wastes generation is summarised below:

EZERY
RPEEBRETELENTEERS
BENHBR FHMFT ERE
ITZERERBBETIERER
DEREN  TRFAER—E
B #HHMAEEAMEK HMAE
B N5

s ZMABEFE BEUBFIT
B

o RIREAMEK;

H

s RBEBRBINENREEXXM

B

X

s REEMGBZEEIENSTH-

BRABWNIEGRERAE AEE
BEEEYEETERAR_E
T IFERTERAOKE - RERE
HNEESEENHRRREHR LD
™

Types of wastes Unit 2023 2022

B R (i —E== —ZT-=

Total non-hazardous wastes

BEEEVES

e Paper tonnes 0.39 0.48
AR i

Total non-hazardous wastes intensity tonnes/employee 0.01 0.01

BEBRYEERE L=
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Use of Resources

The Group strictly complies with relevant local laws and
regulations on environmental protection. It formulated the
Environmental Policy and cooperated with the rules of the
buildings where its offices are located, in order to achieve
energy-saving and consumption reduction, thus minimise
the negative environmental impact of our business
operation.

With the aim of achieving greater energy efficiency and
reducing unnecessary consumption of resources we
reviewed the business operation process regularly, carry
out improvement measures for effective use of water,
electricity and other resources, reduce or even stop the
use of wasteful or environmentally polluting products.

Energy Management

The Group’s major energy consumption is electricity
consumed in office and petrol consumed by vehicles. To
uphold the Group’s commitment to energy conservation,
aside from energy-saving measures for vehicles described
in section “Exhaust Gas Emissions” under Aspect A1, the
Group has established system to promote the green office
culture to achieve the objective of electricity-saving and
efficient use of electricity. Relevant measures are listed
below:

° Use lighting system with low energy consumption
feature, such as LED lamps;

° Limit the use of air-conditioning to lower electricity
consumption;

° Encourage employees to turn off their computers
when they are away for long periods and put them
on hibernating or sleeping mode when they are out
for lunch breaks;

° Enhance the maintenance and repairment of air
conditioners and computers to ensure the best
condition of all electronic devices and the efficient
use of electricity; and

° Post power saving tips at office power switches to
remind employees to turn off unnecessary power.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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The Group will review the effectiveness of these measures
from time to time and make adjustments according to the
operation condition to improve the efficiency of the use
of resources. With these energy-saving measures, the
employees’ awareness of energy conservation has been
increased.

By enhancing energy efficiency, the Group managed
to reduce electricity consumption. However, due to a
decrease in the Group’s employee number in 2023, the
total energy consumption intensity of the Group has
increased by approximately 5.41% compared to 2022.
The energy consumption performance is summarised
below:

ENVIRONMENTAL, SocIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
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7 & B R A B AR 5T & M3 i AY
PR RS > I (A FE I B R T A PR
BOLEERABREAUXN
B -ZEBZEMHAOMERIENR B
THHVERNEHRR[URES

BBREFAERNG  AEBNE
EE/URBE-BER2 BR_Z
TEEAREENEEABEMRT
Feo FrLl REBEREREERE
MBS - _FIBEL5.41%-°
AEBMERBERIBEBLN
T

Types of energy Unit 2023 2022

AERTESE B (i —E-=F —ET——

Direct energy consumption*

B RHRE

e Petrol MWh 143.97 140.65
b JEFLBF

Indirect energy consumption

M= AETRHFE

e Purchased electricity MWh 53.15 62.67
SMEEE ] JK BB

Total energy consumption MWh 197.12 203.32

RERARFES KB BF

Total energy consumption intensity MWh/employee 4.29 4.07

EEREEERE KEFRBE

Notes: e

4. The unit conversion method of energy consumption data is 4. AR HREEBNEMRE R AR

formulated according to the “Energy Statistics Manual” released by
International Energy Agency.
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Water Management

The Group’s water consumption is mainly for domestic
use in the office area. Due to the geographical location
of the Group’s operations, the Group does not have any
issues in sourcing water that is fit for purpose.

As most of the offices of the Group are solely controlled
by the building management in terms of water supply and
discharge, it is not feasible for such management office
to provide water consumption and discharge data or sub-
metering for an individual unit, and the Group believes
that only providing data for the individual office of the
Group does not reflect the actual water consumption.
Therefore, total water consumption data is not disclosed
in this ESG Report. To reduce water consumption, the
Group has put up posters or promotional materials in
prominent locations in the offices to promote water
conservation.

Use of Packaging Materials
Due to business nature, the Group does not sell any
physical product involve the use of packaging materials.

The Environment and Natural Resources

Despite that the Group’s major operations do not have
a significant impact on the environment and natural
resources, we, as a responsible corporate, are committed
to minimising the negative impact of our business
to the environment by assessing the environmental
risks of our operations and formulating an appropriate
Environmental Policy in the hope of contributing to
environment protection. In addition to abiding by relevant
environmental laws and regulations and the international
standards, we strive to achieve environmental
sustainability goals by incorporating the concept of
environmental and natural resource protection into our
internal management and daily operation activities.
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Raising Environmental Awareness

We are convinced that in addition to strictly requiring
employees to implement the environmental protection
measures formulated by the Group, we need to
proactively promote environmental awareness among
our employees to effectively enhance our environmental
protection standards. Therefore, the Group reviews
its Code of Conduct, issues environmental guidelines
and notices to its employees and shares relevant
environmental information such as green office from
time to time. We will also consider participating in more
feasible and appropriate activities to help our employees
increase their awareness of the environment and natural
resources.

Indoor Air Quality

The Group is dedicated to providing our employees
with a comfortable and green working environment by
constantly monitoring and measuring the indoor air quality
of the workplace. We have equipped the office with
air purification equipment, cleaned the air-conditioning
system, including air filters and air duct, and selected
products low or zero in volatile organic compounds, etc.
These measures can help avoid the blockage of vents
and exhaust pipes by filtering out pollutants and dust,
thereby maintain satisfactory indoor ventilation, indoor air
quality, and proper system operation.
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A4. Climate Change

Climate change poses escalating risks and challenges to
the global economy, and such risks may negatively impact
the Group’s financial and motor vehicles business. As a
result, the Group is aware of the importance of identifying
and mitigating any major impacts caused by climate
change. Pursuant to the International Recommendations
from Task Force on Climate-Related Financial Disclosures
(“TCFD”) established by the Financial Stability Board, the
management of the Group has evaluated and recognised
the impact of climate-related risks on the Group’s
business and corresponding opportunities. Based upon
the evaluation, the Group has integrated climate risks
into its enterprise risk management process to manage
and review climate-related risks and seize relevant
opportunities. With reference to the risk categorisation
by TCFD, the identified climate-related risks of the Group
and corresponding actions taken to manage them are as
follows:

Physical Risks

The increasing frequency and severity of extreme weather
events such as extreme cold or extreme heat, storms,
rainstorms and typhoons, could lead to an increased
risk of power shortages, interrupt the supply chain and
damage the Group’s assets, disrupting the operation of
the Group’s offices and resulting in reduced revenue,
as well as increasing the cost of repairing or restoring
damaged assets. These events could also disrupt the
work of employees and even cause casualties. As a
countermeasure, the Group has formulated Disaster
Recovery Plan for emergencies so that loss can be
reduced or avoided when extreme weather events affect
the Group’s operating sites. The Group will identify these
risks and prioritise those that may have a significant
impact to take precautionary measures in the first place.
At the same time, the Group will examine the possibility
of a change of business model to reduce or avoid these
serious effects on business operations.
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Transition Risks

To achieve sustainable development, governments
are enacting climate-related legislation or tightening
regulations to support the global vision of
decarbonisation. For example, the PRC government
has started to implement the China 6 Standard, which
imposes more stringent emission requirements on motor
vehicles in the PRC and has affected the business of
motor vehicles segment of the Group. The Group will
closely monitor the certification process of imported
China 6 Standard motor vehicles, and capitalise on the
opportunities brought by the expansion of the demand for
motor vehicles in a time of China’s economic recovery, to
stimulate the trade and clear the stocks of motor vehicles.
The Group is striving to complete the process of obtaining
EE Certificate for China 6 Standard motor vehicles. As at
31 December 2023, the Group obtained EE Certificate for
six types of China 6 Standard imported motor vehicles,
and the rest are still undergoing the certification process.
With the aim of pursuing a sustainable business model,
the Group will adjust and formulate appropriate business
strategies, and invest in and develop other businesses
to achieve the diversification of the Group’s business. To
mitigate risks, the Group will also outsource procurement
from third party agents and invest in and develop other
business to achieve the diversification of the Group’s
business.

Besides, the Stock Exchange has required listed
companies to enhance climate-related disclosures in their
ESG reports, which may result in increased compliance
costs. Failure to meet the climate change compliance
requirements may expose the Group to risks of claims
and lawsuits. Corporate reputation may also decline.
The Group will regularly monitor existing and emerging
climate-related trends, policies and regulations to avoid
reputational risks due to delayed response. In addition, in
order to reduce the Group’s environmental impact and to
comply with the requirements of the Stock Exchange, the
Group has set targets to reduce energy consumption and
GHG emissions. The Group will continue to assess the
effectiveness of the Group’s actions to address climate
change and enhance its resilience against climate-related
issues.
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Employment

The Group believes that human resources are the Group’s
most valuable asset and the core of its competitive
advantage, as well as the foundation for corporate
sustainable development. Therefore, we are dedicated
to improving our employment system in order to attract,
cultivate and retain talents. Besides, the Group adheres
to the people-oriented management approach and
has developed an Employee Manual to standardise
the employment policies and codes to ensure that
our employees clearly understand their rights and
responsibilities, and to respect and protect the legitimate
rights and interests of every employee. By creating a
harmonious and warm working atmosphere, the Group
makes every employee feel cared for and valued by the
Group.

The Group has complied with all laws and regulations
related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare, including but not limited to the
“Employment Ordinance” of Hong Kong, the “Labour
Law of the People’s Republic of China” and the “Labour
Contract Law of the People’s Republic of China” and
other existing laws and regulations. During the Reporting
Period, the Group was not aware of any incident of
non-compliance with laws and regulations relating to
employment that had a significant impact on the Group.
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As at 31 December 20283, the Group had 46 full-time
employees (as at 31 December 2022: 50 full-time
employees) and the composition is shown below:
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HE_Z_—H£+_"_A=+—
H - AEEEaH46%2HES
(BE-_BE-__F+-"B=+—
H: 5028 EE)  EE2W
T

Number of employees Percentage
BEAH BoL
2023 2022 2023 2022

Indicator it —E-=f T4 ZBI=HF T
By gender LU B

Male B 23 25 50.00% 50.00%

Female 7 23 25 50.00% 50.00%
By age group MEER AR B2

<31 <31 6 7 13.00% 14.00%

31-39 31-39 11 9 24.00% 18.00%

40-49 40-49 10 12 22.00% 24.00%

50-59 50-59 8 10 17.00% 20.00%

>59 >59 11 12 24.00% 24.00%
By geographical location D& &

Chongging HE 10 10 22.00% 20.00%

Shenzhen ]| 20 22 43.00% 44.00%

Hong Kong &8 16 18 35.00% 36.00%
By employee category PYE=EVE )

Administrative staff THEEBAE 19 19 41.00% 38.00%

Other staff HMET 27 31 59.00% 62.00%

Recruitment, Promotion, Remuneration and Dismissal

We value talents and regard them as our most valuable
and core assets, uphold the principle of fairness,
impartiality and openness employment in recruiting
talents to provide sufficient talent reserves for the Group’s
various businesses and strengthen the competitiveness
of our business. After employees’ appraisal, the Group
determines employees’ salaries, benefits and promotion
opportunities based upon their job nature, experience,
work performance, results and market condition. The
Group guarantees fair treatment of employees and
prevents discrimination based on gender, race, religion,
age, marital and family status, disability or any other
grounds.
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In accordance with related laws and regulations,
we clearly stated the remuneration packages of our
employees in our Employee Manual. Apart from basic
salary, the Group also offers employees with their benefits
and rights, which include but not limited to Mandatory
Provident Fund, social insurance, directors and officer’s
liability insurance and medical benefits, statutory and
additional annual leave, sick leave, parental leave,
allowance and severance pay. For employees in the PRC,
the Group pays “Five Social Insurance and One Housing
Fund” in accordance with the law, including endowment
insurance, medical insurance, unemployment insurance,
employment injury insurance, maternity insurance and
housing provident fund to protect employees’ social
insurance entitlements. In addition, the Group complies
with the relevant employment ordinance and guidance.
If employees need to be dismissed, we will follow the
procedures and provide reasonable compensation to
the dismissed employees. The relevant provisions on
termination of the employment relationship have been set
out in the employment contract of every staff.

During the Reporting Period, the employee turnover
rate® of the Group was approximately 6.25% (2022:
approximately 6.06%) and the composition is shown as
follows:
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Employee turnover rate®

BS Rk
2023 2022

Indicator it —E-=F —=Z-Z
By gender DU BIE

Male B 4.17% 7.84%

Female pegis 8.33% 4.17%
By age group Ve FENE I bs)

<31 <31 - 15.38%

31-39 31-39 - -

40-49 40-49 9.09% -

50-59 50-59 - -

>59 >59 16.67% 16.67%
By geographical location D& )5

Chongging 5E - 11.11%

Shenzhen I 9.52% 4.44%

Hong Kong &% 5.88% 5.56%
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Notes:

5. The overall employee turnover rate is calculated by dividing the
total number of employees leaving employment during the year by
the average number of employees at the beginning and the end of
the year, then multiply by 100%.

6. The employee turnover rate for each category is calculated by
dividing the number of employees leaving employment in the
specified category during the year by the average number of
employees in the specified category at the beginning and end of
the year, then multiply by 100%.

Equal Opportunity, Diversity and Anti-discrimination

The Group understands the value of a diverse and
professional team of talents. We are dedicated to
developing and maintaining an inclusive and cooperate
workplace culture where all staff can thrive. The Group is
devoted to providing equal opportunity for all employees
and prevent any discrimination, physical or verbal
harassment in the workplace based on gender, race,
religion, age, marital and family status, disability or any
other grounds. To ensure a fair and equal protection for
all employees, the Group has zero-tolerate to any form of
workplace sexual harassment or bullying.

Communication Channel

The Group attaches importance to employees’
communication. Therefore, we have established various
communication channels to encourage employees
to express their views and facilitate communication
between management and employees. We also improve
business operation and management policies to
enhance operational efficiency. Also, we organise group
activities regularly such as staff dinner to strengthen
communication among employees and increase their
sense of belongings towards the Group.
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B2. Health and Safety

The Group’s operation does not involve any high-risk
activities. The Group highly values employees’ health and
safety and is devoted to protecting our employees’ safety
by providing a safe workplace. According to industry
practices and regulations, we formulate work safety
guidelines to ensure the cleanliness and tidiness of the
workplace, eliminate any potential health and safety risks,
and strictly implement relevant measures.

We strictly comply with the “Labour law of the People’s
Republic of China”, the “Law of the People’s Republic of
China on the Prevention and Treatment of Occupational
Diseases”, “Fire Control Law of the People’s Republic
of China” of the PRC, and the “Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance” of Hong Kong and other relevant
laws and regulations. In the past three years (including
the Reporting Period), there was no significant incident
of safety and work-related fatalities, and nor did it pay
any claims or compensation to its employees for these
reasons. During the Reporting Period, there was (i) no lost
working days due to work-related injuries were recorded
(2022: Nil); (i) the work-related fatality rate was 0%; and
(iii) the Group was not aware of any non-compliance
with health and safety laws and regulations that had a
significant impact on the Group relating to providing a
safe working environment and protecting employees from
occupational hazards.

Improving Safety Awareness

The Group complies with related working safety
guidelines and constantly educates and reminds
employees of the importance of work health and safety.
The Group provides employees with relevant information
on crime prevention and emergency response through
training, promotions, drills and regular safety inspections.
We also coordinate with other organisations and property
management company of the office building, and
participate in regular fire drills to raise employees’ safety
and fire prevention awareness. In addition, our Employee
Manual clearly states the working safety guidelines
which are in accordance with the law and regulations.
If there are any violations of the guidelines, we will take
appropriate disciplinary actions or legal proceedings
against the staff to raise employees’ health and safety
awareness during work.
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Physical and Mental Health

We care for our employees, especially for their mental
health. We encourage our employees to achieve work-life
balance and promote team cohesion, relieve stress and
create a harmonious working environment through social
activities. Meanwhile, we provide our employees with
information about health and safety, aiming to improve
their health consciousness.

Considering the end of the COVID-19 pandemic in
20283, the group has decided to loosen the existing
epidemic prevention and control measures. However, we
will continue to closely monitor the development of the
pandemic and adhere to health and safety guidelines.
As necessary, we will make appropriate adjustments
to ensure the health and safety of our employees and
customers.

Development and Training

The Group believes that employees can facilitate
the Group’s sustainable development and maintain
the Group’s core value and competitiveness. Hence,
the Group is committed to foster employees’ growth
and development, and has specified requirements
for continuous training in its Operations Manual. We
cater to the needs of employees at all levels through
diversified training models, including induction and
management training, in order to improve the quality
of service provided by employees. In addition, we offer
employees comprehensive and various on-the-job
training programmes and professional training to improve
their quality, qualifications and skills and stimulate their
potential. We also encourage our staff to discuss with
management and supervisors on their promotion and
career objective, and to attend business-related training.
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Training Management

The Group’s management is responsible to draw up
the training program annually and keep training records
in order to regulate training management and arrange
related professional training programs. The management
also conducts a regular review of the effectiveness of
different training programs to improve the efficiency
and quality of the Group’s training system and improve
employees’ working performances and efficiency.
The Group also provides subsidies and benefits to
encourage employees to participate in some external
training programs. In accordance with the annual training
program, the Group evaluates and monitors its training
programs and arrange suitable training courses for
different employees to help them reach their full potential.

Training Programmes

The Group arranges professional training and
development programs, including expertise of financial
service and information technology, training on customer
service and product knowledge, regulatory seminars
and guidance, professional training on anti-corruption
and other relevant training programmes. We also highly
encourage the Directors and senior management to
participate in the training on the Listing Rules on the
GEM of the Stock Exchange and corporate governance in
order to continuously enhance the Group’s internal control
and corporate governance level. We also encourage
accounting and secretarial staff to update their relevant
professional knowledge regularly.
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During the Reporting Period, the percentage of
employees trained’” of the Group was approximately

52.2

% (2022: approximately 56.00%), and the

average training hours completed per employee® was
approximately 3.59 hours (2022: approximately 3.54
hours). The breakdown for employees trained and the
average training hours by gender and employee category

Nt

HHE AEENZIIEES

B8 A522% (2=
#56.00%) » B EETMZ I
B R HEN A3 59N (ZF
T T 9354/ 0FF) o MR R
BEFENEDNZIIEERMK
FHEZH)RFHEBEANT

is as follows:
Breakdown for Average
employees trained® training hours'®
i {E S EA4m° FYZaNEFE
2023 2022 2023 2022
Indicator bit —E=f —_Z__4F ZBI=HF —_T__
By gender LU R &
Male S 41.67% 42.86% 3.57 3.44
Female pegics 58.33% 57.14% 3.61 3.64
By employee category MiEB%ERI 25
Administrative staff THEIEAR 41.67% 35.71% 3.84 4.42
Other staff HMWET 58.33% 64.29% 3.41 3.00
Notes: et .
7. The overall percentage of employees trained is calculated by 7. HWIZINRBREBDLLRRERNESZI

10.
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dividing the total number of employees who took part in training
during the year by the total number of employees at the end of the
year, then multiply by 100%.

The average training hours completed per employee is calculated
by dividing the total number of training hours during the year by the
total number of employees at the end of the year.

The breakdown for employees trained by category is calculated
by dividing the number of employees in the specified category
who took part in training during the year by the total number of
employees who took part in training during the year, then multiply
by 100%.

The average training hours by category is calculated by dividing the
number of training hours for employees in the specified category
during the year by the number of employees in the specified
category at the end of year.
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Labour Standards

Prevention of Child and Forced Labour

The Group strictly complies with the “Employment
Ordinance” of Hong Kong, as well as the “Regulation
on Labour Security Supervision”, the “Labour Law of
the People’s Republic of China” and “Labour Contract
Law of the People’s Republic of China” of the PRC, and
has formulated internal guidelines and labour policies
with reference to international labour standards. During
the Reporting Period, the Group did not identify any
significant non-compliance of laws and regulations related
to prevention of child and forced labour, and there were
no incidents of discrimination involving race, religion, age,
disability, etc.

The Group requires all new employees to provide true and
accurate personal identification information. All personal
information, including identity card and bank accounts,
will be strictly scrutinised by our recruiters. The Group has
established a refined recruitment process for checking
candidates’ background and formal reporting procedures
to handle any exceptional cases. The Group also
conducts self-audits and inspections on a regular basis to
prevent child labour and forced labour.

In addition, the Group’s employees work overtime on
a voluntary basis to avoid any violation of the labour
standards and protect employee’s legal rights and
interests. The Group also prohibits any punitive measures,
management practices and behaviours involving
verbal abuse, physical punishment, oppression, sexual
harassment (including inappropriate languages, postures
and physical contact), etc. against its employees for any
reason. The Group also avoids engaging suppliers with
known records of using child labour and forced labour in
their operations.

The recruitment and human resources procedures are
closely monitored under the Group’s human resources
management scheme to prevent any employment of
child labour, forced labour, or any discrimination by
race, religion, age or disability. The Group will conduct
investigations, punishment or dismissal of relevant
employees immediately when any non-compliance is
being discovered. If necessary, the Group will further
improve the labour mechanism against illegal behaviours.

—EBECZFER
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“HEREGBRS

Supply Chain Management B5. {HfESEEIE
As the Group is principally engaged in finance-related HRAEE TS cMERER
businesses, it purchased stationery, paper, computers HEEEEEANRSHEEIRE
and other office stationery but did not enter any long- XE R -BEERAENEA
term or bulk purchase agreements with any suppliers e BREHEIAEERETE
during the Reporting Period. It did not engage major A AERBEN - HEEER
suppliers for the provision of products, raw materials and FTEHERUIREER BEME
services, nor did it take part in any negotiation between HRF MR EERESEPER
its corporate or institutional clients and their suppliers. MEZFHEMHERNGE &
Two of the Group’s subsidiaries purchased motherboards, EEETMRMNBABSNENRHE
modules, display modules, batteries, cases and vehicles HPER IS ARk AR B AR
from its suppliers. B IBRRESFEM
During the Reporting Period, the Group has engaged a RBREHE AEBREF+ AR
total of 18 suppliers (2022: 13 suppliers). The number of HEHCEZIZF  +=K) o
suppliers by geographic region is as follows. HESONEHREBRHEWT !
Number of suppliers
HEEHE
2023 2022

Indicator it —E-= e
By geographical location L ) o

The PRC R E P 3t 12 7

Hong Kong &% 5 5

Overseas =2 1 1
To manage potential environmental and social risks in its AEEHEEETBENIREMMT
supply chain, the Group has established a stringent and BRK AEBEREL T EETMR
standardised procurement system and supplier selection R ERER RHEREER
process, and has implemented relevant practices relating BowEmkREHEERNMBHE
to engaging suppliers to all suppliers within the reporting TR AR EmIES -
scope.
Procurement Mechanism EREG 1

We promote fair and open competition and aim to
develop long-term relationships based on mutual trust,
and the Group’s subsidiaries have strictly complied with
the “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
and other related laws and regulations during the
procurement. Our suppliers are required to work in a
responsible manner, and comply all relevant regulations,
international treaties and contractual responsibilities.

BPREATFARBEF 8EE
REMREENARZ TERRH
BF MAEEETHEARE
FEAETEE2R(PEAR
HNEBERRRE) EHEERE -
RPN HERRESEMITS
BTFRBZEA BRANKRER
s
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The Group has a set of control procedures and codes
of conduct for the procurement process to monitor the
procurement activities of relevant personnel and strictly
prohibit any practices that are against business ethics.
We closely communicate with our subsidiaries and require
them to carefully manage the relationship with suppliers
and business partners in avoidance of transfer of interests
or exploitation of suppliers.

The Group expects suppliers to meet its standards in
terms of environment, society, corporate governance,
business ethics, etc. The Group will evaluate the
environmental and social risks of suppliers’ operation
and business before entering any long-term business
relationship with potential suppliers, to ensure suppliers’
compliance with trade laws, relevant environmental and
social regulations as well as the other requirements, and
to examine the supplier's awareness in each of these
areas. The Group is concerned about the integrity of
suppliers and partners and will only select those with a
good business track record without any material non-
compliance or unethical behaviours.

Additionally, the Group endeavours to support local
economies and prioritises the procurement from local and
regional suppliers to lower the carbon footprint during
transportation. The Group also gives priority to suppliers
that use environmentally preferable products and
services in the selection process, and strives to minimise
potential environmental and social risks in the supply
chain. The Group will continue to review its supply chain
periodically with regard to the suppliers’ performance and
environmental and social standards. Any material violation
of laws and regulations may lead to the termination of
supplier contracts.
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Product Responsibility

The Group’s products and services include securities and
futures contracts trading service, and trading of motor
vehicles, provision of agency services and accessories
sourcing. As high-quality products and services can help
build a strong corporate reputation, we are dedicated to
maintaining high-level service and product quality through
internal control. We maintain on-going communication
with our customers to ensure that we understand
and meet their demands and expectation, as well as
understand their level of satisfaction to improve our
service quality.

We strictly comply with all relevant laws and regulations,
including but not limited to “Law of the People’s Republic
of China on the Protection of Consumer Rights and

Interests”, “Advertisement Law of the People’s Republic
of China”, “Measures for the Administration of Internet
Advertising”, “Product Quality Law of the People’s

Republic of China” of the PRC, as well as the “Trade
Descriptions Ordinance” of Hong Kong on customers
protection. During the Reporting Period, the Group was
not aware of any material non-compliance with any laws
and regulations in relation to product and service quality,
and no material complaints were received in relation to
products and services (2022: Nil). Customer satisfaction
has reached our expected level. Due to the nature of the
Group’s business, no recall of products due to health and
safety reasons is required, and disclosures about product
recall procedures are not applicable.

Customer Communication

The Group strives to provide our customers with
competitive products and services with standardised
service quality, humanised service process and regulated
service management. We stress the importance of clients’
needs and collect their opinions through our customer
manager, and regards them as the foundation for the
continuous improvement of our business. Customers can
submit their complaints via email, phone or in person.
The process is confidential to protect all parties’ interest
and ensure fairness and proper documentation of the
process.
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The Group has formulated Client Complaint Policies and
Procedures in its Operations Manual to allow relevant
departments to carry out a detailed investigation, actively
monitor handling process, coordinate and communicate
with all involved parties, and properly respond to
complaints. We strive to understand the truth and root
causes of complaints made by our customers and identify
responsible parties and areas for improvement in order to
enhance the Group’s service quality, as well as to retain
customers by earning their loyalty towards the Group’s
service and to facilitate the Group’s future development.

Customer Privacy Protection

Due to its business nature, the Group handles a large
amount of customer personal or corporate information.
The Group attaches high importance to safeguarding
clients’ interests and privacy and strives to maintain and
protect personal data. Through adopting a high standard
of security and confidentiality towards customer privacy
protection, we comply with regulatory requirements
regarding data privacy. We have formulated relevant
guidelines and handbook to regulate employees’ handling
of personal data of clients. We also arrange training
from time to time to raise the employees’ awareness
of privacy protection. According to our data protection
policy, we have to comply with the Private Policy
Statement and notify our customers the general policies
and practices of personal information collection, storage
and utilisation. The Group maintains and reviews all
customer communication channels to obtain feedback,
handle complaints in a timely manner so as to conduct
inspections, monitor and improve customer service
system.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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Intellectual Property Rights

Despite intellectual property rights are not considered a
material aspect to the Group due to the Group’s business
nature, the Group has established relevant policies to
govern the information technology management within
the Group. The IT Department is in charge of securing
proper licenses for software, hardware and information
the Group uses in its business operation. Duplication or
downloading of information, software, and images from
the internet must be approved by relevant department.
Furthermore, the Group closely monitors and prevents
any infringement behaviour such as counterfeit
trademarks in the market. The Group will continue to
monitor to ensure that its intellectual property rights are
not being infringed upon.

Advertising and Labelling

Due to its business nature, the Group conducts limited
advertising campaigns and therefore does not involve any
significant advertising-related risks. Nevertheless, in terms
of the advertisement of products and services, we strictly
regulate and monitor products and services promotion
to ensure that they comply with advertising and
labelling related laws and regulations. Such marketing
and promotion must accurately reflect the quality and
performance of the Group’s products and services in
order to let clients to “get what they see”.

Anti-corruption

The Group believes that a clean corporate culture is the
key to our continued success. Therefore, we stress on
anti-corruption efforts and policy formulation, and strictly
prohibit any corruption activities. The Group strictly
complies with “Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China”, “Bidding Law of the People’s Republic of China”
of the PRC and the “Prevention of Bribery Ordinance”
of Hong Kong. During the Reporting Period, the Group
did not identify any material non-compliance with the
relevant laws and regulations of bribery, extortion, fraud
and money laundering nor any concluded legal cases
regarding corrupt practices (2022: Nil).
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The Board adopts “zero-tolerance” attitude towards
corruption and fraud while such standard has been
outlined in our Operations Manual and Employee Manual.
The Group strictly complies with relevant laws and morale
standards of corruption and proactively maintains a good
corporate governance and risk control to protect the
interests of stakeholders and develop corporate culture
with integrity, openness and transparency.

Prevention of Money Laundering

To maintain the Group’s integrity and credibility, we
forbid any activities related to money laundering and
terrorist. The Finance Department is responsible for the
evaluation of the risk of money laundering in our business
operation annually, handle any suspicious cases of money
laundering, review all applicable policies and guidelines
published by the Hong Kong Monetary Authority and
other financial regulators on a regular basis and evaluate
the effectiveness on the enforcement of regulations in the
Group’s business operation.

The Group arranges anti-corruption related training for
its directors and employees at least once a year. During
the Reporting Period, 7 directors and 12 employees
have attended a total of approximately 10.5 hours
(2022: 6 hours) and 40 hours (2022: 22.5 hours) of anti-
corruption training seminars, respectively. Such training
aims to develop their anti-corruption awareness and good
professional conduct and to comply with the regulations
in Hong Kong and the PRC.

Whistleblowing Mechanism

The Group educates all employees on anti-corruption
awareness and encourages them to report any corruption
or fraud activities. We promptly conduct inspections
and take necessary measures while protecting the
identity of the whistle-blower to prevent any conflict of
interest or behaviours that will bring harm to the Group
and the stakeholders. The Group regularly monitors the
effectiveness of its whistleblowing mechanism.
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Community Investment

The Group is devoted to becoming a responsible
corporate citizen and offering appropriate resources to
the needy in the community. We believe that the Group
and our employees can build positive values through
charitable activities and become socially-responsible
citizens.

We encourage and support our staff to participate in
voluntary activities in their spare time and formulate
relevant internal guidelines to arrange environmental
and social service activities for the Group’s employees.
Through participating in those community activities,
we hope that our employees can contribute to the
communities, thereby enhancing the employees’ sense of
caring while developing a sense of social responsibility.

We donate to different organisations and engage in
social activities to fulfil our social responsibility as a
corporate citizen and develop a better public image.
During the Reporting Period, the Group has donated
a total of HK$3,000 to support the local economy and
provide social welfare to under privileged groups in Hong
Kong and the PRC. The Group seeks to cooperate with
different charitable organisations, and at the same time
be aware of the difficulties and needs of society and
vulnerable groups, aiming to give back to society and
promote social harmony.
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STOCK EXCHANGE

Mandatory Disclosure Requirements

SR B R E

Section/Declaration

S 6 &

Governance Structure
BIR%RE

Reporting Principles

FEHR R A
Reporting Boundary

PR & E

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

ESG GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
ESGEANRE

ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT - Reporting Framework
ARG - EREARE - REER

ABOUT THE ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE

REPORT - Reporting Scope
ANRE - HEREARSE —REHE

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
EBE--—REER

A 2 48 IS 1R i it -0 L]

Aspect A1: Emissions

BEA1 : 5

General Disclosure Information on: Emissions

—RIREE

ERESEEERBRAF |

(@)  the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,

discharges into water and land, and generation of

hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
BRERMOBERBHR Rk MO -AE HHEY
REZEEYVNELSH

(@ BR; &

(b) WFHTAEEALBHOEMEEREF
Hho
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
EBmEm-—fRikER

RASR AR RISIR Fis it =38 1

KPI'A1.1 The types of emissions and respective emissions Emissions — Exhaust Gas

B SRR RS 1RAT A

KPI' A1.2

BB AEIEIRAL.2

KPI' A1.3

RE SR 4B WS 1ZEA1.3

KPI A1.4

RE SR 4B WIS IZEAT .4

KPI A1.5

R SR AB RS 1RA1.5

KPI A1.6

RE SR 45 SIS 12A1.6

84

data.

PR IR LR R AR R HE I B o

Direct (Scope 1) and energy indirect (Scope 2)
greenhouse gas emissions (in tonnes) and, where
appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of production
volume, per facility).

B (FEN) REREEZE EE2) BEERBIHRE (X
MAETE) &k (WER) BE WUSESE BERK
5TE) o

Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and,
where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FTEXEEEEYEE QUIESE) X ER) BE
N BESEM BERKMTH)

Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes)
and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of
production volume, per facility).
FTECREEEYEE QUIESE) X ER) BE
N BESEM BERKMTH)

Description of emission target(s) set and steps taken
to achieve them.

BT IR E B R A ED B LB RATRE
LB

Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous
wastes are handled, and a description of reduction
target(s) set and steps taken to achieve them.
BRI EREEEEYN G L RIEAMFAEI LN
BEE B R R ERE L BRI EEI & B o

Emissions

PR — B REF I

Emissions — GHG Emissions

HY— B ERETR

Not applicable — explained

NER-BRE

Emissions — Waste Management

B - BEEYEIE

Environmental Targets, Emissions—
Exhaust Gas Emissions, GHG
Emissions

RIEEE IR — B R
ERASHEN

Environmental Targets, Emissions —
Waste Management

RIEER Y -BEEYEE
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Description

it

BRI LG REBHRS

Section/Declaration

=10 1]

Aspect A2: Use of Resources

BHEA2 : EiEER

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI' A2.1

B SR AR RS 1RA2. 1

KPI A2.2

RSB AR NS IRA2.2

KPI A2.3

B AE R IEIRA2.3

KPI A2.4

R A IEIRA2.4

KPI A2.5

B A IEIRA2.5

ERESEEERBRAF |

Policies on the efficient use of resources, including
energy, water and other raw materials.

BERFERAER (BFER KREMEREMR) BB

Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type
(e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in ’000s) and
intensity (e.g. per unit of production volume, per

facility).

RENBSMERKR NEEER WS "a0h) 2
#E UTETRRE REE WUSES

BERMEAE) °

Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per unit

of production volume, per facility).

MEKERTE MNUSEEE( BERMFH) -

Description of energy use efficiency target(s) set and

steps taken to achieve them.

HIFrE] IR AEREANME B R R AETBLERR

FREREXBY D BR o

Description of whether there is any issue in sourcing
water that is fit for purpose, water efficiency target(s)

set and steps taken to achieve them.

Use of Resources
BREH
Use of Resources — Energy

Management

BEREA-EREE

Not applicable — explained

NER-C#EE

Environmental Targets, Use of
Resources — Energy Management
REER -BREA-—EREIE

Environmental Targets, Use of
Resources — Water Management

B SREGER AR LR B ERBE URFAETINA REER BEREA -—KRERE

KA B R R B EERE L B RPTERERI P B

Total packaging material used for finished products (in Not applicable — explained

tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to per unit

produced.

N mPTAEEMNNEE LIESE) k(MER) & TER-EFRE

FEBAGE-

—EBECZFER
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RIE LB K

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPlIs
EBE-—MRiEER

FA B AR RIS 1R

EAHRS

Description

it

Section/Declaration

=10 1]

Aspect A3: The Environment and Natural Resources

EBEAS : IRIERRAER

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI A3.1

RE 3 48 SIS 1ZA3. 1

Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant impacts
on the environment and natural resources.
BEZETAHBRERRAEREREATZENEE -

Description of the significant impacts of activities
on the environment and natural resources and the
actions taken to manage them.
WM AMHIRRERRABERNE
BNEEERTENITE

TERER

Aspect A4: Climate Change

BEA4 : RIREME

General Disclosure

— IR EE

KPI A4 .1

B SR AR RS 1RA4L.1

Policies on identification and mitigation of significant
climate-related issues which have impacted, and
those which may impact, the issuer.

B REHERRIEERBITAELELENEKR
RIZERAEERIBER

Description of the significant climate-related issues
which have impacted, and those which may impact,
the issuer, and the actions taken to manage them.
BB E RO EEHBETAEEXLENERNRIEN
BT REHTE-

The Environment and Natural
Resources
RIBERRABR

The Environment and Natural
Resources — Raising Environmental

Awareness, Indoor Air Quality
RIERAAER-EARREH
ERERER

Climate Change

SR

Climate Change — Physical Risks,

Transition Risks

RiEZC-ERRR SERER
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPlIs

B —fRiEER
R SRR R IE 1R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI LG REBHRS

Description Section/Declaration
bi::pan - i L]

Aspect B1: Employment

BmEB1 : (Ef#

General Disclosure

— AR ER

KPI B1.1

B B AR 5 1RB1 .1

KPI B1.2

RISRAENIEIRB1.2

ERESEEERBRAF |

Information on: Employment

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to compensation and dismissal, recruitment

and promotion, working hours, rest periods, equal
opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination, and other
benefits and welfare.

BRHFMNERE BERSH TERE - -BE-FE EE
BWE Lol - RIERUEREMFEREMND :

@ BE;k&
b) ETHETABEAXREZNMEREERRIN
B o
Total workforce by gender, employment type Employment

(for example, full- or part-time), age group and
geographical region.

BRI BEESL 2B ERR  FRANKTE EE
BNHEBHEE -

Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and Employment — Recruitment,
geographical region. Promotion, Remuneration and
Dismissal
Eth s ERAN R EB DR EERKLEER EBRE—1BE S HNxEE
ZEI=FER
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

B —fRiEER
R SRR R IE 1R

Description Section/Declaration
bi::pan - i L]

Aspect B2: Health and Safety

BmEB2: BERER

General Disclosure

— IR EE

KPI B2.1
R S AR 21518 B2.1
KPI B2.2

RS AN 15 1RB2.2

KPI B2.3

FISRAE W F518B2.3

88

Information on: Health and Safety
(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to providing a safe working environment and

protecting employees from occupational hazards.
ERRHZE2TFRERRERESEFRHELERE REHEZE
1

@ BR; &

(b) BFHEFTABEALENEMERREH
Hi o

Number and rate of work-related fatalities occurred  Health and Safety
in each of the past three years including the reporting

year.
BE=ZF (BREERFE) SFRITHNA#BRLE ®BEEZS

Ko

Lost days due to work injury. Health and Safety
RIEELATEHSK- BEEL D

Description of occupational health and safety Health and Safety — Improving
measures adopted, and how they are implemented Safety Awareness, Physical and
and monitored. Mental Health

HMPTER NN E R R E L 2 URERNITR BREZ2—REAZ2EHA SO
BEm %o R
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Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

B —fRiEER
R SRR R IE 1R

ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI LG REBHRS

Description

it

Section/Declaration

=10 1]

Aspect B3: Development and Training

EBEBS3 : HERIE

General Disclosure

— IR EE

KPI B3.1

B SR 4B 5 1RB3. 1

KPI B3.2

RIS AARNIE1EB3.2

ERESEEERBRAF |

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description of
training activities.
BRARAEES BT LEB SRV # k5 SERVBUR o 4
gty ENE E o

The percentage of employees trained by gender and

employee category (e.g. senior management, middle

management).

ZERKREESR WEREBEE -PREEE) 2D
NZIlEEB DL -

The average training hours completed per employee
by gender and employee category.
ZERKREESERB D BLEERT
8o

R AIHYF 6

—EBECZFER

Development and Training

BRI

Development and Training —
Training Programmes

BRI - HIERE

Development and Training —

Training Programmes

R KM IEN—EIIRE
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BRI LG REBGHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs Description

B —fRiEER
R SRR R IE 1R it

Section/Declaration

=10 1]

Aspect B4: Labour Standards
BEB4 : & T#A|
General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to preventing child and forced labour.

— iR EE BREABLEETHAEGIE T !
(@ HBE; X
(o) BFHETABERTLENMERERERAN
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment
practices to avoid child and forced labour.
RA B2 AE N5 1EB4.1 s R B A E A R E T Rl T o
KPI B4.2 Description of steps taken to eliminate such practices
when discovered.
R R E N IE1RB4.2 a7 B IRERE R R B RIS NPT IR E A B o

Labour Standards

Labour Standards — Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
TR 1EE T Koahlss T

Labour Standards — Prevention of
Child and Forced Labour
TR —[HIEE T Koah|ss T
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ENVIRONMENTAL, SoclAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
BRI LG REBHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
EBmEm-—fRikER
RASR AR RISIR Fis it =38 1

Aspect B5: Supply Chain Management
[EMEBS5 : {HFEHEIE

General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social risks  Supply Chain Management
of the supply chain.

— AR B EEMEEENRE TS RMEBESR - HEREIE

KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region. Supply Chain Management

B R 4B W15 12B5. 1 EtEE DN HEEmEE - HEEEE

KPI B5.2 Description of practices relating to engaging Supply Chain Management —

suppliers, number of suppliers where the practices Procurement Mechanism
are being implemented, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

BB M I51EB5.2 #Hil A R AEEERIEN MERTERAEG MM HEREIE —REKT
FERIEE ~ UK HITREER G %o

KPI B5.3 Description of practices used to identify Supply Chain Management —
environmental and social risks along the supply chain, Procurement Mechanism
and how they are implemented and monitored.

BB M I512B5.3 Hil A R AR S EIREMNIRE R AR HEREIEREET
TBH LUk BRI HITREER G %

KPI B5.4 Description of practices used to promote Supply Chain Management —
environmentally preferable products and services Procurement Mechanism
when selecting suppliers, and how they are
implemented and monitored.

R BN I51EB5.4 HMEREREANREELARRERKRBNIE (HEERSE —REKS
B> U REANITRERS A

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

1



ENVIRONMENTAL, SocIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

BRI LG REBGHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General
Disclosures and KPIs Description

B —fRiEER
R SRR R IE 1R it

Section/Declaration

=10 1]

Aspect B6: Product Responsibility
BHEB6 : EREIE
General Disclosure Information on:

(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling

and privacy matters relating to products and services

provided and methods of redress.
— AR EE EEMRHERMBRFNREELE B B8
EEEURERGERN

(@ HWE; K&
b) BETFTHBECTABEAXENEREERRIN

KPI B6.1 Percentage of total products sold or shipped subject
to recalls for safety and health reasons.

R R AE 15 12B6. 1 BESBEXERRHMPE 2 HERERMEARL
WEI B DL

KPI B6.2 Number of products and service related complaints
received and how they are dealt with.

BB M I518B6.2 BEMNERKRRBNEFEEUKREE 5%

KPI B6.3 Description of practices relating to observing and
protecting intellectual property rights.

R AN 1512B6.3 i B A 5 R AR PR H 5 EE M R RO IE B o

KPI B6.4 Description of quality assurance process and recall
procedures.

RSB M I512B6.4 B 2T iBRE K EmEINRER -

KPI B6.5 Description of consumer data protection and
privacy policies, and how they are implemented and
monitored.

BB M I512B6.5 i H B & B RHRIE R A REER > MR EEARITRE
Rk

Product Responsibility

Not applicable — explained

NER-C#EE

Product Responsibility
EmEE

Product Responsibility —Intellectual
Property Rights
EmEE M ER

Not applicable — explained
NER—-BEE

Product Responsibility — Customer
Communication, Customer Privacy
Protection

Emaf-FFRER FEREMLR

-
&
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BRI LG REBHRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs Description Section/Declaration
EBmEm-—fRikER
RASR AR RISIR Fis it =38 1

Aspect B7: Anti-corruption
EmEB7: RES

General Disclosure Information on: Anti-corruption
(@) the policies; and

(b)  compliance with relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the issuer

relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.

—RRi R BRI LEBEEE - #13  REE R B EER ¢ REE
(a) BE; &

(b) WFHETABEALENIEMERRAM

KPI B7.1 Number of concluded legal cases regarding corrupt  Anti-corruption
practices brought against the issuer or its employees
during the reporting period and the outcomes of the
cases.

A SR AE W HE1RBT 1 RERARHETAIEEERELEEENES RES
TR H BB R ER

KPI B7.2 Description of preventive measures and whistle- Anti-corruption — Whistleblowing
blowing procedures, and how they are implemented Mechanism
and monitored.

RSB MIEIEBT.2 WS Em R BRRER > UREBAITRERS RES-B|HRET
& o

KPI B7.3 Description of anti-corruption training provided to Anti-corruption — Prevention of
directors and staff. Money Laundering

R EMI51EBT.3 HimEERETRHENRESIE R&ES—BA L5

EFLSEEMARAR | ZBE-=E5H o3



94

>

ENVIRONMENTAL, SociAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT
RIE  HEREABRS

Subject Areas,
Aspects, General

Disclosures and KPIs

B —fRiEER
R SRR R IE 1R

Description

it

Section/Declaration

=10 1]

Aspect B8: Community Investment

[EmBS : HHERE

General Disclosure

—RIREE

KPI B8.1

B B 4R 515881

KPI B8.2

RISEAERNIE1RB8.2

Policies on community engagement to understand
the needs of the communities where the issuer
operates and to ensure its activities take into
consideration the communities’ interests.
BRAMtER2HERTHREEMTHREZMERA
(LT RAEMN M-

Focus areas of contribution (e.g. education,
environmental concerns, labour needs, health,
culture, sport).

EIEREE WHE REEE - HFLIEREE-
XIE~EBA) o

Resources contributed (e.g. money or time) to the
focus area.

EEIHBABAER WMEHHERD) -
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

CCTH CPA LIMITED
RIEXEEAERAE

0,

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
SINOFORTUNE FINANCIAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
105 to 235, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2023, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated
statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including material accounting policy information
and other explanatory information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2023, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

I % B ET RS

REREEEHARARNZERR
RHESHEZMA L ZERAE)

ER
EEEBERZE1056HE2355EMEAMNERS
EERER2E (TERF)) REKBAF
(EnTE&EH) 2RV BRE &
FHRaMBREREER_E-_=F+_"A8
=+ —BEZEEMBRARE KBEZA
FFEEZHEGRmhEMEAWARE R
EREBEFRRKRGEREMNER  URR
EUMBRENNGE  SEEARGHHREH
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ERA RN BRREBES BT
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
VAR T

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Revenue recognition

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
B HIE

PREFHE

RBEESNEXHE FAREFFTER/ES
BZRARBNGESMBRETREENS
H-ZEFREEREESFERERGOMBR
KREEERFETRE MESFTEMZ
SEREFERER-

FR2RGREGMBRRMEES

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

m&E
= T

B MAEIRMBENSRE

Revenue recognition is identified as a key audit matter
because of its financial significance to the consolidated
financial statements and is one of key performance
indicators of the Group. Accordingly, there may be
risks of material misstatements related to revenue
recognition.
NaMIEREMBERERELNEAYBELE B
#» BEEENFARRREEz — HEHEKRA—IERHE
RESTBE-FI IEFTAEMKEEENERRE
IR 2t B L e o

For the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group
recognised revenue from motor vehicles trading
business amounted to approximately HK$149,684,000,
of which (i) approximately HK$148,322,000 was
derived from trade transactions in situations where
the Group acted as a principal and had the primary
responsibility for fulfilling the promise to provide the
specified goods to customers; and (ii) approximately
HK$1,362,000 was derived from provision of agency
and other services for accessories sourcing where the
Group acted as an agent in arranging to provide the
specified goods to customers.
HEZ-_-F+_B=+—HILFE> BH£EHE
PR BE R EEISUE4149,684,0008 T HA
()%9148,322,0008 2k B SEEAEFALEE
TRAEAREFETEMNAGXEBEFEESANESZR
5 5 &()%91,362,0008 0k EEEFATERH
BEAFRBRFEERNREREMEGHRERS

Our procedures in relation to management’s revenue
recognition included:

EEAHEEERARENEFEE

We obtained an understanding of and assessing the
design, implementation and operating effectiveness
of key internal controls in relating to revenue
recognition;

BEE T TG B R U B 50 B0 R 9B P9 BRI R B9 5%
ST BHREFARL

We inspected agreements, on sample basis, to
identify terms and conditions which may affect
revenue recognition and assessing the Group’s
revenue recognition policies;
EERMREERTHERZELGN T ER B E
MERAMRR R &G > U T SEENOWREES
R ;

We performed analytical review on revenue and
gross margin by motor vehicle products categories
to identify significant or unusual fluctuation on
revenue;
EEHRABERENE DR ERENKETD
MER UHANENKIERNAZE RS ;

We tested, on a sample basis, the supporting
documentation and the contractual terms of trade
transactions;

EERMBREERTEZRZNBANERENKE

2 -
N
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Refer to note 5 to the consolidated financial statements. (continued)

Key Audit Matter
RS2 E 5t R1E

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
W% E RS

REEFE (F
W ai BT ()
F2RGREGMBRRMES (&

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BESHNBEHNMEEMAREHER

The Group determined whether itself is acting
as a principal or agent required judgement and
consideration of all relevant facts and circumstances.
EEEETHEAGUTEASHERAEIHITER
BHERERFABEERAEE BRI

We focused on this area due to the significant
judgement involved in the assessment of
management’s determination of principal or agent for
the purpose of revenue recognition of motor vehicles
trading business.
EEMAZSE N HNREEEM BB EB I GE
REETTEASHERRNESHOMNTEIREKRH
B o

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

We assessed, on a sample basis, whether specific
revenue transactions occurred on or before and after
the end of the reporting date had been recognised
in the appropriate financial years by comparing
the transactions selected with relevant underlying
documentation, including customers’ receipts and
goods delivery notes;

EEXRMBREERBLEBEERZ REMX G (81
ZERWERE@RXME) s R IRE BEARSATE
ELENREREXRZEEENBEMHEENES;

We reviewed and discussed with management of the
Group a number of trade contracts with customers
and purchase contracts with suppliers, on a sample
basis, assessing the management’s conclusion
based on the specific facts and circumstances and
the applicable accounting standard; and
EERMEREEERLE SEEEEESNHER
FIINHNZBEEZ &4 UKEHEFIIINSE
BEAN THEEERBARSEERBEAUKE
RAEstERSHMNER ; &

We evaluated whether the Group’s presentation of
revenue on a gross basis (as a principal) versus a
net basis (as an agent) was in conformity with the
applicable accounting standard.

EETE BEERREEEZ NG (EAEEA8
7)) HRFEEEY Wam (FRARIE 2238 R2
DEBRAE R -0

o
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W ZEE RS

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

REEFE (F

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss BATEHAABSEZERNEEZATE

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
RASEE st 518

B2REGEEMBREN 24

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BEENENAEIRMBENSEE

As at 31 December 2023, the Group held unlisted
equity investment in a limited partnership with the
carrying amount of approximately HK$113,000 which
is classified as financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss. Loss on change in fair value of the
unlisted equity investment amounted to approximately
HK$3,650,000 was recognised in profit or loss in
respect of the current year. This financial asset does
not have a quoted market price in an active market.

RIEZ_=F+"RA=+—H> SEENERa®
PEFAIFLTRERE ZREEL113,000% 7T H
WHEARBRATESABR SHEE-JFLTRE
REZ AT EEHEESEE43,650,0008 TN AFE
ZHETEPER -ZEeMBEENEREMS LT ETH ISR

Bo

Our procedures in relation to the fair value of Group’s
unlisted equity investment (classified as financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss) included:

EEy ESEEZIFLITRERE DER/BRAFTESA
EHRZEMEE) 2 ATEMRRNZEFEE

- We assessed management’s evaluation in relation to
the financial assets based on the Group’s business
model for managing the financial assets and their
contractual cash flow characteristics;

— BERE% BEEECESMBEEZEBREARES
HNREREFH FEEEEBHEREEZTE;

- We reviewed management’s assessment for the
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
and the irrevocable election to designate investment
in equity instruments that would be measured
subsequent changes in fair value in profit or loss;

— ZERNEEEMBRATEFABGZEMEEK
MTTM@ZﬁE}EkKIE&§Z&ﬁ ZE

BB A TEEEHRICIERTE
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

(continued)

Refer to note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

(continued)

Key Audit Matter
FAREEE

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
W% E RS

REEFE (F
BRATFEAARHRZEMEEZATE (&

FR2RGRAGMBRRMNT24- (B)

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESNBEHNMEEMRENEN

The fair value valuation of the unlisted equity
investment is complex and requires the application of
significant judgment by the management.
MIFLTREREETATEGLENFEERE BEE
KEEBERERBEAHE-

We focused on the fair value of this unlisted equity
investment as significant judgement was involved in
the management’s assessment of fair value of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss.
EEMIZFELTREREZATE LThENER
B AT EFABGZEMEEZ R TER T &
Ep i

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

We enquired the management and assessed the
appropriateness of methodologies and the key
assumptions and parameters used in fair value
measurement based on our knowledge of the
unlisted equity investment; and
BENEZEHFLTREREZDH EERNEERE
B RFAGHRFESEZMAAEURBERERS
BREZIEEN &

We checked, on sample basis, the appropriateness
and relevance of the input data used such as
comparing key underlying financial data inputs to
external sources and investee’s financial statements
and management information as applicable.
EEHEBEMARASBZBEM RETY > A
WLEERASR BRI B BRI RE R MUK L&
REENVHBMREEEER (WEA) °
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued) FAEEtFIHE (&
Impairment assessment of deposits paid for acquisition of MENSHETEHE ZBHREREFE

motor vehicles for resale

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements.

Key Audit Matter
ik e

EoBGRaMBRENES.

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EENENMAEIRMBENSEE

The Group had paid deposits for acquisition of
motor vehicles for resale totalled approximately
HK$173,945,000 as at 31 December 2023 which
were included in prepayments, deposits and other
receivables.

RIEBEZ=F+"RF=+—H> EE£EENEEASE
ETHEZENERES554173,945,0008 0> st ATE
TRIE & R E A URIE o

Management has performed impairment assessment
of the deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles
for resale based on purchase records and information,
including advance payments history, delivery of motor
vehicles, suppliers’ credit profile, on-going business
relationship with suppliers and underlying economic
conditions.

EEECRBRECRRBRIMEEE A A8E - #
FEEmEER L BEREFNFEEBBAG REMLE
RAEER AR EETEE BN ESETRE
5T 0

We focused on this area due to the significant amounts
of deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles
and the impairment assessment of the deposits paid
involved significant management judgments and
estimates.

ELERAAZEAE N HNRERREZ BN RSN TR
BEARHEMNRESETREN G BV REEENE
KAV B 5t o

Our procedures in relation to the impairment assessment
of deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale
included:
EENMEDNSREETEEZEVRSETRETGRER
B

- We obtained an understanding of the key controls
that the Group has implemented in relation to the
acquisition of motor vehicles for resale;

— TETHR BEEEMERSABETEEERNMERE
EEHITETE

- We checked, on a sample basis, the deposits paid
for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale to the
underlying purchase contracts, payment records and
other related information;

— CERMEEERSERAREETEE 2 EBENE
THBERMRESN ISR REMEREN ;

- We reviewed the relevant documents for the
purchases of motor vehicles subsequent to 31
December 2023 for which the Group had paid
deposits as at that date and assessed any of these
purchases were cancelled and the deposits paid are
not refundable to the Group;

— TECEBREANRZE=fF+ZA=+—Hz &
%lﬁtttéﬁi ZHNEMZRErABERENHERL R

T ZEREEC AR REREET TR
5:% BEEH;

- For the deposits paid as at 31 December 2023 for
the purchase of motor vehicles and purchase of
motor vehicles not completed subsequent to that
date, we reviewed the relevant correspondences and
made enquiry of management, on a sample basis,
regarding the status of the suppliers to which the
Group had paid deposits and the Group’s on-going
business relationship with these suppliers; and

- BERZIZEZ=F+ZA=+-— EIEtE{ﬂtc‘i\E’J
FAEREENZHBRTHMAAERE  BEEHE
R ZERL f%lhﬁ?zﬁ&%ﬂ’ﬂ#lﬁmﬂﬁ#ﬁiﬁu
Rk BEEHAZEHEENSFEZETRGEMERE
B A ERE LA ; K
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)
Impairment assessment of deposits paid for acquisition of
motor vehicles for resale (continued)

I % B ET RS

PSS (7
MEBRSEETHE ZBHRERENG
(&)

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements. B2 HEHRERMT250 #8)

(continued)

Key Audit Matter
RS2 E 5t RI1E

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

ESNBEHNMEEMARENER

- We assessed the appropriateness of the impairment
assessment made by the Group, examined the
key data inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging the
assumptions, where necessary.

— TENE SEEFRFERBETILNERMY MR
BEFEWMABBUTHEERE RTEE LRGN E
Ry B AR R o

- We obtained direct confirmation from suppliers, on
a sample basis, confirming the balances of deposits
paid as at 31 December 2023.

— TEREREEESHEENEERIS IR
“E=F+°A=+—HNENREHER

Hith&#

EXFHHAMENES HMENSEFR
FREMFMBER EGEEMBREREEN
ZEEMER S R o

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s
report thereon.

EEHRAMBREANERTI N REAME
e BEETAHEMBENEREMTANE

9% 4t 1A
RE A Em o

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

AESERRAVMBRERF EENEER
REHMER  FILBRET  ZTEEMERN
ERAREMBRRUESESRBREDFH
THRNBRAEEREHE NEUFAEKRE
RRA-BEREFCHTHNIF URES
BAHMBENAEAHERRM  EFFER
ERFEBE-EENE BFRBEEMARS

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of
the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms
of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these consolidated financial statements.

ESRERRMGSMBRRAREN
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EFXRCERBEEBEAMASTRMHANES
B RS ER RE B R BRI R E 5
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$8 52 10 45 2 B9 28 K $8 58 R 4L P 0 7 B9 PO 3B 4
fl&asg-
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HESER RIFEFATR BEEEBHE
FFELEEE HFEAMBRNBEASEL
PR °

REEERE EREENMBRERER-
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EFNER BEHEREGGMBRERS S
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ARG ERZ THEGEESFERN
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
VAR T

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats and safeguards applied.

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not
be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

CCTH CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 22 March 2024

Lee Chi Hang
Practising Certificate Number P0O1957

Unit 1510-1517, 15/F, Tower 2,

Kowloon Commerce Centre,

No. 51 Kwai Cheong Road,

Kwai Chung, New Territories, Hong Kong
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CoNsoLIDATED STATEMENT OF ProFIT OR Loss AND OTHER CoMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FEelEashEMZEWRAHRREK

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E"Z-_=F+"A=+—HI-FE

2023 2022
S =S
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
B 5% FHT BT
Revenue & 5 150,039 180,815
Other income and gains/(losses), net EMUg A KWz~ (F518) 7548 7 14,378 (2,719)
Changes in inventories onfz 52 B8
of finished goods 22 (147,239) (178,396)
Other direct costs HihHiZm A (72) (70)
Employee benefit expenses BEBNEZ 10 (13,664) (13,797)
Depreciation of property, M B REREITE
plant and equipment 16 (2,072) (2,119)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets  FREEETE 17 (575) (1,303)
Impairment loss recognised on HMEREWE S IBRERE
trade receivables 23 (415) (1,331)
Other expenses HtpEx 9 (12,583) (10,704)
Share of loss of an associate DME—REBE A BRI (1,041) -
Finance costs & A A 8 (2,706) (1,230)
Loss before income tax PRPTERAIRES 1B 9 (15,950) (30,854)
Income tax credit FriSfMiE % 13 154 182
Loss for the year FREE (15,796) (30,672)
Other comprehensive loss Hh2mEsia
Item that may be subsequently HEOgEEN D EEEm
reclassified to profit or loss: ZIEH
Exchange differences arising on MEBINEBELE
translation of foreign operations fE R =R (3,394) (10,543)
Other comprehensive loss FREMEMEEIE BNR
for the year, net of tax (3,394) (10,543)
Total comprehensive loss FRNEHEEIE
for the year sk (19,190) (41,215)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PRoFIT OR Loss AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SelEachkEMZE W AHRREK

For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

106

2023 2022
—E=HF B
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
B 5 FET BT
Loss for the year attributable to: FE{LEREIE :
Owners of the Company KNBIEB A (15,777) (30,660)
Non-controlling interests JEPERR S (19) (12)
(15,796) (30,672)
Total comprehensive loss for EEEAZE
the year attributable to: BSIR4HEE -
Owners of the Company KABEE N (19,166) (41,186)
Non-controlling interests IR T (24) (29)
(19,190) (41,215)
2023 2022
—E-=HF =S
HK cent HK cent
el peealll
Loss per share SiREE 14
Basic loss per share BRELREE (0.20) (0.40)
Diluted loss per share SRBEEE N/A FiEH N/A 48

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENT oF FINANCIAL PosiTioN
n\7|-n j?%;ﬁﬁﬁﬁ

At 31 December 2023 W_Z_=F+_"_B=+—
2023 2022
—=5 B
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5 F#ET BT
Non-current assets ERENEE
Property, plant and equipment YN ER RERE 16 20,810 22,811
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 993 1,611
Statutory deposits and other assets AT R EHMEE 19 405 405
Interests in associates REERNB 2 Em 21 78 1,146
Financial assets at fair value through AT {ET ABHEZ
profit or loss THEE 24 113 3,967
Rental and other deposits paid ENEEREMZEE 25 1,531 1,576
23,930 31,516
Current assets RENEE
Inventories 78 22 38 39
Trade receivables FEUR & 5 I8 23 340 2,509
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFABRZ
through profit or loss THEE 24 16,708 759
Prepayments, deposits FENMIE TR
and other receivables H iU I 25 178,433 159,055
Bank balances and cash RITERKIRS
— trust accounts —{E5LER P 26 5,276 5,940
Bank balances and cash RTERKIRS
— general accounts —— AR P 26 19,554 32,986
220,349 201,288
Current liabilities Pt =R
Trade payables ENE=EZE 27 5,457 6,157
Other payables and accruals Ef’@ﬁ’%ﬁmﬁ&ﬁ’%%ﬁ’ﬁﬁ 28 2,593 1,589
Contract liabilities G868 29 73,393 46,920
Provisions i 30 11,390 11,725
Other borrowings HAuE®= 31 30,000 25,000
Lease liabilities HEas 32 580 535
123,413 91,926
Net current assets REBEERE 96,936 109,362
Total assets HEEHRERTHAER
less current liabilities 120,866 140,878
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL PosITiON
mEMBARRER

At 31 December 2023 HR_Z_=F+_"_A=+—H

2023 2022
—EZ= B
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
B 5T FHT TE7T
Non-current liabilities ERHEE
Lease liabilities HEaE 32 448 1,088
Deferred tax liabilities FIETRIE S B 33 2,199 2,381
2,647 3,469
Net assets BERE 118,219 137,409
Capital and reserves AR E#E
Share capital [N 34 77,489 77,489
Reserves i 40,563 59,729
Equity attributable to TATEE AELIERS
owners of the Company 118,052 137,218
Non-controlling interests JERERGHE RS 167 191
Total equity Rmiag 118,219 137,409

BI0CBE2SEN G AV BRERKEETT
A _NE=A -+ Bt EREET
BoTAHUTALIRAREE:

The consolidated financial statements on pages 105 to 235 were
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22
March 2024 and are signed on its behalf by:

Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui
-1 REME
Director Director
EE EFE

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated MR M SR L SR S R B — 20
financial statements. e
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CHANGES IN EauiTy
e E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

Attributable to owners of the Company

2 B % =

TREREAER
Non-
Share Share Special Statutory  Translation Accumulated controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests equity
(Note 350)  (Note 35(i)  (Note 35(ii)
(MsE350)  (Makos())  (BFaEss(i)
2 iR FhliktE R ERGHE ZitEH Wit RERER ]
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET TET TET TET TET THETL
Balance at 1 January 2022 RZ2ZZE-A-HZ&H 77,489 1,673,299 4,779 3,912 (7,119 (1,573,956) 178,404 220 178,624
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (30,660) (30,660) (12) (30,672)
Other comprehensive loss FRHMZESE
for the year - - - - (10,526) - (10,526) (17) (10,543)
Total comprehensive loss ERHMNZEFRER
for the year - - - - (10,526 (30,660) (41,186) (29) 41,015)
Balance at 31 December 2022 RIBZZE+-B=1+-HAz
3 77,489 1,673,299 4,779 3912 (17,645) (1,604,616) 137,218 191 137,409
Balance at 31 December 2022 and  RZEZ"E+ZB=+—HE
1 January 2023 Z2TC-E-B-HzEH 77,489 1,673,299 4,779 3,912 (17,645)  (1,604,616) 137,218 191 137,400
Loss for the year EREE - - - - - (15,777) (15,777) (19) (15,796)
Other comprehensive loss FRHMZERE
for the year = = - = (3,389) = (3,389) (5) (3,394)
Total comprehensive loss EREMZESRER
for the year - = - = (3,389) (15,777) (19,166) (24) (19,190)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RIZZ=FE+ZF=1+-R2
& 77,489 1,673,299 4,779 3912 (21,034) (1,620,393) 118,052 167 118,219
The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated  B&EMt BIM sE 1B A IE S 45 & BF FE R R AV — 26
financial statements. Ak
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CASH FLows

mEREMRE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZE_Z

—=E+TA=t+—HLEE

2023 2022
> Sl 3 TEC T
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT AT
Operating activities B EE
Loss before income tax FRETIS IR AT 18 (15,950) (30,854)
Adjustments for: LTI IERE
Depreciation of property, YIS REITE
plant and equipment 2,072 2,119
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEITE 575 1,303
Fair value loss on financial assets at  #&AF{Est ABHE 2 S/
fair value through profit or loss BEEZAFERBE 3,559 6,906
Gain on disposal of financial assets HERAFEt ARG
at fair value through profit or loss 2 ERE EWE (16,386) -
Loss on disposal of property, HEYE KR MR E
plant and equipment 518 118 -
Write off of property, 2~ B 2R SRR B I
plant and equipment - 2
Impairment loss recognised HEREWE Z I8
on trade receivables AEEE 415 1,331
Write off of trade receivables FE U B 5 =R IE i #H - 430
Gain on lease termination HE&K W= - (8)
Share of loss of an associate ME—E B E A B K18 1,041 -
Interest income B U A (201) (2,277)
Finance costs =N 2,706 1,230
Operating cash flows before EEETEFRIZ
movements in working capital REWRERE (22,051) (19,818)
Decrease/(increase) in trade FE U B 5 78R L (4 h0)
receivables 1,673 (2,303)
Increase in prepayments, FERTRIE N B R E M E U
deposits and other receivables IS N (24,486) (40,418)
Decrease in pledged deposits BIRREFUR L - 60,503
Decrease in bank RITHEER—(EEERA R
balances — trust accounts 664 175
Decrease in trade payables e B SR IE R D (502) (59,668)
Increase in other payables HMES I8 K e
and accruals FIEIE 0 1,052 267
Increase in contract liabilities SHaEE M 27,980 25,256
Cash used in operating activities KETHHAERE (15,670) (36,006)
Interest received BUF 2 201 2,277
Tax paid [EEpE 2! (28) -
Net cash used in operating KRETHHHAZREEE
activities (15,497) (33,729)
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CoNSOLIDATED STATEMENT oF CAsH FLows

= A L=
I%I-R A EE ﬁ NIl EE
For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E"Z-_=F+"A=+—HI-FE

2023 2022
—F=-= B
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
M5 FET BT
Investing activities "B IEE
Acquisition of property, BEYE HERRE
plant and equipment (1,686) (198)
Acquisition of financial assets at W AFEFABRZ
fair value through profit or loss THEE (15,949) -
Proceeds from disposal of HEME HBRRE
property, plant and equipment P18 718 1,344 -
Proceeds from disposal of HEZAFESAER
investment in financial assets at NENRNTMEEZ
fair value through profit or loss PR 1E 16,499 -
Acquisition of interest in associates  UWREEHE A E 2 xS = (530)
Net cash generated from/(used in) I8 EEHEE (B H) =2
investing activities REFE 208 (728)
Financing activities L& EED
Proceeds from secured REREFAMERZ
other borrowings FrigsIa 38 5,000 17,000
Repayment of lease liabilities HEBREZEM 38 (615) (1,367)
Repayment of other borrowings HMEmMZIEM 38 - (2,000)
Interest paid [SENERSS (2,643) (1,182)
Net cash generated from MEESEEZ
financing activities REFE 1,742 12,451
Net decrease in cash and RERREZEEE/RLVFE
cash equivalents (13,547) (22,006)
Cash and cash equivalents at FZREAASEEER
beginning of the year 32,986 54,242
Effect of foreign exchange rate EXxEesh s w8
changes 115 750
Cash and cash equivalents FERZRERREFEHER
at end of the year 19,554 32,986
Analysis of cash and FRZHAERREEE
cash equivalents at IBEE R
end of the year
Bank balances and cash IRITAEGRKRIRE
- general accounts —— AR P 19,554 32,986

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated P& M B9 [ 5% 48 Bl It 55 45 & M1 75 3R = 49— 2B
financial statements. 5o
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated as an exempted company with limited liability in
the Cayman Islands under the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands. The Company’s registered office is situated at Cricket
Square, Hutchins Drive, P.O. Box 2681, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company’s principal place
of business is situated at 16th Floor, CMA Building, 64-66
Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, the ultimate
controlling party of the Company is Mr. Wang Jiawei, the
Chairman and executive director of the Company.

The Company’s shares are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

The Group, comprising the Company and its subsidiaries, is
principally engaged in (i) trading of motor vehicles, provision
of agency services and accessories sourcing in the People’s
Republic of China (“PRC”), excluding Hong Kong, (ii) provision
of securities and futures contracts trading services in Hong
Kong, and (iii) trading of listed securities in Hong Kong.

The functional currency of the Company is Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$"). The consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars as management of the Company
considered it more beneficial to users of the consolidated
financial statements. All values stated in these consolidated
financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousands
Hong Kong dollars (HK$’000), unless otherwise stated.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the
first time, which are mandatorily effective for the annual
period beginning on 1 January 2023 for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements:
HKFRS 17 (including the October Insurance Contracts
2020 and February 2022

Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKAS 8 Definition of Accounting
Estimates

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction

International Tax Reform-
Pillar Two Model Rules

Disclosure of Accounting

Policies

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 12

Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 8
Definition of Accounting Estimates

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in the
current year. The amendments define accounting estimates as
“monetary amounts in financial statements that are subject to
measurement uncertainty”. An accounting policy may require
items in financial statements to be measured in a way that
involves measurement uncertainty. In such a case, an entity
develops an accounting estimate to achieve the objective
set out by the accounting policy. The amendments to HKAS
8 clarify the distinction between changes in accounting
estimates, and changes in accounting policies and the
correction of errors.

The application of the amendments in the current year had no
material impact on the consolidated financial statements.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

Impacts on application of Amendments to HKAS 1 and
HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Disclosure of Accounting
Policies

The Group has applied the amendments for the first time in
the current year. HKAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements
is amended to replace all instances of the term “significant
accounting policies” with “material accounting policy
information”. Accounting policy information is material if, when
considered together with other information included in an
entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected to
influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements.

The amendments also clarify that accounting policy information
may be material because of the nature of the related
transactions, other events or conditions, even if the amounts
are immaterial. However, not all accounting policy information
relating to material transactions, other events or conditions
is itself material. If an entity chooses to disclose immaterial
accounting policy information, such information must not
obscure material accounting policy information.

HKFRS Practice Statement 2 Making Materiality Judgements
(the “Practice Statement”) is also amended to illustrate how an
entity applies the “four-step materiality process” to accounting
policy disclosures and to judge whether information about
an accounting policy is material to its financial statements.
Guidance and examples are added to the Practice Statement.

The application of the amendments has had no material impact
on the Group’s financial position and performance but has
affected the disclosure of the Group’s accounting policies set
out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

New Guidance on accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong issued by HKICPA

In June 2022, Employment and Retirement Schemes
Legislation (Offsetting Arrangement) (Amendment) Ordinance
2022 (the “Amendment Ordinance”) was gazetted. The
Amendment Ordinance abolishes the use of the accrued
benefits derived from employers’ mandatory contributions
under the mandatory provident fund (“MPF”) to offset
severance payment (“SP”) and long service payments (‘LSP”)
(the “Abolition”). Subsequently, the Government of HKSAR
announced that the Abolition will take effect on 1 May 2025
(the “Transition Date”). The following key changes will take
effect since the Transition Date:

Accrued benefits derived from employers’ mandatory MPF
contributions cannot be used to offset the LSP/SP in respect of
the employment period after the Transition Date.

The pre-transition LSP/SP is calculated using the last month’s
salary immediately preceding the Transition Date, instead of
using the salary of employment termination date.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

New and amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year (continued)

New Guidance on accounting implications of the
abolition of the MPF-LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong
Kong issued by HKICPA (continued)

Due to the complexities of the accounting for the offsetting of
employer’'s MPF contributions and its LSP obligation and hence
the impact arising from the Abolition, in July 2023 the HKICPA
published ‘Accounting implications of the abolition of the MPF-
LSP offsetting mechanism in Hong Kong' (the “Guidance”)
to provide guidance to account for the offsetting mechanism
and the Abolition. The HKICPA concluded that there are two
acceptable accounting approaches, being:

Approach 1: Account for the amount expected to be offset as
a deemed employee contribution towards that employee’s LSP
benefits in terms of Hong Kong Accounting Standard 19.93(a)
(equivalent to IAS 19.93(a))

Approach 2: Account for the employer’s MPF contributions and
the offsetting mechanism as a funding mechanism for the LSP
obligation

To better reflect the substance of the abolition of the offsetting
mechanism, the Group has changed its accounting policy
in connection with its LSP liability and has applied the
Approach 1 above retrospectively since the effective date of
the Amendment Ordinance (i.e. June 2022). The application
of the accounting policy does not have material impact on the
Group’s financial statements for the current and prior years.

The application of the other new and amendments to HKFRSs
in the current year has had no material impact on the Group’s
financial positions and financial performance for the current
and priors years and/or in the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Sale or Contribution
of Assets between
an Investor and its
Associate or Joint
Venture'

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities
as Current or
Non-current and related
amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5

Amendments to HKFRS 16

Amendments to HKAS 1

(2020)?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?
Amendments to HKAS 7 and Supplier Finance
HKFRS 7 Arrangements?

Amendments to HKAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined.
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024.

s Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025.
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2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Except for the amendments to HKFRSs mentioned below, the
directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all
other amendments to HKFRSs, which are not yet effective,
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”)

The 2020 Amendments provide clarification and additional
guidance on the assessment of right to defer settlement for
at least twelve months from reporting date for classification of
liabilities as current or non-current, which:

o clarify that if a liability has terms that could, at the option
of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the transfer
of the entity’s own equity instruments, these terms do
not affect its classification as current or non-current only
if the entity recognises the option separately as an equity
instrument applying HKAS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation.

° specify that the classification of liabilities as current
or non-current should be based on rights that are in
existence at the end of the reporting period. Specifically,
the amendments clarify that the classification should not
be affected by management intentions or expectations to
settle the liability within 12 months.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet effective
(continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 (2020) (the “2020 Amendments”)
and Amendments to HKAS 1 Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants (the “2022 Amendments”) (continued)

For rights to defer settlement for at least twelve months
from reporting date which are conditional on the compliance
with covenants, the requirements introduced by the 2020
Amendments have been modified by the 2022 Amendments.
The 2022 Amendments specify that only covenants with which
an entity is required to comply with on or before the end of the
reporting period affect the entity’s right to defer settlement of
a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting date.
Covenants which are required to comply with only after the
reporting period do not affect whether that right exists at the
end of the reporting period.

In addition, the 2022 Amendments specify the disclosure
requirements about information that enables users of financial
statements to understand the risk that the liabilities could
become repayable within twelve months after the reporting
period, if an entity classifies liabilities arising from loan
arrangements as non-current when the entity’s right to defer
settlement of those liabilities is subject to the entity complying
with covenants within twelve months after the reporting period.

The 2022 Amendments also defer the effective date of
applying the 2020 Amendments to annual reporting periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2024. The 2022 Amendments,
together with the 2020 Amendments, are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2024, with
early application permitted. If an entity applies the 2020
Amendments for an earlier period after the issue of the
2022 Amendments, the entity should also apply the 2022
Amendments for that period.

Based on the Group’s outstanding liabilities as at 31 December
2023, the application of the 2020 and 2022 Amendments will
not result in reclassification of the Group’s liabilities.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”).
For the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements, information is considered material
if such information is reasonably expected to influence
decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable
disclosures required by the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (‘GEM Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain
financial instruments, which are measured at fair values,
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable
or estimated using another valuation technique. In
estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group takes into account the characteristics of the
asset or liability if market participants would take
those characteristics into account when pricing the
asset or liability at the measurement date. Fair value
for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a
basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment,
leasing transactions that are accounted for in accordance
with HKFRS 16 Leases, and measurements that have
some similarities to fair value but are not fair value, such
as net realisable value in HKAS 2 /nventories or value in
use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Assets.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.1

Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements (continued)

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value
and a valuation technique that unobservable inputs is
to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods,
the valuation technique is calibrated so that at initial
recognition the results of the valuation technique equals
the transaction price.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3
based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

° Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

° Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

° Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The material accounting policies are set out below:

3.2 Basis of consolidation
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The consolidated financial statements incorporate
the financial statements of the Company and entities
controlled by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is
achieved when the Company:

° has power over the investee;

° is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its

involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
listed above.

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
rights of an investee, it has power over the investee when
the voting rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability
to direct the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally.
The Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether or not the Group’s voting rights in
an investee are sufficient to give it power, including:

° the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights
relative to the size and dispersion of holdings of the
other vote holders;

° potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

° rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

° any additional facts and circumstances that indicate
that the Group has, or does not have, the current
ability to direct the relevant activities at the time
that decisions need to be made, including voting
patterns at previous shareholders’ meetings.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)

EXEHBEEN (7

3.2 FAERE B

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed
of during the year are included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income from the date the Group gains control until the
date when the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive
income are attributed to owners of the Company and to
the non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income
of subsidiaries is attributed to owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which
represent present ownership interests entitling their
holders to a proportionate share of net assets of the
relevant subsidiaries upon liquidation.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.2 Basis of consolidation (continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing
subsidiaries
Changes in the Group’s interests in subsidiaries that do
not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets
and liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling
interests (if any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss and is calculated as the
difference between (i) the aggregate of the fair value
of the consideration received and the fair value of any
retained interest and (i) the carrying amount of the
assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of the subsidiary
attributable to owners of the Company. All amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) or, when applicable,
the cost on initial recognition of an investment in an
associate or a joint venture.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.3 Business combinations or asset acquisitions

EXEHBEEN (7

3.3 EBOHABEWE

Optional concentration test

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
test, on a transaction-by-transaction basis, that permits
a simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of
activities and assets is not a business. The concentration
test is met if substantially all of the fair value of the
gross assets acquired is concentrated in a single
identifiable asset or group of similar identifiable assets.
The gross assets under assessment exclude cash and
cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and goodwill
resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities. If
the concentration test is met, the set of activities and
assets is determined not to be a business and no further
assessment is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies
and recognises the individual identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price
first to financial assets/financial liabilities at the respective
fair values, the remaining balance of the purchase price
is then allocated to the other identifiable assets and
liabilities on the basis of their relative fair values at the
date of purchase. Such a transaction does not give rise to
goodwill or bargain purchase gain.

Business combinations

A business is an integrated set of activities and assets
which includes an input and a substantive process
that together significantly contribute to the ability to
create outputs. The acquired processes are considered
substantive if they are critical to the ability to continue
producing outputs, including an organised workforce with
the necessary skills, knowledge, or experience to perform
the related processes or they significantly contribute
to the ability to continue producing outputs and are
considered unique or scarce or cannot be replaced
without significant cost, effort, or delay in the ability to
continue producing outputs.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)
3.3 Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values
of the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred
by the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are
generally recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

The identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
must meet the definitions of an asset and a liability in
the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting (the
“Conceptual Framework”) except for transactions and
events within the scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int
21, in which the Group applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-
Int 21 instead of the Conceptual Framework to identify
the liabilities it has assumed in a business combination.
Contingent assets are not recognised.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired
and the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair
value, except that:

° deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with
HKAS 12 /ncome Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

° liabilities or equity instruments related to share-
based payment arrangements of the acquiree or
share-based payment arrangements of the Group
entered into to replace share-based payment
arrangements of the acquiree are measured in
accordance with HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment at
the acquisition date;
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. BEAEHHBKREH &
(continued)
3.3 Business combinations or asset acquisitions

3.3 EBAHABEWE (&

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

° assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued
Operations are measured in accordance with that
standard; and

° lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition date, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months
of the acquisition date; or (b) the underlying asset
is of low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised
and measured at the same amount as the relevant
lease liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable terms of the lease when compared
with market terms.

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of
the consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interests in the acquiree, and the fair value
of the acquirer’s previously held equity interest in the
acquiree (if any) over the net amount of the identifiable
assets acquired and the liabilities assumed as at
acquisition date. If, after re-assessment, the net amount
of the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed
exceeds the sum of the consideration transferred, the
amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree
and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share
of the relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of
liquidation are initially measured at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.3 Business combinations or asset acquisitions

128

(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes a contingent consideration
arrangement, the contingent consideration is measured
at its acquisition-date fair value and included as part of
the consideration transferred in a business combination.
Changes in the fair value of the contingent consideration
that qualify as measurement period adjustments
are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement period
adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition
date) about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date.

The subsequent accounting for the contingent
consideration that do not qualify as measurement
period adjustments depends on how the contingent
consideration is classified. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured at subsequent
reporting dates and its subsequent settlement is
accounted for within equity. Contingent consideration
that is classified as an asset or a liability is remeasured
to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with the
corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the
date when the Group obtains control), and the resulting
gain or loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income, as appropriate. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition
date that have previously been recognised in other
comprehensive income and measured under HKFRS 9
would be accounted for on the same basis as would
be required if the Group had disposed directly of the
previously held equity interest.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.3

3.4

ERESEEERBRAF |

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(continued)

Business combinations (continued)

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which
the combination occurs, the Group reports provisional
amounts for the items for which the accounting is
incomplete. Those provisional amounts are adjusted
retrospectively during the measurement period (see
above), and additional assets or liabilities are recognised,
to reflect new information obtained about facts and
circumstances that existed at the acquisition date that, if
known, would have affected the amounts recognised at
that date.

Investments in associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee but is not control or joint control over
those policies.
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3.

130

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.4

Investments in associates (continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of associates are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for
sale, in which case it is or the portion so classified is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any
retained portion of an investment in an associate that
has not been classified as held for sale continues to be
accounted for using the equity method. The financial
statements of associates used for equity accounting
purposes are prepared using uniform accounting policies
as those of the Group for like transactions and events
in similar circumstances. Under the equity method, an
investment in an associate is initially recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position at cost and
adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
the associate. Changes in net assets of the associate
other than profit or loss and other comprehensive income
are not accounted for unless such changes resulted in
changes in ownership interest held by the Group. When
the Group’s share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group’s interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests that, in substance, form part of
the Group’s net investment in the associate), the Group
discontinues recognising its share of further losses
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that
the Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or
made payments on behalf of the associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for
using the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value
of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee
is recognised as goodwill, which is included within the
carrying amount of the investment. Any excess of the
Group’s share of the net fair value of the identifiable
assets and liabilities over the cost of the investment, after
reassessment, is recognised immediately in profit or loss
in the period in which the investment is acquired.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.4
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Investments in associates (continued)

The Group assesses whether there is an objective
evidence that the interest in an associate may be
impaired. When any objective evidence exists, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill) is
tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36 as a
single asset by comparing its recoverable amount (higher
of value in use and fair value less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any impairment loss recognised
is not allocated to any asset, including goodwill, that
forms part of the carrying amount of the investment.
Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 36 to the extent that the
recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

When the Group ceases to have significant influence
over an associate, it is accounted for as a disposal of
the entire interest in the investee with a resulting gain
or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former associate and the
retained interest is a financial asset within the scope of
HKFRS 9, the Group measures the retained interest at
fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded as its
fair value on initial recognition. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate and the fair value
of any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of the relevant interest in the associate is included in
the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income
in relation to that associate on the same basis as would
be required if that associate had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that associate would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss
(as a reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial
disposal of the relevant associate.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.4

3.5

Investments in associates (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to that
reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of the
related assets or liabilities.

When the Group increases its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, goodwill is recognised at acquisition date if
there is excess of the consideration paid over the share
of carrying amount of net assets attributable to the
additional interests in associates acquired. Any excess
of share of carrying amount of net assets attributable to
the additional interests in associates acquired over the
consideration paid are recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the additional interest are acquired.

When a group entity transacts with an associate of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions
with the associate are recognised in the consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the
associate that are not related to the Group.

Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a
performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control”
of the goods or services underlying the particular
performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents goods or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series
of distinct goods or services that are substantially the
same.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.5 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

° The customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits provided by the Group’s
performance as the Group performs;

° The Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

° The Group’s performance does not create an
asset with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct goods or
services.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the

same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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134

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.5 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts
the promised amount of consideration for the effects of
the time value of money if the timing of payments agreed
(either explicitly or implicitly) provides the customer or
the Group with a significant benefit of financing the
transfer of goods or services to the customer. In those
circumstances, the contract contains a significant
financing component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of financing
is explicitly stated in the contract or implied by the
payment terms agreed to by the parties to the contract.

For contracts where the period between payment and
transfer of the associated goods or services is less than
one year, the Group applies the practical expedient of not
adjusting the transaction price for any significant financing
component.

Principal versus agent

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation to
provide the specified goods or services itself (i.e. the
Group is a principal) or to arrange for those goods or
services to be provided by the other party (i.e. the Group
is an agent).

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods
or services before that goods or services is transferred to
a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified goods or
services by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified goods or services provided
by another party before that goods or services is
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as an
agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any fee or
commission to which it expects to be entitled in exchange
for arranging for the specified goods or services to be
provided by the other party.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.5 Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
Principal versus agent (continued)
Further details of the Group’s revenue and other income
recognition policies are as follows:

(@)

ERESEEERBRAF |

Commission income from securities and futures
brokerage is recognised at point in time on a trade
date basis.

Service income is recognised at point in time when
the relevant services have been rendered.

Revenue from trading of motor vehicles is
recognised at point in time when the customer
obtains control of the promised goods or services in
the contract. If the products are a partial fulfiiment
of a contract covering other goods and/or services,
then the amount of revenue recognised is an
appropriate proportion of the total transaction price
under the contract, allocated between all the goods
and services promised under the contract on a
relative stand-alone selling price basis.

Agency income recognised at point in time from
trading of motor vehicles and accessories sourcing
is recognised on a net basis, when the agency
services have been rendered.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.6

3.7

Government grants and subsidies

Grants and subsidies from the government are
recognised at their fair value where there is a reasonable
assurance that the grant or subsidies will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Lease

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after
the date of initial application or arising from business
combinations, the Group assesses whether a contract is
or contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date,
as appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed
unless the terms and conditions of the contract are
subsequently changed. As a practical expedient, leases
with similar characteristics are accounted on a portfolio
basis when the Group reasonably expects that the effects
on the consolidated financial statements would not differ
materially from individual leases within the portfolio.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.7 Lease (continued)

EXEHBEEN (7

3.7 HE &

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component and one
or more additional lease or non-lease components, the
Group allocates the consideration in the contract to each
lease component on the basis of the relative stand-alone
price of the lease component and the aggregate stand-
alone price of the non-lease components.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for leases of low-value assets. Lease
payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis
or another systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

° any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received,;

° any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

° an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful life.
Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on a
straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated useful
life and the lease term.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.7 Lease (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)
Refundable rental deposits
Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date.
In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate implicit in the
lease is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

° variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate, initially measured using the index or rate as
at the commencement date;

° amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

° the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise the option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option to
terminate the lease.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHHEREH &
(continued)

3.7 Lease (continued) 3.7 E (&

The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

° the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

° the lease payments change due to changes in
market rental rates following a market rent review/
expected payment under a guaranteed residual
value, in which cases the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using the initial discount rate.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a
separate lease if:

° the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

° the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised
lease payments using a revised discount rate at the
effective date of the modification.
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3.

140

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.7

Lease (continued)

Lease modifications (continued)

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use assets. When the modified contract
contains a lease component and one or more additional
lease or non-lease components, the Group allocates
the consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price
of the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone
price of the non-lease components.

Changes in the basis for determining the future
lease payments as a result of interest rate
benchmark reform

For changes in the basis for determining the future lease
payments as a result of interest rate benchmark reform,
the Group applies the practical expedient to remeasure
the lease liabilities by discounting the revised lease
payments using the unchanged discount rate and makes
a corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets. A lease modification is required by interest rate
benchmark reform if, and only if, both of these conditions
are met:

° the modification is necessary as a direct
consequence of interest rate benchmark reform;
and

o the new basis for determining the lease payments
is economically equivalent to the previous basis (i.e.
the basis immediately preceding the modification).

Covid-19-related rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

o the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the
lease immediately preceding the change;
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.7

3.8

ERESEEERBRAF |

Lease (continueq)

Covid-19-related rent concessions (continueq)

° any reduction in lease payments affects only
payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022;
and

° there is no substantive change to other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts
for changes in lease payments resulting from rent
concessions the same way it would account for the
changes applying HKFRS 16 if the changes are not
a lease modification. Forgiveness or waiver of lease
payments are accounted for as variable lease payments.
The related lease liabilities are adjusted to reflect the
amounts forgiven or waived with a corresponding
adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in the period in
which the event occurs.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing
on the dates of the transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured
in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of
monetary items, and on the retranslation of monetary
items, are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise.
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3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.8 Foreign currencies (continued)

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange
rates prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Income and expenses items are translated at the average
exchange rates for the period, unless exchange rates
fluctuate significantly during that period, in which case
the exchange rates at the date of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of translation reserve (attributed to
non-controlling interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
associate that includes a foreign operation of which the
retained interest becomes a financial asset), all of the
exchange differences accumulated in equity in respect of
that operation attributable to the owners of the Company
are reclassified to profit or loss.

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
that do not result in the Group losing significant
influence), the proportionate share of the accumulated
exchange differences is reclassified to profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable
assets acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign
operation are treated as assets and liabilities of that
foreign operation and translated at the rate of exchange
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Exchange
differences arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.9 Borrowing costs
All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

3.10 Employee benefits
(a) Retirement benefit costs
Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

For defined benefit retirement benefit plans including
the LSP under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance, the cost of providing benefits is
determined using the projected unit credit method,
with actuarial valuations being carried out at the
end of each annual reporting period. In determining
the present value of the Group’s defined benefit
obligations and the related current service cost
and, where applicable, past service cost, the Group
attributes benefit to periods of service under the
plan’s benefit formula. However, if an employee’s
service in later years will lead to a materially
higher level of benefit than earlier years, the Group
attributes the benefit on a straight-line basis from:

(@) the date when service by the employee first
leads to benefits under the plan (whether or
not the benefits are conditional on further
service) until

(b) the date when further service by the employee
will lead to no material amount of further
benefits under the plan, other than from further
salary increases.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.10 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)
Remeasurement, comprising actuarial gains and
losses, the effect of the changes to the asset
ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets
(excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the
consolidated statement of financial position with a
charge or credit recognised in other comprehensive
income in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurement recognised in other comprehensive
income is reflected immediately in accumulated
losses and will not be reclassified to profit or loss.

Past service cost is recognised in profit or loss in
the period of a plan amendment or curtailment and
a gain or loss on settlement is recognised when
settlement occurs. When determining past service
cost, or a gain or loss on settlement, an entity
shall remeasure the net defined benefit liability or
asset using the current fair value of plan assets
and current actuarial assumptions, reflecting the
benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets
before and after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, without considering the effect of
asset ceiling (i.e. the present value of any economic
benefits available in the form of refunds from the
plan or reductions in future contributions to the
plan).
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.10 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

ERESEEERBRAF |

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

Net interest is calculated by applying the discount
rate at the beginning of the period to the net defined
benefit liability or asset. However, if the Group
remeasures the net defined benefit liability or asset
before plan amendment, curtailment or settlement,
the Group determines net interest for the remainder
of the annual reporting period after the plan
amendment, curtailment or settlement using the
benefits offered under the plan and the plan assets
after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
and the discount rate used to remeasure such net
defined benefit liability or asset, taking into account
any changes in the net defined benefit liability or
asset during the period resulting from contributions
or benefit payments.

Defined benefit costs are categorised as follows:

° service cost (including current service cost,
past service cost, as well as gains and losses
on curtailments and settlements);

o net interest expense or income; and

° remeasurement.

The retirement benefit obligation recognised in
the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the actual deficit or surplus in the
Group’s defined benefit plans. Any surplus resulting
from this calculation is limited to the present value
of any economic benefits available in the form
of refunds from the plans or reductions in future
contributions to the plans.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.10 Employee benefits (continued)

(a)

Retirement benefit costs (continued)

For LSP obligation, the Group accounts for the
employer MPF contributions expected to be offset
as a deemed employee contribution towards the
LSP obligation in terms of HKAS 19.93(a) and it
is measure on a net basis. The estimated amount
of future benefit is determined after deducting the
negative service cost arising from the accrued
benefits derived from the Group’s MPF contributions
that have been vested with employees, which
are deemed to be contributions from the relevant
employees.

Retirement benefits to employees in the PRC are
provided through a defined contribution plan.
The Group is required to participate in a central
pension scheme operated by the local municipal
government. The Group is required to contribute
certain percentage of its payroll costs to the
central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income as they
become payable in accordance with the rules of the
central pension scheme. The Group has no legal or
constructive obligations to pay further contributions
after payment of the fixed contribution.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.10 Employee benefits (continued)

(b)

ERESEEERBRAF |

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan, under which the entity receives
services from employees as consideration for equity
instruments (options) of the Group. The fair value of
the employee services received in exchange for the
grant of the options is recognised as an expense.
The total amount to be expensed is determined by
reference to the fair value of the options granted:

o including any market performance conditions
(for example, an entity’s share price);

o excluding the impact of any service and non-
market performance vesting conditions (for
example, profitability, sales growth targets and
remaining an employee of the entity over a
specified time period); and

o including the impact of any non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for
employees to save).

Non-market performance and service conditions
are included in assumptions about the number of
options that are expected to vest. The total expense
is recognised over the vesting period, which is
the period over which all of the specified vesting
conditions are to be satisfied.

At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing
performance and service conditions. It recognises
the impact of the revision to original estimates,
if any, in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income, with a
corresponding adjustment to equity.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.

(continued)
3.10 Employee benefits (continued)

EXEHBEEN (7

3.10 EE&EF (&

(b) Share-based compensation (continued) (b) BRREE &)
When the options are exercised, the Company REEREETER A AF
issues new shares. The proceeds received net GEITHRMD - EWFRER
of any directly attributable transaction costs are BN TR BEEGRZ S M
credited to share capital. KB AR
The grant by the Company of options over its KABEAEENE A B E
equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary ERHSIRETTAZER
undertakings in the Group is treated as a capital TR ABEERKRAER
contribution. The fair value of employee services ZREBERBEZAFEZE
received, measured by reference to the grant BRHBZAFEFZE WR
date fair value, is recognised over the vesting HEBANERAHNB AT
period as an increase to investment in subsidiary KREZEN TRERARE
undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity FRIRE v AT AHEH
in the parent entity accounts. Ko

(c) Termination benefits (c) BEEIEF

Termination benefits are payable when employment
is terminated by the Group before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts
voluntary redundancy in exchange for these
benefits. The Group recognises termination benefits
at the earlier of the following dates: (a) when the
Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits; and (b) when the entity recognises costs
for a restructuring that is within the scope of HKAS
37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets and involves the payment of termination
benefits. In the case of an offer made to encourage
voluntary redundancy, the termination benefits are
measured based on the number of employees
expected to accept the offer. Benefits falling due
more than 12 months after the end of the reporting

period are discounted to their present value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHHEREH &
(continued)

3.11 Taxation 3.11 I8

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
income tax because of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for
current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally
recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which those
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit and at the time of the
transaction does not give rise to equal taxable and
deductible temporary differences. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in
subsidiaries and associates, except where the Group is
able to control the reversal of the temporary difference
and it is probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in
the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.11 Taxation (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profits will be available to allow all or part of the asset to
be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in
which the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based
on tax rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and when they relate to
income taxes levied to the same taxable entity by the
same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity
respectively. Where current tax or deferred tax arises from
the initial accounting for a business combination, the
tax effect is included in the accounting for the business
combination.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.12 Property, plant and equipment

EXEHBEEN (7

3.12 ME-HBR=E

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes. Property, plant
and equipment are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of assets less their residual values over their estimated
useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated
useful lives, residual values and depreciation method are
reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the
effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis, as follows:

Leasehold land and buildings
Leasehold improvements

25 years

3 to 5 years, or over
the term of leases
if shorter

Office equipment and furniture 3 to 5 years

Computer equipment 3 years
Motor vehicles 3 to 10 years

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset.
Any gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of
an item of property, plant and equipment is determined
as the difference between the sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or
loss.

3.13 Intangible assets

(a) Trading rights
The Group’s trading rights classified under the
intangible assets represent eligibility rights to trade
on or through the Stock Exchange and on the Hong
Kong Future Exchange Limited. The trading rights are
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated impairment losses, if any.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3.

MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.13 Intangible assets (continued)

(b) Software
The software has a finite useful life and is carried at
cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.
Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate the cost of software over its
estimated useful life from three to ten years.

3.14 Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
these assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the
extent of the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are
estimated individually. When it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to
which the asset belongs.

In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment,
corporate assets are allocated to the relevant cash-
generating unit when a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be established, or otherwise they
are allocated to the smallest group of cash generating
units for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be established. The recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit or group of cash-
generating units to which the corporate asset belongs,
and is compared with the carrying amount of the relevant
cash-generating unit or group of cash-generating units.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHBEER (&
(continued)
3.14 Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-

.14 ME - -HBR=E -EAEEER

of-use assets, and intangible assets other than
goodwill (continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating
unit) for which the estimates of future cash flows have not
been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying
amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. For
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets which
cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis to a cash-generating unit, the Group compares
the carrying amount of a group of cash-generating units,
including the carrying amounts of the corporate assets
or portion of corporate assets allocated to that group
of cash-generating units, with the recoverable amount
of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based
on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to the
revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that
the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had no
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generating units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)

3.15

3.16

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the first-in first
out method for the finished goods (motor vehicles) and
the weighted average method for accessories of motor
vehicles. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price
in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs necessary to make the trade.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event, it is probable that the Group will be required to
settle that obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made
of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best
estimate of the consideration required to settle the
present obligation at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account the risks and uncertainties
surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured
using the cash flows estimated to settle the present
obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of
those cash flows (where the effect of the time value of
money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to
settle a provision are expected to be recovered from a
third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is
virtually certain that reimbursement will be received and
the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Onerous contract

Present obligations arising under onerous contracts are
recognised and measured as provisions. An onerous
contract is considered to exist where the Group has a
contract under which the unavoidable costs of meeting
the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be received from the contract. The
unavoidable costs under a contract reflect the least net
cost of exiting from the contract, which is the lower of the
net cost of fulfilling it and any compensation or penalties
arising from failure to fulfil it.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments

EXEHBEEN (7

3.17 #FIT A

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assets are recognised and derecognised
on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the time frame established by regulation
or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or
issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other than
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added to or deducted from
the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities,
as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in
profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts
and payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest
rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Dividend income which are derived from the Group’s
ordinary course of business are included in other income
and gain/(losses), net.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

° the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

° the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial
asset the Group may irrevocably elect to present
subsequent changes in fair value of an equity investment
in other comprehensive income if that equity investment
is neither held for trading nor contingent consideration
recognised by an acquirer in a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations applies.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)
A financial asset is held for trading if:

° it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern
of short-term profit-taking; or

° it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing
so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

() Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt
instruments/receivables subsequently measured at
FVTOCI. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial
asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument
improves so that the financial asset is no longer
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset from the
beginning of the reporting period following the
determination that the asset is no longer credit-
impaired.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)
(i) Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated
in the fair value through other comprehensive
income reserve; and are not subject to impairment
assessment. The cumulative gain or loss will not be
reclassified to profit or loss on disposal of the equity
investments, and will be transferred to accumulated
losses.

Dividends from these investments in equity
instruments are recognised in profit or loss when the
Group’s right to receive the dividends is established,
unless the dividends clearly represent a recovery
of part of the cost of the investment. Dividends are
included in the “other income and gains/(losses),
net” line item in profit or loss.

(il)y  Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for
being measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or
designated as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair
value gains or losses recognised in profit or loss.
The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excludes any dividend or interest earned on the
financial asset and is included in the “other income
and gains/(losses), net” line item in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3.
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)

EXEHBEEN (7

3.17 R I A #&)

Financial assets (continued) EHEE (B)
Impairment of financial assets T EE

The Group performs impairment assessment under
expected credit loss (“ECL”) model on financial assets
(including trade receivables, rental and other deposits
paid, other receivables, bank balances and cash -
trust accounts and bank balances and cash - general
accounts) which are subject to impairment assessment
under HKFRS 9. The amount of ECL is updated at each
reporting date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12-months ECL (“12m
ECL”") represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is
expected to result from default events that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessments
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the
debtors, general economic conditions and an assessment
of both the current conditions at the reporting date as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless there has been a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised
is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)
(i) Significant increase in credit risk
In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

° an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’'s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

° existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

° an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above
assessment, the Group presumes that the credit risk
has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30
days past due, unless the Group has reasonable
and supportable information that demonstrates
otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk and revises them
as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable
of identifying significant increase in credit risk before
the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when
information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full
(without taking into account any collaterals held by
the Group).

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(i)  Credit-impaired financial assets
A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or
more events of default that have a detrimental
impact on the estimated future cash flows of that
financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable
data about the following events:

(a)

significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past
due event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)
would not otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties;
or

the purchase or origination of a financial asset
at a deep discount that reflects the incurred
credit losses.

3.

EXEHBEEN (7

3.17 R I A (&)

FTHEE (&)

BB ERE ()
EERESHEE
ERARHEEsREEZD
FFARKIBEREEETHE
By -TERZTHEENSEH
FrZemEENHRIREES
BE- SMEEZREEER
BB BOEUTEGZH
R

(i)

(@)

BT ANERA @R
EAMBRE ;

BREXK HIIEQR
BHAEM

BERMAZERALR
B8R B %5 26 4R
HzEERXEHOR
E mEfEMARTE
MAREARGEREZ
’2E;

B R PJ BEBR E B E
THMPFHEE ;

ZEMEEZERT
1% A R B B 2
HR W

URBEFZEBER
BHETHEE UK
BEEZEEBE-

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4 A
17177 O = |

Rt #5 ¥ &= MY 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

(iv)

ERESEEERBRAF |

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is in
severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and
the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is
based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased
and probability-weighted amount that is determined
with the respective risks of default occurring as the
weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted
at the effective interest rate determined at initial
recognition.
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3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION
(continued)
3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

v)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

Lifetime ECL for trade receivables are considered on
a collective basis taking into consideration past due
information and relevant credit information such as
forward looking macroeconomic information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

o Past-due status;

o Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

o External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit-impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised
cost of the financial asset.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Foreign exchange gains and losses
The carrying amount of financial assets that are
denominated in a foreign currency is determined in that
foreign currency and translated at the spot rate at the end
of each reporting period. Specifically:

° For financial assets measured at amortised cost that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss
in the ‘Other income and gains/(losses), net’ line
item as part of the foreign exchange gains/(losses),
net;

° For debt instruments measured at FVTOCI that
are not part of a designated hedging relationship,
exchange differences on the amortised cost of
the debt instrument are recognised in profit or
loss in the ‘Other income and gains/(losses), net’
line item as part of the foreign exchange gains/
(losses), net. As the foreign currency element
recognised in profit or loss is the same as if it was
measured at amortised cost, the residual foreign
currency element based on the translation of the
carrying amount (at fair value) is recognised in other
comprehensive income in the fair value through
other comprehensive income;

° For financial assets measured at FVTPL that are not
part of a designated hedging relationship, exchange
differences are recognised in profit or loss in the
‘Other income and gains/(losses), net’ line item as
part of the gain/(loss) from changes in fair value of
financial assets;

° For equity instruments measured at FVTOCI,
exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income in the fair value through
other comprehensive income.
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NOTES To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMNE

For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued)
Financial assets (continued)
Derecognition of financial assets
The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire,
or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to
another entity. If the Group neither transfers nor retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership and
continues to control the transferred asset, the Group
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an
associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. If
the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group
continues to recognise the financial asset and also
recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss
previously accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve is
not reclassified to profit or loss, but is transferred to
accumulated losses.
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NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE
3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHHEREH &
(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued) 3.17 R I A #&)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity instruments in accordance
with the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments
An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting
all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the
Company are recognised at the proceeds received, net of
direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade payables, other
payables and accruals, provisions, other borrowings and
lease liabilities) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest method.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating
interest expense over the relevant period. The effective
interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated
future cash payments (including all fees and points paid
or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums
or discounts) through the expected life of the financial
liability, or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net
carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised and
the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit
or loss.
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NoTes To THE ConsoLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBFEHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

3. MATERIAL ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION 3. EXGHHEEH &

(continued)

3.17 Financial instruments (continued) 3.17 R I A #&)
Changes in the basis for determining the contractual FEBRAECH SN ELNE
cash flows as a result of interest rate benchmark ETERBLES
reform
For changes in the basis for determining the contractual MERBHEAATECSMEE
cash flows of a financial asset or financial liability to which NEMBEZANREREZE
the amortised cost measurement applies as a result EEMAMNEZEMNEMERZ
of interest rate benchmark reform, the Group applies BHmMs AEEERATHEE
the practical expedient to account for these changes i BEREMERAERT K
by updating the effective interest rate, such change in ZEEE BRERMNEEEH —
effective interest rate normally has no significant effect e A & HAE R = A A o Al
on the carrying amount of the relevant financial asset or EBEZRABEMERTE.

financial liability.

A change in the basis for determining the contractual S B E W LT w8 R
cash flows is required by interest rate benchmark reform if MEEBNEFERNEEBEESL
and only if, both these conditions are met: REMENER !

e the change is necessary as a direct consequence of e FANEERNENERE
interest rate benchmark reform; and MBNEETEE &

e the new basis for determining the contractual cash e HEFAANREREZMER
flows is economically equivalent to the previous ERBE LERR LR 2B
basis (i.e. the basis immediately preceding the (BN ZEBHATERE) o
change).

For other changes made to a financial asset or financial HEFZERNEBRNEH G

liability in addition to changes to the basis for determining HWRENEECERIN TME

the contractual cash flows required by interest rate EdcREeESEEMEs K

benchmark reform, the Group first applies the practical EEEAEMNEERNEMER

expedient to the changes required by interest rate NEHERERETE L BHWE
benchmark reform by updating the effective interest rate. BRAX AEBBRESBYHE

The Group then applies the applicable requirements in REEBFIORENBHNERME

HKFRS 9 on modification of a financial asset or a financial EdsmaEnNEAfAE (R

liability (see accounting policy above) to the additional XEHHER BERNITEBER

changes to which the practical expedient does not apply. HEENREINES) o

1 68 Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which are
described in note 3, the directors of the Company are required
to make judgments, estimates and assumptions about the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not readily
apparent from other sources. The estimates and underlying
assumptions are based on historical experience and other
factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision
and future periods if the revision affects both current and future
periods.

The following are the critical judgments and estimation
uncertainties that the directors have made in the process of
applying the entity’s accounting policies and that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

(a) Impairment of trade and other receivables and
deposits paid
Provision for expected credit losses (“ECLs”) of
trade receivables
The Group measures loss allowance of trade receivables
on the basis of lifetime ECLs. The Group uses a
provision of matrix approach to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The determination of default rates takes into
account historical data and forward-looking information
that is receivable and supportable available without undue
cost or effort, which involves a significant degree of
management judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and forecast of general economic
conditions. If the financial condition of the customers or
the forecast economic conditions were to deteriorate,
actual loss allowance would be higher than estimated.
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NoTes To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e MR RMNE

For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(@) Impairment of trade and other receivables and
deposits paid (continueq)
Impairment for other receivables and deposits paid
The Group measures the loss allowance of other
receivables and deposits paid on the basis of 12
months ECLs. Management of the Group assessed
the recoverability of other receivables and deposits
paid based on the financial background of the debtors,
collateral and the historical settlement records, including
past due dates, default rates, forward-looking information
that is reasonable, supportable and available without
undue cost or effort.

Impairment for deposits paid for acquisition of
motor vehicles for resale

The Group evaluates the loss allowances of deposits
paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale based
on purchase records and information, including advance
payments history, delivery of motor vehicles, suppliers’
credit profile, on-going business relationship with
suppliers and underlying economic conditions, which
involves a significant level of management judgment. If
the financial conditions of the suppliers or the forecast
economic conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss
allowance could be higher than estimated.

(b) Impairment of interests in associates
The Group has made substantial investments in
associates. The Group conducts impairment reviews
of these assets whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may
not be recoverable.

Determining whether interests in associates are impaired
requires an estimation of the recoverable amounts
of the interests in associates. The Group recognised
the impairment of interests in associate based on an
assessment of future economic benefits of the investment
that will flow to the Group. One of the associate ceased
its business due to the policy review by the PRC
government, and such review has not yet completed up
to present. Where the review of the policy is completed
and the expectation is different from the originate
estimate, such difference will impact the interests in
associate in the period in which such estimates has been
changed.
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BEXREFAEREHFREEZE
ERE (#)

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND 4.
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(c)

Estimated impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and deposits paid for
acquisition of motor vehicles for resale

Property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In determining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions
to be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts
including cash flow projections and an appropriate
discount rate. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount of an individual asset (including right-
of-use assets), the Group estimates the recoverable
amount of the cash generating unit to which the assets
belongs, including allocation of corporate assets when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined
at the smallest group of cash generating units, for which
the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable
amounts.

As at 31 December 2023, the carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale
subject to impairment assessment were HK$20,810,000,
HK$993,000 and HK$173,945,000 (2022:
HK$22,811,000, HK$1,611,000 and HK$150,171,000)
respectively and no impairment losses in respect of
property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets and
deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale
that have been recognised respectively.

Details of the impairment of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets and deposits paid for
acquisition of motor vehicles for resale are disclosed in
notes 16, 17 and 25 respectively.
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NOTES To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(d) Determining the basis for impairment of refundable
earnest money paid for proposed business
acquisition in previous year
The Group has paid the refundable earnest money of
RMB20,000,000 (approximately HK$21,873,000) for the
proposed acquisition of the entire registered capital of &
HEFFIERAR AT (transliterated as Mingin Quantum
New Energy Co. Ltd.)(“Mingin Quantum”) in January
2015. The Group has received the collateral which are
the entire shares of Mingin Quantum from the vendor.
The proposed acquisition terminated in May 2015 and
the Group filed an arbitration application to South China
International Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
for the repayment of the overdue receivables.

Although the final judgment ordered the vendor to repay
the refundable earnest money to the Group, the vendor
did not return the said deposits to the Group. On 6 June
2017, the PRC legal advisor of the Company received the
execution judgment (the “Execution Judgment”) issued
by Intermediate People’s Court (the “Court”) of Suining
District, Sichuan Province dated 25 April 2017. According
to the Execution Judgment, the Court terminated the
compulsory execution of repayment of the said deposits
from the vendor and the Court concluded that the vendor
owns no executable assets after he pledged his shares of
the Mingin Quantum to the Group. The Group continued
to communicate with its PRC lawyer to follow up the
judgment from the Court but the status was not changed.
The management had made an impairment of refundable
earnest money paid for the proposed acquisition of
Mingin Quantum in the year ended 31 December 2017.
Based on the facts and circumstances described
above, the management considers the recoverability
of refundable earnest money paid for the aforesaid
acquisition is remote.

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the earnest
money previously paid amounted to RMB1,000,000
(equivalent to HK$1,100,000) was refunded to the Group
which was included in other income and gains/(losses),
net.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

(continued)

(e) Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles
trading business
The Group assesses its business relationship with
suppliers and customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles business to determine whether the Group
acts as a principal or agent. The factors taken into
account by management in assessing whether the Group
acts as the principal or agent include:

(i) Whether the Group has the primary responsibility for
fulfilling the promise to provide the specified goods
or services.

(i)  Whether the Group has inventory risk before the
specified goods or services has been transferred
to a customer and whether the Group is exposed
to significant inventory risk. The Group considered
that it has minimal inventory risk in respect of
situations where the Group concluded that it itself
is just an agent in arranging goods to be delivered
to the customers. In those situations, the Group
only places purchase orders to suppliers after it has
received trade orders from customers. On the other
hand, where the Group concludes that it itself is a
principal, the Group has significant inventory risk
regarding trading of the motor vehicles as the Group
may not receive any trade orders from customers
before purchasing the motor vehicles from the
suppliers.

(i)  Whether the Group has discretion in establishing
the price for the specified goods or services
and whether the Group is exposed to significant
price risk. The Group basically agreed the price
of the motor vehicles with the customers before
purchasing the motor vehicles from the suppliers
in situations where the Group concludes that it
itself is an agent. When the Group has discretion in
establishing the price for the motor vehicles with the
customers, the Group has exposure to significant
price risk for the trade transactions where the Group
concludes that it is a principal.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(continued)

(e)

(f)

Revenue recognition in respect of motor vehicles

trading business (continued)

(iv)  Whether the pre-agreed trade contracts with
customers are legally binding especially in
circumstances where only insignificant deposits
are received from the customers before the Group
settling the entire purchase amounts with the
suppliers and whether the Group is exposed to
significant credit risk.

Based on the management assessment, the Group
acted as principal in the trading of motor vehicles
transacted during the current year and the proceeds from
trading of motor vehicles amounted to approximately
HK$148,322,000 (2022: HK$180,391,000) for the year
ended 31 December 2023 have been recognised as
revenue of the Group.

Provision for loss on onerous contracts

Management estimates the provision for loss on onerous
contracts, which are related to situations where motor
vehicles have not been delivered to the Group but
purchase agreements were entered into before 31
December 2023, being the present obligation of the
unavoidable costs less the economic benefits expected
to be received under the non-cancellable purchase
contract of motor vehicles. The expected economic
benefits are estimated based on forecast of future trade
with estimated selling price and estimated number of
motor vehicles to be traded under the existing market
condition while unavoidable costs are estimated based on
the motor vehicles purchase contracts that the Group is
obliged to settle.

Management conducted an assessment of the market
conditions and subsequent sales price and the estimates
and assumptions contained therein are reviewed
regularly. As at 31 December 2023, provision for loss on
onerous contracts remained outstanding amounted to
approximately HK$11,390,000 (2022: HK$11,725,000),
details of which are set out in note 30.

4. EXT

stHE RGAFRESEZE

EXRR (#&)

(e)

(f)

SEEREBZWHEER (7

(v) HREEAEREMERE
HEERaRBERIRR  ERE
FWELEREHERT
HEREANMENEZ XN

MERAERORNDKREE
EREAREREERR-

RIEEEBITE KEBNAE
ERAEEZTEEIEEAZD
MEE_E_=F+"B=+—
HEFEASAEEZMEMNREN
148,322,000 (Z8 -
180,391,000 70) B HER ?%ZIK$
&

BESNGIEEE

EEEBEGABENR_-ZEZ=F
+ B =+—HA L ZHER
EEXRODAEERNTAENEE
BREEBEDNIUBRRAZ
IR FF & 1T R TA B AR 3% 1~ AT 8
REBESOWE B E M o
FEHELEMRDERZRIETH
NG EBUKRTEFSEE S
HEMMBRAMNRKE FEETH
§+ 0 7~ 7] 8% 90 BY 7K Bl 32 PR A &2

BBEENSEBE LMt

BEEHmRIUREENEEE
T BEMERESRREN
HetRBE - RN _E_=ZF+_
B=+—H HX@EBEzEESE
#F538#554911,390,000/8 7T (=

T T4 111,725,000 70) 0 5F
EENL
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5. REVENUE 5. W=
Disaggregation of revenue 15 &5 40 3
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BRIEESARBEIPNEREL
major products or service lines is as follows: WA -
2023 2022
—T-=F E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Revenue from contracts with ERMBEREERE159
customers within the scope of HEANER AN
HKFRS 15
Disaggregated by major products BFEEmIRBARE D
or service lines
Trading of motor vehicles where KEBETEFEASHZ
the Group acts as principal BEES 148,322 180,391
Agency and service fees income from R EFRGHREZLER
accessories sourcing RE&EUWA 1,362 8
Commission income from securities FHERIBERLRSE 2
and futures brokerage services EEAYON 343 401
150,027 180,800
Revenue from other sources KEHMKEZWE
Interest income from securities and KRBTSRI EKAART
futures brokerage services ZF) B 12 15
Total revenue W 4B 58 150,039 180,815
Disaggregated by timing of revenue BEMBIRESHERE155
recognition within the scope & B 1 W e e 58 R B 4 9
of HKFRS 15
Over time B - -
At point in time ¥4 055 o) B 150,027 180,800
150,027 180,800
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by BMERRE D ZEE &AW EM D
geographical markets is disclosed in note 6. FR B 5RO B2 o
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION 6. EEH
The executive directors of the Company (the “Executive KRABIZHTES (MRITEE)) HE
Directors”) are regarded as the chief operating decision-maker. ABEFEEEBRARE - WTEETBRLE
The Executive Directors review the Group’s internal reporting in ZABHRE UFRZKREEDEE
order to assess performance and allocate resources. Operating FolREZEREETEEDE-

segments were determined based on these reports.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments are as follows: BEEMs AEEIRESHWT !

1. Trading of motor vehicles, provision of agency services 1. REBEZ -REEHAERE REH
and accessories sourcing — trading of motor vehicles, and RIE—EHE 7 RIEHAEKE
provision of agency and related services R AR 75

2. Brokerage and securities margin financing services — 2. REMBHREBTMERBE IR
provision of brokerage and securities margin financing L KRE S RETMERE
services

3. Trading of listed securities — securities trading 3. BEImEF—HFEE
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment revenue and results

The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and results
by reportable segments:

For the year ended 31 December 2023

NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E"Z-_=F+"A=+—HI-FE

6. SHWEH @
o3 R M B SR AR
UTRAEBRPIHREDEE 2B
mR B

BE_FE_=+_"_B=+—HL#F

E
Trading of
motor
vehicles, Brokerage
provision of and
agency securities
services and margin Trading
accessories financing of listed
sourcing services securities Total
REER Bk
RUAERYE  EHFRESR EE
RE B R LS @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET FET
Segment revenue AEU R
External sales INEREHE 149,684 355 - 150,039
Inter-segment sales DEEHE - - - -
149,684 355 - 150,039
Segment loss DEESE (5,847) (3,653) (455) (9,955)
Interest income FIEWA 116
Other income and gains, net HAWA KW a5 58 13,983
Unallocated expenses RAEEX (16,347)
Share of loss of an associate NME—BHEREER (1,041)
Finance costs e (2,706)
Loss before income tax BRETBIATEE (15,950)
Income tax credit FrEfige 154
Loss for the year EREE (15,796)
EESEEMARAR | CE-=E£ER G
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. 7EEH (E
Segment revenue and results (continued) DEBME R F 4R ()
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE_ZT__F+_"_HB=+—HIHE
E
Trading of
motor
vehicles, Brokerage
provision of and
agency securities
services and margin Trading
accessories financing of listed
sourcing services securities Total
REES e
RERERYE  E5RER g5
REHRE MERE EhES 1zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TAT FTAT
Segment revenue DE MR
External sales SNERSHE 180,399 416 - 180,815
Inter-segment sales DEEHEE - - - -
180,399 416 - 180,815
Segment loss DEEE (1,699) (819) (4,175) (6,693)
Interest income FIBA 15
Other income and losses, net HtARBEFE (5,649)
Unallocated expenses RPEHY (17,297)
Share of loss of an associate HME—EBHE AR -
Finance costs MEmA (1,230)
Loss before income tax PRETBIAIEE (30,854)
Income tax credit FrSiRIER 182
Loss for the year FREE (30,672)

The measure used for reporting segment profits or losses is
adjusted loss before interest and income tax. To arrive at the
adjusted loss, the Group’s loss is further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as fair value
loss on unlisted equity investment, gain on disposal of financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss, certain interest
income and head office or corporate administration costs.

BARREDBar NBEZH AR
BRF B R PTSIATAEREEBIR - B
KRAEER AEEZBRBPHIT KRS
EBRENDEZEBIFHE—T B
BoMFLTREREZATERBE
HERATFESABDZEMEEN
m B F B RA R B E R A E
TER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. SHEN &
Other segment information is as follows: HittpIENUWT -
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZE-_=F+=-A=+—HLE#E
E
Trading of
motor
vehicles, Brokerage
provision of and
agency securities
services and margin Trading
accessories financing of listed
sourcing services securities Unallocated Total
REER BER
RUERERE Fikediik A -
RE#RE HERS L% AR o H
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TER TER TER TET
Additions to property, plant and equipment NE BERZERE 1,650 - - 36 1,686
Depreciation charged NeeIeE 423 5 - 2,219 2,647
Fair value gain on listed equity securities THRAESZ ATENE - - (60) = (60)
Fair value loss on unlisted equity investment FLTREREZATESE - - - 3,650 3,650
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HERNTEANEGZ2REENRR
value through profit or loss - - - (16,386) (16,386)
Share of loss of an associate AME—EHEAFTEE 1,04 - - - 1,04
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables ARBERTEAERE 415 - - - 45
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HENZ RERZEZER 118 - - - 118
Write off of property, plant and equipment MEBBRREENE - - - - -
Write off of trade receivables R B 3 a5 - - - - -
Interest income FISWA (78) U] - (116) (201)

EESEEMARAR | CE-=E£ER 179



/
NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AR R M

{777 O = |
For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
For the year ended 31 December 2022

SEVER (B
BE_Z__F+-A=+—HLHF

180

i3

Trading of
motor
vehicles, Brokerage
provision of and
agency securities
services and margin Trading
accessories financing of listed
sourcing services securities Unallocated Total
REES FERS
RARAERS ESRES BE
REARE B RRE LHES FE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TET TET TAT TAT
Additions to property, plant and equipment NE BERRERE 16 - - 182 198
Depreciation charged Ne0E 201 12 - 3,209 3,422
Falr value loss on listed equity securities THRAESZATEER - - 689 - 689
Fair value loss on unlisted equity investment FLmREREZATESE - - - 6,217 6,217
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HERATEH A EGEZ2REERS
value through profit or loss - - - - -
Share of loss of an associate ME—BHELTER - - - - -
Impairment loss recognised on trade receivables RENEZREAERE 1,331 - - - 1,331
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment HEME BRRREZHE - - - - _
Write off of property, plant and equipment ME- BB RRENS - - - 2 2
Write off of trade receivables W E Z3aM 430 - - - 430
Interest income FIEBA (2,262) - - (15) (2,277)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E"Z-_=F+"A=+—HI-FE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.
The segment assets and segment liabilities of the Group as at
31 December 2023 and 2022 are analysed as follows:

SEBEH (@)
AEEBR_ZE_=ZFR-EB"C
TZR=+—HHOMEERDHE
BT :

Segment assets 2023 2022
REEE —E-=HF E-
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Trading of motor vehicles, provision AHEB S RERERE
of agency services and KeBo R
accessories sourcing 180,730 164,430
Brokerage and securities margin K e S5 ReE TR E RS
financing services 17,390 22,267
Trading of listed securities B5E LHES 847 762
Total reportable segment assets RSN HEERE 198,967 187,459
Unallocated assets KAELEE 45,312 45,345
Consolidated assets REEE 244,279 232,804
Segment liabilities 2023 2022
SEPEE —E-= =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Trading of motor vehicles, provision AEEB S EERERE
of agency services and KBRS
accessories sourcing 85,156 59,366
Brokerage and securities margin Rl RBHREBETHERT
financing services 5,753 6,397
Trading of listed securities BE FmES - -
Total reportable segment liabilities ARENHaBEEE 90,909 65,763
Unallocated liabilities el =R 35,151 29,632
Consolidated liabilities a8l 126,060 95,395

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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6.

182

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Segment assets consist primarily of certain property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, right-of-use assets, statutory
deposits and other assets, inventories, trade receivables,
certain prepayments, deposits and other receivables, certain
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and certain
bank balances and cash.

Segment liabilities consists primarily of trade payables, certain
other payables and accruals, contract liabilities, provisions and
certain lease liabilities.

Geographical information

The Group mainly operates in the PRC, including Hong Kong.
Revenue from external customers are allocated based on the
geographical areas in which the customers are located.

An analysis of the Group’s revenue and non-current assets
(excluding financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) by
geographical location are as follows:

SBWEH (E
NHEETZAELOVE HERR
B-EVEE - CREEE ZEHSE
REMEE -FE -BREBZRE &
DAMRE R RAMBRRE 5
TERAFESABRmZEMEENR
WOIRITAEFRRIEE -

NHEETEZAERNEZRE B
HthENRERESRE - GHNER
BEUKRETHESRE

EER
AERTERPE (BEEER) KE3
BONRER Z W@ E P Pt & &)

7 e

& B IZMIBAE S W m & IER
HEE FEERATESAEZZE
MEE) DfWT :

2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FET
Revenue from external customers RESMBEE UxE
Hong Kong 55 355 416
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong FE (REIEEE) 149,684 180,399
150,039 180,815
Non-current assets (excluding ERBEE (FEIE
financial assets at fair value BATESAEEZ
through profit or loss) ETREE)
Hong Kong 54 19,903 21,522
The PRC, excluding Hong Kong FE (FEIEER) 3,914 6,027
23,817 27,549
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6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6.

Geographical information (continued)

The geographical location of non-current assets (excluding
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss) is based on
the physical location of assets (in the case of property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets), the location of the
operations to which they are allocated (in the case of intangible
assets, statutory deposits and other assets, rental and other
deposits paid), and location of operations (in the case of
interests in associates).

Information about major customers
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of the Group’s
revenue is as follows:

SBWEH (E

HEEX (8

HRME - RERRFEREREEE
FERBEE (FEERAFES ARG
ZEMEE) CHBUEBNDERBEEN
BERUBEME HRELEE EER
EREMEE -ENEEREMZE
H B BT EREFTEEBMMmIE
HRRBEAR 2 Em IIENEE
M AE °

FEERRZENR
HAREBWKEI0%U L2 & A U &
I

2023 2022
—EB-=H =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Trading of motor vehicles, provision ;SHEE 5 - iR IERFE R
of agency services and e
accessories sourcing
Customer A ZPA 39,193 54,266
Customer B =ZFEB 34,756 N/A A~ 3E A
Customer C ZEC 18,908 N/A 738
Customer D %FD N/A FiERB* 40,578
Customer E EFE N/A RER* 28,344

Each of the customer D and customer E did not contribute over 10% of
the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2023.

# Each of the customer B and customer C did not contribute over 10% of

the Group’s revenue for the year ended 31 December 2022.

ERESEEERBRAF |

—=— =

—_<——

FER

EFDREFEEENRBE_S_=F+_
A=+ —BLEEURGEFAERREH

10%A L

EPRBRERCEENBE_T__F+=
B=Z+—HLEEFEIRERERREH

10%A ko
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7. OTHER INCOME AND GAINS/ (LOSSES), NET 7. Hth AR~ (§518) B%E
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Other income Hhlg A
CCASS fee income RREERFER WA 12 12
Interest income from bank deposits RITERFEWA 201 2,277
Dividends from financial assets AT ESFAERZ
at fair value through profit or loss THEEZRE 100 -
Government grants and subsidies (Note a) BT ## B K /@5 (Ffsta) - 412
Sundry income (Note b) HIEW A (Fi5Eb) 1,141 1,188
1,454 3,889
Other gains and losses Hth iz R E548
Fair value gain/(loss) on financial assets B AF{EtAERZZ
at fair value through profit or loss ETMEBEZATE
(Note 24) W (K518) (MIsE24)
— Listed equity securities — LR AEE 60 (689)
— Unlisted equity investment —JEEHRERE (3,650) (6,217)
— Unlisted fund investment —JELmEEKRE 31 -
(3,559) (6,906)
Exchange gains, net P UL 2 75 KB 97 292
Gain on disposal of financial assets at fair HERAFEF AERZZ
value through profit or loss (Note c) TREEWRD (skc) 16,386 -
Gain on lease termination HE&IEWE - 8
Write off of property, L E R Y 6
plant and equipment = (2)
Other gains/(losses), net Hthlez,~ (F518) $58 12,924 (6,608)
Other income and gains/(losses), net Hiw AR (B518) 3258 14,378 (2,719)
Notes: MI5E -
(@)  The conditions for the government grants and subsidies have been fulfilled (a) FEBMBEREHRE W E BT /B R E
by the Group up to the end of the reporting period. B B9 (& 5 ©
(b) In previous years, the Group had paid earnest money amounted to a total (b) RBEFEE AEEARERWE—KF
of RMB20,000,000 for the proposed acquisition of a PRC entity and such EREL (4% A AR 120,000,0007T 89 5
earnest money was recognised as an expense for the prior year ended 31 Be FRANERSHIABE_ZS—tHF
December 2017. During the current year, the earnest money previously +ZA=1+—HLELEAFENRIZ KK
paid to the extent of RMB1,000,000, equivalent to HK$1,100,000 (2022: FE LAEZANNHES ARB1,000,000
RMB1,000,000, equivalent to HK$1,156,000) was refunded to the Group 7c (FEE 71,100,000 T) (ZE_-__F: A
which was included in sundry income. X #51,000,0007t (#8E 741,156,000 7T) )

BREFHAER Wt ABBEHAF-

() During the current year, the Group recognised gain on disposal of financial (c) RAFEE AEEBEIRHERAFETA
assets at fair value through profit or loss — unlisted equity investment of BmzemMBEE-FLmREREZ W=
HK$16,386,000 (2022: Nil), details of which are set out in note 24(b) to 16,386,000 70 (C B4 1 &) - HIEH
the consolidated financial statements. RARE B RMIEE24(0) ©
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8. FINANCE COSTS 8. FMEMZA
2023 2022
—E-= =2
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Interest on lease liabilities HEaBZHE 63 48
Interest on other borrowings HERZHE 2,643 1,182
2,706 1,230
9. LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX 9. [RPFRGIRAIEIE
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAETT
Loss before income tax has been FRETISIBIRSIE
arrived at after charging: BIRTIEIE .
Auditor’s remuneration 1Z EEM N &=
— Audit services —ZEBRTE 630 630
— Non-audit services — JERZ B 75 100 100
Loss on disposal of property, plant and  HEYE 4B RREZEHIE
equipment 118 -
Legal and professional fees FRERBEER 465 620
Consultancy fees BHER 370 1,558
Exhibition and marketing fee BEATMSGHEREER 502 361
Write off of trade receivables FE W B 5 FRIE i - 430
The above expenses are included in other expenses presented LA AGEREaREMEZEIK
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other ARKEINEMBIZ

comprehensive income.
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10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

10. ESB\ARAX

2023 2022
—E-= -_F==

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Wages and salaries ITE&ERHE 13,351 13,446

Pension costs — defined contribution BT —EREHEAREE

schemes 313 351
Employee benefit expenses including EERHHS BEEHE

directors’ emoluments (Note 11) (FFE11) 13,664 13,797

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had no forfeited
contributions, which arose upon employees leaving the
defined contribution schemes, and are available to reduce the
contribution payable in future years (2022: Nil).

Pursuant to the Hong Kong Employment Ordinance, Chapter
57, the Group has the obligation to pay LSP to qualifying
employees in Hong Kong under certain circumstances (e.g.
dismissal by employers or upon retirement), subject to a
minimum of 5 years employment period, based on certain
formula.

Furthermore, the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance passed in 1995 permits the Group to utilise the
Group’s mandatory MPF contributions, plus/minus any positive/
negative returns thereof, for the purpose of offsetting LSP
payable to an employee (the “Offsetting Arrangement’).

The Amendment Ordinance was gazetted on 17 June 2022,
which abolishes the use of the accrued benefits derived from
employers’ mandatory MPF contributions to offset the LSP. The
Abolition will officially take effect on the Transition Date (i.e., 1
May 2025). Separately, the Government of the HKSAR is also
expected to introduce a subsidy scheme to assist employers
for a period of 25 years after the Transition Date on the LSP
payable by employers up to a certain amount per employee
per year. The impact from the Amendment Ordinance on the
Group’s LSP liability is considered insignificant.

RESHR AEBTERNESERRET
FRMLRRET B M AROR W > X BT ARSI R
REEZBRAERCEZ2F 1 H) -

RI(ERBEREOD BT AEBE
BEBRT (B0 1R = M7 &R IKE)
BEEERNGEREBEEXNRMAR
B ERBRETANEBBHERL S5
o

o K= N EFEBBRRFIEAE
T EFRAAFAEEIREERZ
sefMRBESENR ML IREERIE
/BB DURHETEE 2 RIARS
& (HRIEZ ) °

BEIEAR -_E-__FXB++tH2
£ BER T E AR IR EMPREAYRY
FE 5t 38 7 2R 3L SHLS PRI UL o BE PR S 1
BEHS BEI_E_AFERHFA—AB) E
AR o Lo FEEFRITEE BT A
SHEBIE BB E R H — T8
BstE UEBIEF ST —C£BENE
IEEEFENLSP ST KA AER
LSPEENFERRABTEKNC
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS 11. E5ME
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE_ZT_=—F+_"_B=+—HI=E
E
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Fees in kind scheme Total
&
Name of directors Bk BHhEiEz
BEE4 Note ik BWHE EEHR @t
i HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
FET FERT FERT FET
Executive Directors BITEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and IEREE
Chief Executive Officer) (FERTHER) - 1,800 18 1,818
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REBLT - 600 18 618
Non-executive Director FRITES
Mr. Liu Runtong Epel b - - - =
Independent Non-executive BULEHTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHR 130 - - 130
Mr. Li Jianxing FRITEE 125 - - 125
Professor Chen Shu Wen B SR 120 - - 120
Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan FUBAE (i 78 - - 78
453 2,400 36 2,889
ERSEEEARAD | ZEZ=FFR
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11. DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS (continued) 11. EEM=E @)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BHE_Z”_"_F+ZHA=+—HIEHF
E
Salaries, Employer’s
allowances, contributions
and benefits to pension
Fees in kind scheme Total
e
Name of directors EMR BAsHEZ
EEe Fiokn gl EBEHZ st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET TET TET
Executive Directors HTEE
Mr. Wang Jiawei (Chairman and IEREE
Chief Executive Officer) (FERTHER) - 1,800 18 1,818
Ms. Lai Yuk Mui REBELT - 600 18 618
Non-executive Director ERTES
Mr. Liu Runtong Epel b - - - -
Independent Non-executive BIUFRTES
Directors
Professor Zhang Benzheng RAEHR 130 - - 130
Mr. Li Jianxing FRITEE 125 - - 125
Professor Chen Shu Wen B SR 120 - - 120
375 2,400 36 2,811
Note: M 5E
(i) Mr. Lee Kwun Kwan appointed as independent Non-executive Director of (i) FEBEERZEATRBBILIENITE
the Company with effect from 8 May 2023. 2 EBIZ_=FRAN\BREN-
During the current year, no emoluments were paid by the RAFEE  REBRMERAEEZEM
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon B <& (E A& 5| AN 88 3 7 0 B A 5 B B
joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office (2022: 2B EABMERE (CE2Z
Nil). None of the directors waived or agreed to waive any /) FRO UIEEEMNEXARENRE
remuneration during the year (2022: Nil). RS (CEZZF . #)o
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E"Z-_=F+"A=+—HI-FE

12. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the
Group for the year include two (2022: two) directors, whose
remuneration are set out in note 11.

The aggregate of the emoluments in respect of the remaining
three (2022: three) highest individuals are as follows:

12.

TmEEHAL
FRAERARLRLRSHATEERS
(ZEZZF  MmA) £ HEZM
B NN

BT=% (CE—F . =2) 255/
ANTHBNEAR2E00 T ¢

2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Salaries and other emoluments e R EMME 3,600 3,600
Retirement schemes contributions BRIRET SRR 18 18
3,618 3,618
The emoluments of the three (2022: three) individuals with the =R (CEIF =) BREF AT
highest emoluments are within the following bands: Bt T 5 EE
2023 2022
—E-= —E-—
Number of Number of
individual individual
A A
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007% 7T 2 2
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 B =E
2,500,000% 7T 1 1

During the current year, no emoluments were paid by the
Group to the five highest paid individuals as an inducement to
join or upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of
office (2022: Nil).

—EBECZFER

rEE AEBTERLLRSHFAL
SAAE RN & 1F 73 TR 51 00 B8 3 2R
AEEFRZ EBIEAERBE (CF
—TFEIE) o
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13.

190

Rt %5 ¥ &= MY 5E

=

=F+ZRA=1+—HLFE

INCOME TAX CREDIT 13. FRiSIESR

2023 2022
—E-= =B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAIT
Current tax BIHATR I8
— Under provision of PRC enterprise —BEFEPEDE

income tax in prior years FTi8MEERE 28 -
Deferred tax credit (Note 33) EIEFR B % (MF5E33) (182) (182)
Income tax credit FriSiikR (154) (182)

No provision for Hong Kong profits tax and PRC enterprise
income tax has been made in the consolidated financial
statements as the group companies incurred tax losses for the

year ended 31 December 2023 (2022: Nil).

The income tax credit can be reconciled to the loss before
income tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

HREBRRAREE_SE_=F+_
B=+—BLEFEELEMREBEEE K
TERGEMBERRAMEENER
RAPECEFESRRER (T2
&Fm) e

RSB ETAGaEaREMEE
WABRERZRPIISIRAT 2 B EH R
T

2023 2022
== =B

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FHT FAEIT

Loss before income tax PRFETISIRATES 18 (15,950) (30,854)

Tax calculated at domestic tax rates in BEBMRB B EEERE

respective tax jurisdiction HEZRIE (2,311) (6,195)

Income not subject to tax BERBUTA (3,503) (308)
Expenses not deductible for MIRIBEE TR 2 B2

tax purposes 2,926 4,658

Unused tax losses not recognised FERZ KB BRIERHE 2,608 1,597

Prior year’s tax losses utilised FAZABTEEERIEBEESE (20) -

Temporary differences not provided KRB HRER 118 66

Under provision in prior year BEFERBETE 28 -

Income tax credit Fri8fig % (154) (182)
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14. LOSS PER SHARE
(a) Basic loss per share

The calculation of the basic loss per share attributable to

14. SiREE
(a) SRELREE

TRBEEANBESREREE

owners of the Company is based on the following data: ZETEERUTEIE
2023 2022
—T-=F E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Loss for the purpose of MtEESRERSEIEZEE
basic loss per share
Loss for the year attributable to ZIN/NETEZZ =N
owners of the Company FELFEE (15,777) (30,660)
2023 2022
== =S
’000 000
T g T 5%
Number of shares for the Mt EERERSGEZ
purpose of basic loss per share BRI3EEH
Number of ordinary shares in issue FARDXETZEREE
during the year 7,748,958 7,748,958
(b) Diluted loss per share (b) ERIBEEIE
No diluted loss per share for both of the years ended 31 WAEINHEHE_E_—FR_F

December 2023 and 2022 is presented as there were no
potential ordinary shares in issue for both of the years.

15. DIVIDENDS
The directors of the Company do not recommend payment of
a dividend in respect of the year ended 31 December 2023
(2022: Nil).

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

15.

T HE+ - RA=+—HIEmESE
EzeREEEEE FRAME
FEHEETETZER-

35N
ARBEEIEBUBE_T =&
TTA=T+—HLEEFEERTRE (CF
T HE ) o
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16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. X B R=E
Leasehold Office
land and Leasehold equipment Computer Motor
buildings improvements  and furniture equipment vehicles Total
HE WAER
TiRiEFT HAEVERE Rfxfih BiERE HE th
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET THET THET TAT TAT
At 1 January 2022 RZ§--%-A-H
Cost A& 40,327 1,198 1,146 730 5,640 49,041
Accumulated depreciation RitE (17,609) (892) (1,049) (701) (3,999) (24,250)
Carrying amount REE 22,718 306 97 29 1,641 24,791
Year ended 31 December 2022 BE-Z_CE
+ZA=+-ALEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 RIEZZE-F-HZEKEE 22,718 306 97 29 1,641 24,791
Additions, at cost REBAA - 173 25 - - 198
Currency translation difference BERAEEDR - 1) 85 - (121) (57)
Disposals and write off HE RS - - @ - - @
Depreciation charge TERY (1,613) (200) 68) (20) (218) 2,119)
Carrying amount at WZEZZF+ZA=+—-HZKERE
31 December 2022 21,105 268 137 9 1,302 22,811
At 31 December 2022 RZE--f+-A=+-H
Cost A 40,327 1,336 1,106 730 5,418 48,917
Accumulated depreciation ES i (19,222) (1,078) (969) (721) (4,116) (26,106)
Carrying amount REE 21,105 258 137 9 1,302 22,811
Year ended 31 December 2023 HE-EC-=
+ZB=+-ALEE
Carrying amount at 1 January 2023 RZE_=F-F—-HZKAE 21,105 258 137 9 1,302 22,811
Additions, at cost AE BAK - - 36 - 1,650 1,686
Currency translation difference BRAEER - ) (92) - (53) (153)
Disposals and write off HE B8 - - - = (1,462) (1,462)
Depreciation charge FEEY (1,613) {1 ™) ) (368) (2,072)
Carrying amount at RIBZZF+-A=+-HZKER
31 December 2023 19,492 233 10 6 1,069 20,810
At 31 December 2023 HZEZ=£+ZRA=+-H
Cost i 40,327 1,321 1,121 730 5,341 48,840
Accumulated depreciation ZiiTE (20,835) (1,088) {1,11) (724) 4,272) (28,030)
Carrying amount REE 19,492 233 10 6 1,069 20,810
Note: B sE
As at 31 December 2023, leasehold land and buildings in Hong Kong with R _=ZF+_A=+—HB REBFEAE
the carrying amount of approximately HK$19,492,000 (2022: approximately IREEXNA19,492,0008c (ZEZZ2F ' 4§
HK$21,105,000) was pledged to secure the other borrowings of the Group (Note 21,105,000/ 70) 2 A E T+ RIEFERIEARE
31). RNEEZ HMEREIER (i5E31) o
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17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

17. FREEE

Office premises

MAEE

HK$’'000

FHET

Carrying amount at 1 January 2022 RIZEZZF—HF—HZERAEE 1,244

Additions, at cost =R NN 1,767

Lease termination HE&IE (36)

Depreciation charged for the year FRITERS (1,303)

Exchange realignment fE 2 eH 61)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2022 and A B F+ZA=+—HK

1 January 2023 2 -F—FB—HZEEE 1,611

Depreciation charged for the year FRITERE (575)

Exchange realignment PE A 2 (43)

Carrying amount at 31 December 2023 RN _EBE_=F+_H=+—H
ZREE 993
2023 2022
== =S

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHT FHET

Total cash outflow for leases HEZRE& ML BLE 615 1,367

For both of the years presented, the Group leases office
premises for its operations. Lease contracts are entered into
for fixed term of one to three years, but may have extension
and termination options. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain different terms and conditions. In
determining the lease term and assessing the length of the
non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a
contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

RETZ27IMEBEFE  ZEBIREE
HERAEYE -HESIEEHR
/EZF > BREALEERKILEE
B-HERRRENEEER #B T
B R B 5% 1 o PO FE E AR HA XL ST A /T
HWISFRRER  AEBBAGHNNE
FAH BT S AP SR B ATTHVEAR ©
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s To THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Rt %5 ¥ &= MY 5E

18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. MICEE
Software Trading rights Total
B RA1E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2023 and NZE-=ZF—RF—HR
31 December 2023 —E-=%4+-RA=+-H
Cost Bl A 104 3,224 3,328
Accumulated amortisation Rt (104) (3,224) (3,328)
Carrying amount IREME - - -
At 1 January 2022 and N-E-_-§—F—HRK
31 December 2022 —®_-f+ZRA=+-H
Cost (BN 104 3,224 3,328
Accumulated amortisation Rty (104) (3,224) (3,328)
Carrying amount IREME - - -
Note: fisE :
The trading rights as at 31 December 2023 and 31 December 2022 represent REZBZ=F+ZR=1+—BRZIEZZ&H+Z
two trading rights on the Stock Exchange and one trading right on the Hong B=+—RzZRSBIEMEHRARZEKR—E
Kong Futures Exchange Limited. HEBRERGMERABDZRZZ# -
19. STATUTORY DEPOSITS AND OTHER ASSETS 19. ZERERHMEE
2023 2022
—E-= —_=F_
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Hong Kong Securities Clearing EBPREHEERAE
Company Limited (‘HKSCC”) (FEAB&EH))
Contribution fund deposit REBETHEE 100 100
Admission fee deposit WnE#ZE 100 100
The Stock Exchange of ERAMERZMAERLE
Hong Kong Limited
Compensation fund deposit BEREERE 100 100
Fidelity fund deposit BEREEERE 100 100
Stamp duty deposit EN{fEMRIE S 5 5
405 405

194
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 20. RMBARIZIRE
The following is a list of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as UTFTAR_BE_=FKr_ZFT__
at 31 December 2023 and 2022: +ZR=+—HZARBEIERBA
ABE
Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
BRARFAHERS
RERHRREE
. . . . As at
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued 31 December
establishment and share capital/ o
kind of legal entity registered capital ®+=R=+-H Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary MM Rt R BRTRE/ 2023 2022 place of operations
WEARRE EEERER HAMELHE ZFZZE —T2-F IEEBREENY
% %
Sinofortune Financial British Virgin Islands, Issued capital 100 100 Investment holding
Holdings (BVI) Limited limited liability company 611,700 ordinary shares
of US$1 each
Sinofortune Financial HERYHEE BRAT B#17611,7008% 100 100 RERK
Holdings (BVI) Limited SREEIETZEBR
Stockmartnet Limited Hong Kong, limited Issued capital 100 100 Investment holding
liability company 3 ordinary shares
with no par value
SHHBRAF EH BRAF BET3R 100 100 REZK
REEZEER
Sinofortune Securities Limited Hong Kong, limited Issued capital 100 100 Securities and futures
liability company 77,000,000 brokerage and securities
ordinary shares margin financing services
with no par value in Hong Kong
EREFERAA B BRRF 2%1777,000,0008% 100 100 REBREESRBE
BRHEBEzEER KM RBESREER
Bk
Sinofortune Asset Management Hong Kong, limited Issued capital 100 100 Asset management
Limited liability company 500,000
ordinary share
with no par value
ERQEEEERRAT B BRRF B%17500,0008% BEER
RHEBEzEER
Sinofortune Financial Capital Limited Hong Kong, limited Issued capital 100 100 Corporate finance
liability company 2,400,000 services
ordinary share
with no par value
ERERMERRAT &8 BRRF B#172,400,000% TERERS

EREZEBR
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NoTes To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
EaMBFEHRERMEE

For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMBARZIRE (&
Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
FARFHEE
REEERIRTE
. . . . As at
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued 31 December
establishment and share capital/ o
kind of legal entity registered capital ®+=R=+-H Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary MM Rt BRTRE/ 2023 2022 place of operations
WEARRE EEERER HAMELHE ZFIZE —T2CF IEEBREENY
% %
IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited  British Virgin Islands, Issued capital 100 100 Investment holding
limited liability company 1 ordinary share
of US$1 each
IFN-GT Financial Holdings Limited ~ REBEZE S BRAF BETIR 100 100 RERK
SRABIZETZERRK
Sinofortune Property Limited Hong Kong, limited Issued capital 100 100 Property holding in
liability company 1 ordinary share Hong Kong
with no par value
ERMERRAR &8 BRAF BETIR 100 100 REBEFENE
REEZEER
Aceview International Limited British Virgin Islands, Issued capital 100 100 Investment holding
limited liability company 1 ordinary share
of US$1 each
HEERERAR ERRLEE BRAR BETIR 100 100 REER
SRABIZETZERRK
GoHi Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands, Issued capital 100 100 Investment holding

limited liability company 35,000 ordinary shares
of US$1 each

GoHi Holdings Limited HEREHE BRAF B81735,000% 100 100 REER
SREEIETZEER

FNEBHBEREZHBIRAT  PRC, foreign wholly- Registered capital 100 100 Provision of education
(transliterated as Shenzhen owned enterprise of RMB40,000,000 information and
Sinofortune Education consultancy services
Investment Consultancy in the PRC
Company Limited)

FERHERELAERAD  HEHEBEELE AMEARR 100 100 RAEREHEER

AR 40,000,0007T KB

FNERZEEEBLERRAE  PRC, limited Registered capital 95 95 Precious metals
(transliterated as Shenzhen liability company of RMB20,000,000 brokerage and
Guoyin Brilliant Precious Metals spot trading in the PRC
Limited)

MIERFEEEELEERAE FE ERAS SAMELRR 95 9% RABERFEEZELL

A K 20,000,0007¢ KRER S
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBABIZIRE (&)

Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Company
BRARFAHERS
BRI FE
. . . . As at
Place of incorporation/  Particulars of issued 31 December
establishment and share capital/ o
kind of legal entity registered capital ®+=R=+-H Principal activities and
Name of subsidiary MM Rt R BRTRE/ 2023 2022 place of operations
WEARAE EEERER AMESHE “¥ZZE “T__F TEXBREEY
% %

EERAAEERESERA PRC, limited Registered capital 99.67 99.67 Trading of motor vehicles,
(trangliterated as Chongqmg liability company of RMB150,000,000 provision of agency
Sheng Yu Hong Jia services and accessories
International Trading sourcing in the PRC
Company Limited)

EFEANZERESZERAE  FE BRAF AMERS 99.67 99.67 RAEAZER

AR #150,000,0007T RIEAERS
REHRE

BOREBREKEZERAT  PRC, limited Registered capital 98.67 - Trading of motor vehicles
(translitered as Hai Kou Shenhua liability company of RMB50,000,000 in the PRC
Tongda International Trading
Company Limited)

BOREBAERESZBRAE  FE BRAF AMERS 98.67 - RAESBEES

AR #50,000,0007%

FNEEENHRERER A PRC, foreign wholly- Registered capital 100 100 Investment holding
(trangliterated as Shenzhen owned enterprise of HK$50,000,000 in the PRC
Huayi Biotechnology
Group Company Limited)

MIEREMVEEEBRRE  FE HEBELE AMELRR 100 100 RAERERR
50,000,000 70

FNEEREEMERZERAE  PRC, limited Registered capital 20 0 Inactive
(transliterated as Shenzhen liability company of RMB5,000,000
Huayi Health Biotechnology
Company Limited)

MIEEREEMREBRRE  FE ERAS SAMELRR 20 90 BEH
AR 15,000,0007¢
Note: FisE
1. The place of operation of subsidiaries are located on their place of 1. i B8 2 B 9 € 5 3 RE A 5 B 5 1 A 3

incorporation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HZE_"Z—
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20. INVESTMENTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 20. RMIBABZIRE (&)
The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, LRI EERAHRADELENE
in the opinion of the directors, principally affect the results or EERFEXENBLRE] - EER
assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, Ao ENHEMME AR 2B ENE
in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive MBER K.
length.
2023 2022
—E-= —E
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Company’s commitment to provide KRABNREBERFHKE QB
funding to subsidiaries if called RIEEEZ KA 82,775 29,072
As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there are no contingent N_E_=ZFRZZEZZF+ZA
liabilities relating to the Group’s interest in the subsidiaries. =T—B UEARAERRWEAT
2R RARER
Material non-controlling interests ERIEERED
The non-controlling interests in respect of each of the BRAA QB 1ERA M B A B BV FE R B #E
Company’s relevant subsidiaries are not material. mIAAREK
21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 21. REE AR Z#EXE
2023 2022
=== =S
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAEIT
Cost of unlisted investments in REE AT ZIE EMEEME
associates 21,893 22,536
Share of post-acquisition losses DIEWEEEBEE R
and other comprehensive income H2mUA 229 1,270
Impairment loss recognised BERREEE (23,180) (23,180)
Exchange realignment b 2 eH 1,136 520
78 1,146
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21. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)
Particulars regarding the associates are as follows:

e M BRRNE

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

21.

REEQRZz2#Ex (&
ERBE AR ZFREIIWMT

Attributable equity
interest
and voting power
held by the Group
TEEBARERS
REEaRigRiE
Place of As at
. . 31 December
incorporation/ _
establishment and Particulars of ®+ZR=+-H Principal activities and
Name of associate kind of legal entity registered capital 2023 2022 place of operations
SRR R
WEQARAE HREEERER HAMEFHE —“T=F “Z”°"°F TEZBRER MY
% %
FNFERBERBEERRAE PRC, limited Registered capital 38 38 Provision of computer
ERANASEZRRE R liability company of RMB100,000,000 system service and
RETOERAR) (AEEE) T BRA AMELRS information technology
(transliterated as Shenzhen Xixun AE100,000,0007¢ consultancy service in
Network Technology Company the PRC
Limited (formerly known as TEHEREHERRR
Shenzhen Qianhai First China RBRIE BRI H AR
International Commodities
Exchange Centre Limited))
(“Qianhai First China”)
ANFAEEREBRAT
EBFIE sEZERE M
RBFOBRAE) (AIEEE)
FNBHRFEREERLAE PRC, limited Registered capital 40 40 Inactive
(transliterated as Shenzhen liability company of RMB50,000,000 BER
Si Te Ecotechnology Company  H1E]» ARAF] AMELA
Limited)* AR #50,000,0007%
FNBERRREERA D
The Group’s commitment to contribute registered capital of this associate, AEER_Z_=H+"A=+—HXK#

if called, at 31 December 2023 amounted to RMB18,982,000 (2022:

RMB18,982,000).

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

HzBEABMNEMER WMEEXR) HE
AE#18,982,0007c (ZEZZ4F . AR
18,982,0007T) °

199



e

200

NoTes To THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
z-b P

W

5 M w R MW

For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

21.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Qianhai First China
Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China

21.

REEQRZz#E=s (@)

AIBEE

FIBEEZHMBEHEE

2023 2022
—g-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
Current assets MNEE 23,454 30,325
Non-current assets EREEE 3 10
Current liabilities P =R (33,761) (34,755)
Net liabilities & &3E (10,304) (4,420)
2023 2022
—E=HF -
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT BT
Revenue W = - -
Loss for the year FREE (6,044) (4,891)
Aggregate amounts of translation RgBHE QB 2
reserve arising from translating of the BAFIRERMELEZ
associate’s financial statements PEREBEESRE 160 101
Total comprehensive losses S HEE B (5,884) (4,791)
Unrecognised share of REREREGEEZEEBER
comprehensive losses for the year (2,235) (1,821)
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 21. REBEARZER (&
Qianhai First China (continued) ABEHE &)
Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China FEEEZHBEENFTE (&
(continued)
Reconciliation of the summarised financial information to the BHEENBEARSM BRI PESR
carrying amount of the interest in the associate recognised in ZRBERB 2 R 2 IREENHER .
the consolidated financial statements:
2023 2022
—2-= =B
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET TFAETT
Net liabilities of Qianhai First China AIEEEZAEFE (10,304) (4,420)
Proportion of the Group’s ownership in ZNEBRAEEEZ
Qianhai First China FREDHT 38% 38%
The Group’s share of net liabilities AEBEGLAIBEEES
of Qianhai First China BERE (3,915) (1,680)
Goodwill on acquisition included in FAREBEHMEAT ZHAZ
cost of investment in associate g 14,150 14,150
The Group’s unrecognised share of REBRERELZEE
comprehensive losses #5148 12,945 10,710
Impairment loss recognised on interest FREAE AT 2~
in associate (Note) ERESREEE (M) (23,180) (23,180)

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest ZEBRAIBEEZEH

in Qianhai First China

SREE -

Note:

In the prior year ended 31 December 2017, Qianhai First China suspended its
business operations as a result of the implementation of review by the PRC local
government of the laws and regulations governing the operations of Qianhai
First China. In this regard, impairment loss on interest in this associate was fully
recognised in the consolidated financial statements for that year, and the Group
ceased to account for the associate using the equity method of accounting.

Up to the end of the reporting period, the PRC local government’s review of
the laws and regulations is still in progress, accordingly, no adjustment on the
impairment loss previously recognised on the interest in associate is considered
to be made in the consolidated financial statements of the current year.

Certain comprehensive losses of this associate were not recognised as
impairment loss on interest in this associate was made in the consolidated
financial statements.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

GEX

BE_B—tHF+_A=+—HLBEFE H
PR B S BT B B B AT S B E L E R ER
ERETES RSEEGEHGEE sltm
EORBRBMEAR IR ZREGEENZFE
NG BRETHED MAERTBRAE
mESHAHBME AT ETEHEE-

EERSHFR PEMA BT NEREEZRENR
At AEBREAFEZEEHBREAHEBE
MNE AR 2 M R EBRIFHEE

BiEZBHERRZET2ABRIERESR > HEA
ERNGEFBRERELZMEQATD 2 REZRE
548
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INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

Qianhai First China (continued)

Summarised financial information of Qianhai First China
(continued)

Litigation against Qianhai First China

As at 31 December 20283, Qianhai First China has no
unresolved legal cases relating to the contracts dispute with
investors.

As at 31 December 2022, Qianhai First China had some
unresolved legal case relating to contract dispute with
investors involving the total claimed amount of approximately
RMB2,924,000 (approximately HK$3,292,000) which had been
recognised in the financial statements of this associate for
that year. During the current year, settlement of most of these
claims were made by the associate and no material claims
were outstanding as at 31 December 2023.

Commitments in respect of Qianhai First China

21.

REEQRZz2#Ex (&
ABEE (&)

FIBEEZMBEHFE (&

HEmBEEZHR
RIEBE_=Z#+"A=+—H fBE
FRREEZBTENRERZAS
MMM ERIB A REF -

W_E2__F+_-_RA=+—H 788
EEETNARBRZEBZEESHNY
MR ARRG P RERSES
AR 1E2,924,0007T (893,292,000
BT ZESHEERILHERARREE
M BRERTER - RAEE - BEX
MORRIVHABERNDEB KT
TZE+A=t+—HuEEAKE
BRZERo

BRRBEEZRE

2023 2022
—g-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
Group’s commitment to provide funding 2~ B 52 Z KB [0 78 & FE IR
to Qianhai First China if called BE 2K 20,780 21,390
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22. INVENTORIES 22, 78
2023 2022
—E-= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FAETT
Finished goods DA 38 39

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

BRABALZLF ARG EaZEFES

expense and included in consolidated statement of profit or BEOWMT
loss is as follows:
2023 2022
—Eg-= =
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT FAETT
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 147,239 178,396
23. TRADE RECEIVABLES 23. EWEZHRE
2023 2022
—EZ=HF TETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHTT BT
Trade receivables arising from BERULEBMES
securities brokerage business: FEW B ZFIE .
Margin clients REBESERL 40 165
Cash clients REER 60 150
Hong Kong Securities Clearing EBFRREEEFRAE
Company Limited (“‘HKSCC”) (net) (T&EBEE)) BB 20 -
120 315
Trade receivables arising from ABESMMEY
trading of motor vehicles: EWE ZNIE :
Gross receivable B W R TE 4B 2B 1,892 3,490
Less: impairment loss recognised B BRERRRERE (1,672) (1,296)
220 2,194
340 2,509

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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23.

R R

T =F+_RA=t+—HLEEE

TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables arising from margin clients

Trade receivables from margin clients at 31 December 2023
are repayable on demand, bearing interest at prevailing market
rates and are secured by clients’ pledged securities which
are listed on the Stock Exchange with a total market value of
approximately HK$8,279,000 (2022: HK$10,214,000) as at that
date. The Group considers that the credit risk arising from the
receivables from margin clients is significantly mitigated by the
client’s pledged securities.

Receivables arising from cash clients and HKSCC

The settlement terms of the receivables arising from cash
clients and HKSCC are one or two trade days after the trade
execution date.

Aged analysis of receivables arising from securities brokerage
business is not presented as management of the Company
considers that the aged analysis does not give additional value
in view of the nature of this business.

Receivables from trading of motor vehicles
The receivables from customers in respect of the trading of
motor vehicles are due in 120 days from date of billing.

As at 31 December 2023, the Group’s gross trade receivables
from trading of motor vehicles amounted to HK$1,892,000
(2022: HK$3,490,000), of which impairment loss amounted to
HK$1,672,000 (2022: HK$1,296,000) were recognised.

Movements of impairment losses on trade receivables are as
follows:

23. B EZRIE (&

FElREEERMRIE
RIE-=F+"B=+—HMWEWK
RESEPRPZEKREZHNIEBIZEK
BE RRTMBHNESE  TURE
R EmzEFESs (WZENE
ME#8,279,0008 T (ZE - _F :
10,214,000 7T) fFIR1H c KEBE DA
EUWREEEAMIEMEENEER
SREENERESEMABRE D

BWREERRERGHZMIE
BRREERREBEEZRANE
TREARE—IMERZBAZM -

BN EAEELE S HE AADEE
B2 A IR ) I It AT B SMEE 3K
KB REHFELE 2 BWRES
AR HS 47 o

B SEE SmMIE
MAEBZRRERRNBESHHRE
HHEREST120B M EIHT

RIE_=F+_"_F=+—H > K&EH
MAHEE S EIIEAEZEA1,892,000
Bt (T 43,490,000/ 7T) ' &
SRR ER 1R 41,672,000 7T (T
T T4 11,296,000 7T) ©

2023 2022

—E-= —_E2-
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET AT
At 1 January n—A—H 1,296 -
Impairment loss recognised for the year 4 (K 53 A 350 & 5 18 415 1,331
Exchange realignment b 2 R (39) (35)
At 31 December w+Z—A=+—H 1,672 1,296
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued)

Receivables from trading of motor vehicles (continued)
The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses under lifetime expected credit
loss basis. To measure the expected credit losses, these
receivables are estimated using a provision matrix based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors and an assessment of both
the current and forecast general economic conditions at the
reporting date.

Further details on the Group’s credit policy and credit risk
arising from trade receivables are set out in note 40.

The following is an aged analysis of the trade receivables
arising from trading of motor vehicles based on invoice dates
and net off loss allowance:

23.

FEWE % ™RIE (&
BWSEEBMRIE (&
AERBABED ZREHBEREES
BREERAHREEERIIRER -
STERIGEERE ZERKRERR
ERNAEEBEEEBRERNEE
EEETHE TRREBESAHEBA
NEBRRIEREERMEAERELE
ARBISHE R -

ERAAEBREEBRRNENRE ZHIE
FTEXEERBZ E— P BN
55400

REAEBRZRKEZRIRRER
A RGREEE S ZREDFWT

2023 2022

—EZ= —E-
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
0 to 30 days 0&30H - 1,412
91 to 180 days 91%180H - 124
Over 365 days 365H U k& 220 658
220 2,194

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the end of the
reporting period is the carrying amount of trade receivables.
Other than the amounts receivable from margin clients, the
Group does not hold any collateral as security in respect of its
trade receivables.

—EBECZFER

RBREMR EAEERRARKES
MIAZREE RERFRIETEPARIEA
Sy REBUEMEBWRE ZHIERA
EEIIR IR G (R HEHR o
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23. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 23. BIWEZHIE (&
The carrying amount of the Group’s trade receivables are AEBERKRBZNEBZRAEBEZUT
denominated in the following currencies: E5E -
2023 2022
—E-= s
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#ET FAEIT
Hong Kong dollars BT 120 315
RMB AR 220 2,194
340 2,509
24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 24. BAFEABEZEMEE

PROFIT OR LOSS

2023 2022
—EB-=H B
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FET
Fair value: NFEE

Equity securities listed in Hong Kong IR &#H 2B AE 819 759
Unlisted equity investment (Note (a)) JEEMRERE (@) 113 3,967
Unlisted fund investment ELrmEEKRE 15,889 -
16,821 4,726

Analysed for reporting as: BERATUWT -
Non-current assets EREEE 113 3,967
Current assets MENEE 16,708 759
16,821 4,726
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24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

24. BATFEAABRRZEHMEE (7

PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

2023 2022
—g-= ==
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT THET
Movements during the year: FRES .

At 1 January nw—A—H 4,726 12,302
Acquisition during the year (Note (a))  FRULEE (HizE()) 15,949 -
Eliminated on disposal (Note (b)) PSR (b)) (113) -

Gain/(loss) on change in fair value NEEZBWE (BEB)
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong —R&#E iz B 60 (689)
— Unlisted equity investment —JELmRERE (3,650) (6,217)
- Unlisted fund investment —ELTEERE 31 -
Exchange realignment bE 2 SR (182) (670)
At 31 December “+ZA=+—H 16,821 4,726

Notes:

(@) During the current year, the Group subscribed approximately 14,528,000
units of an unlisted PRC investment fund for a total consideration of
RMB14,528,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$15,949,000) at a price
of RMB1 per unit. The investment fund, which was principally engaged
in investment in bank deposits, bond repurchases, central bank bills,
interbank certificates of deposits and bonds, is managed by the PRC
fund manager, being an entity related to a bank in the PRC. The Group’s
investment in unlisted investments fund was recognised as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss in the consolidated financial statements.
The fair value of the investment fund held by the Group at 31 December
2023 amounted to RMB14,528,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$15,889,000) (2022: Nil), which was estimated based on the underlying
value of net assets of the investment funds as at that date. The fair value
gain on the unlisted investment funds amounted to HK$31,000 (2022: Nil)
was recognised in profit or loss in respect of the current year and was
included in other income and gains/(losses), net (note 7).

Subsequent to 31 December 2023, the Group redeemed its interest in
investment fund for the consideration which approximates the Group’s
carrying amount of the investment fund as at that date.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

ME

(@ NEEE FAEERSHESEMARE
1T ER R E AR 1514,528,0007T
(FBE R 4915,949,000% 7T) BE—E T
HIEEHHREE$414,528,00000 E £ &8
fleZEEESFENSRTER  BEHE
B P RIRTEH IRITRAEEERESMN
BE ATEESKEE (B—RETE—R
IRITEMNER) B AEARELHR
EESNERERGREVMBRRPEIDR LR
NFEFABTHNEREE - AEEARZ
T-HE+B=t+—-BRFENREES
BAUMATESARYE14,528,0007T (FBE
$#915,889,0008 ) (ZTZ24F | &) >
DIREREESFEENZONERE
Bt o FLTREESHNATERES
31,0008 (T2 Z2F &) RAFEN
BEHEESR Wt AR AR W, (6518)
JREE (MI5ET7) ©

RZBZ=ZF+"A=+—HZ%® &&
HEOAERKREESTHED  RVENSD
FEERZANREESRESEH
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

24. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS (continued)

Notes: (continued)

(o)

208

During the prior year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into a limited partnership agreement with UEBEEfE BB IR D
(transliterated as Chengdu Lan Bao Kun Business Management Centre)
(the “General Partner”) for 50% ownership investment in a limited
partnership, FEBE: R EMEE BN (transliterated as Chengdu Lan
Bao Zhen Business Management Centre) (the “Limited Partnership”). The
Group acted as a limited partner in the Limited Partnership with injected
capital of RMB30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately HK$33,324,000).
In accordance with the limited partnership agreement, all decisions
related to the relevant activities of the Limited Partnership are made by
the General Partner, which is independent from the Group, and the term
of the Limited Partnership is five years from the issuance date of the
business licence. The General Partner has the right to extend the term of
the Limited Partnership. Pursuant to the terms of the limited partnership
agreement, upon termination of the Limited Partnership, any surplus
assets of the Limited Partnership, after payment of termination expenses,
wages, social insurance expenses, statutory compensation, tax liabilities
and outstanding debts, shall be divided among the partners in proportion
to their respective paid capital contributions.

The principal asset of the Limited Partnership is a 90% equity owned PRC
subsidiary, &L 17 EIB BRI BR/AE (transliterated as Chengdu
Jia Bao Yao Yin Medicine Technology Company Limited) (“Chengdu Jia
Bao Yao Yin"), which is principally engaged in investing and participation
in new medicine development projects in the PRC. In September 2019,
Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin entered into a joint development agreement with
a business partner to co-operate in the joint development of three new
medicines. In October 2019, Chengdu Jia Bao Yao Yin entered into an
agreement to acquire the patent of a medicine from the business partner.

On 17 November 2023, the Group entered into an agreement with the
Limited Partner, pursuant to which the Group disposed of its 25% equity
interest in the Limited Partnership to the Limited Partner during the
current year for a cash consideration of RMB15,000,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$16,499,000), which was received by the Group during
the year. The disposal gave rise to a gain of HK$16,386,000 (2022:
Nil), being the excess of the consideration for disposal of approximately
HK$16,499,000 over the carrying amount of the equity interest disposed
amounted to approximately HK$113,000, was recognised in the profit or
loss in respect of the current year and was included in the other income
and gains/(losses), net (note 7).

The fair value of the Group’s 25% (2022: 50%) interest in the Limited
Partnership as at 31 December 2023 was estimated to be HK$113,000
(2022: HK$3,967,000), which was measured based on discounted cash
flows from the patent of a medicine held by and certain new medicine
development projects undertaken by the subsidiary of the Limited
Partnership using the discount rate of 22.67% (2022: 20.47%) per annum.
Loss on fair value change of the Group’s interest in the Limited Partnership
amounted to HK$3,650,000 (2022: HK$6,217,000) was recognised in
profit or loss in respect of the current year and was included in other
income and gains/(losses), net (note 7).

Details regarding the fair value measurement are set out in note 40.

BRATFEAABHRZEMEE (@)

M5E

(o)

(#)

HEZZ—AF+ZA=+—HI#@B%F
FE CAEBHAMBERBEESEFRDN
(Tg@EaB A J47EBE$%T§%§ DU
EEREBPEERBERESLESESRD
(“EBE@%i%J)ZSO%%E%OZX%
AEREBLENEREBA FAELS
AER#30,000,0007t (18 E 72 4933,324,000
BT cREBEEREBHE BAREGEBDR
EEREH AN AREHHBINA
EENEESBAEL EBREaBRE
HERASEHNRBRELECAEAF S8
EBRANEREREREBLEZFEH R
$FEIZEA%§T§%%21\;%$JXJEAﬁI?EA%ﬁ¥
BIEB REARIERS - ITE HERE
Faﬁsi AEBE REBERSRAERES
B ERGBLEZAMNRBKREEARS
BARBMEEEHEHEZ LA DG

EREBLENTIEZEERHAIONE
ZHENBARMSERERBENTE

/‘ﬂ (TREMEREER))  HETBRER
ERBUETENEFRSEEE - R _S—A
Ehﬂ R ERERR-—REBSEY
AT B ARMERE  USFHRAME=
BHMEN N _B—NE+A > RBERE
REAEBAEBHITLBENRBEY S
F o

RIEZ=F+—B++tA - A£EHES
REB AT HE B AEBRAE
EREREBALEEAREREBLEN
25%}&% ' IBEREA ARBE15,000,000

7T (BE R 4916,499,0008 7T) » &NEEH
ELECEM&HY HE E 4 716,386,000
BR(CEBEZZF . 8E) BMHERED
16,499,00078 T8 HFT HH E R EREELN
113,000 M E% > ENAEENER
0o mst AEMURA R (B518) 358
(MF5E7) °

RIZZ=F+ZH=+—8 > ~&E£ER
EREGBLEMNDR (ZTTTE 1 50%)
w2z AFEMLTA113,00087T (ZF
T T4 3,967,000 7T) c HERERS
%m%zﬁﬁﬁ’ NBEIR BN EY R KA

ETHERZBEBENCHIRBSRES

(ﬁﬁiﬁiﬁ%ﬁfﬁzz 67% (ZE__F:
20.47%)) o REE ﬂs%lﬁAﬁKEA%m
=R AFEEHEEES3,650,0008
TT(ZE-"F :6,217,000587T) » RAE
EEDPHER R AEMBAR K (&
18) 228 (MizE7) o

BRRATESEZFBEHRNMIEE40
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25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FE(IRIE R EHMEWIE
RECEIVABLES

2023 2022
2= —E2-—
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Deposits paid for acquisition of BEEESE BENERE
motor vehicles for resale (Note (a)) (Fft5E(a)) 173,945 150,171
Advance payment for acquisition of BE—EYEZBNRIE
a property (Note (b)) (5% (b)) 1,531 1,576
Other deposits and prepayments Hitig s RFEIRIE 603 796
Total deposits and prepayments HE RFENHRIE4EEE 176,079 152,543
Other receivables HhpE U ziIE
Value added tax recoverable AU EIE(ER 442 6,058
Sundry receivables HMEIEEWRIE 3,443 2,030
Total other receivables H W R I8 4858 3,885 8,088
179,964 160,631
Analysed for reporting as: BERDWTOT
Non-current assets EREMEE 1,531 1,576
Current assets REEE 178,433 159,055
179,964 160,631

EESEEMARAR | CE-=E£ER 209
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

25. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 25. FAIRIE-HERHEMEKRTRIE
RECEIVABLES (continued) (#)
Notes: f5E -
(a) Movements of the deposits paid for acquisition of motor vehicles for resale (a) BEEEAEZOARSEFHEINWT :
are set out below:
2023 2022
—EZ= T CF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FAET FETT
Balance at 1 January W—B—HZ &8 150,171 123,536
Deposits paid during the year FREMNEE 212,521 192,436
Deposits refunded during the year FEANEREEE (33,948) (9,965)
Decrease in deposits paid during the year: ER B &R/ :
Transferred out and formed cost of BHWERIEBEREZRA
motor vehicles purchased (152,843) (145,370)
Exchange realignment P& A 2 (1,956) (10,466)
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—HZ#&E& 173,945 150,171
(b) In August 2019, a subsidiary of the Company entered into an agreement (b) RIE—HAFENB  ARE—HEKEB AT

for acquisition of the property in the PRC which is intended to be for
own use purpose. The consideration for the acquisition amounted to
RMB1,400,000 which was fully paid by the Group in the prior year. At the
end of the reporting period, the property was still under development and
the Group will gain control of the property upon its completion.

BTN E—REEE RN ETILR
& o WEAER ARE1,400,0007T EMH
FERR L -—FETHEIM -RBRERAR
MEDTHERR REBRRZYER
TRESHETHRE-
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26. BANK BALANCES AND CASH 26. SRITERRIRE

2023 2022
—E-= -_F==

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FAET

Cash at bank and on hand RITKRFHERES 24,830 38,926
Analysed for reporting as: BERAWUWT -

Bank balances and cash RITHEFRRIRE

— trust accounts T = 5,276 5,940

— general accounts ——fRERP 19,554 32,986

24,830 38,926

As at 31 December 2023, the Group had bank balances
(general accounts) and cash totalled approximately
HK$3,346,000 (2022: bank balances (general accounts)
and cash totalled approximately HK$4,957,000) which are
denominated in RMB. The remittance of these funds out of the
PRC is subject to the exchange control restrictions imposed by
the PRC Government.

The cash at bank and short term bank deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default. These
bank balances and short-term bank deposits carried interest
at interest rates from 0% to 3.72% (2022: 0% to 0.25%) per
annum.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK

R_Z_=F+-_A=+—H K&
EEUARBIEZRITER (—RER
F) RIR%451493,346,0008 7T (ZF
T TFIRTHER (CRERP) RRES
3£#94,957,000787T) ° i Z BRIAE H
o B 1% 51 2 o B AT B T < S BE A
FTIR ©

RTREREPRTERENREER
4 BETEBE R R iR 2 R1T o S IRTT
SRR R RRIR T E A BIR0% E3.72%

(CEZ"F 1 0%E0.25%) FFI=5t
Bo
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

27. TRADE PAYABLES 27. BfIESZMIE
2023 2022
2= =B
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Payables arising from SR XTI EERMARIE
securities brokerage business:
Margin clients FREBEER 87 85
Cash clients BEER 5,364 5,891
HKSCC (net) 5REE (3E) = 100
Payables arising from trading of FREABEES ZENRIE
motor vehicles - 75
Other trade payables HMENE S8 6 6
5,457 6,157
Payables to margin clients are repayable on demand. The ENRESEENBAREKREERE IR
settlement terms of amounts payable arising from cash clients SEFPMEXERNREENETRS
are one or two trade days after the trade execution date. BfZ—MERZ BRI
Aged analysis of payables arising from securities brokerage ERNBSREER 2 HE AR EE
business is not presented as management of the Company B0 AR AT L AR A BEIMEE » B
considers that the aged analysis does not give additional value FXEEVWNZEBMELEZEBARIBLZ
in view of the nature of this business. ERER D AT ©
The following is an aged analysis of payables arising from FREABEZZEMREREMEN
trading of motor vehicles and other trade payables based on BSREREZZHAZRER M
invoice dates: T
2023 2022
2= B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FAEIT
91 to 180 days 91&2180H - 75
Over 365 days 365H U k& 6 6
6 81
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OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

28. HthFEfTRIARKR s RIEA

2023 2022
—E-=HF BT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Sundry payables and accruals MBI RIEREST I 2,593 1,589
CONTRACT LIABILITIES 29. AHEafRE
2023 2022
—EF-= —E-
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAET
Advance payments from customers BERBANFIE 73,393 46,920

Contract liabilities of the Group, which are expected to be
settled within the Group’s normal operating cycle, are classified
as current.

The Group recognises revenue when related performance
obligation is satisfied. Contract liabilities at 31 December 2023
represents advance from customers in relation to trading of
motor vehicles.

The Group receives payment from customers based on the
billing schedules as stated in contracts. Payments are usually

AEEERETAEEEEEEERN
BENGNEEIEBERRE -

AEE ST R A B ER S
me R B =F+"A=+—HKE
WEEREMAEEZRAE R WA
R o

FEBRBEGOHBHRERBRD
ERBERIA -RRBREERBITAE

received in advance of the performance under the contracts for B84 2 BIE o
trading of motor vehicles.
2023 2022
2= =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHTT BT
Revenue recognised for the year R|EHUTAENEE
that was included in the contract EHRNFABRERNE
liabilities balances at the beginning of
the reporting periods 30,592 19,237

The advance payments are attributable to the contracts with
original expected duration of one year or less, as permitted
under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to unsatisfied
performance is not disclosed.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

30. PROVISIONS 30. B
2023 2022
—E-= =B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Provision for loss on onerous BEGHNEERE (5D
contracts (Note) 11,390 11,725
Movements of the provisions during the year are as follows: FRBEZEHUWT .
2023 2022
—EZ= —E-—
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FEBT
Balance at 1 January —B—HZH&R 11,725 12,700
Exchange realignment EREE% (335) (975)
Balance at 31 December R+ZB=+—HZ4#&e 11,390 11,725

Note:

During the prior year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered into purchase
agreements with a third party (the “Supplier”), under which the Group has agreed
to purchase motor vehicles for resale purpose from the Supplier and in this
connection trade deposits amounted to RMB7,064,000 were paid by the Group
to the Supplier. Completion of the purchase of motor vehicles from the Supplier
has not taken place up to 31 December 2019 and management of the Company,
having considered the terms of the relevant agreements and the underlying
business circumstances of the Group, considers it appropriate to make provisions
for onerous contracts amounted to RMB10,414,000 relating to the agreements
with the Supplier, which were recognised in the profit or loss in respect of the
prior year ended 31 December 2019.

The directors considers that the obligations and liabilities of the Group under
the agreement with the Supplier remained outstanding up to 31 December 2023
and the date of approval of these consolidated financial statements. Having
consulted with the legal advisor, the directors are of the opinion that the costs
and compensation, if any, to be payable by the Group to discharge all of its
obligations and liabilities under the agreement, are estimated to be not more
than the provisions amounted to RMB10,414,000 (equivalent to approximately
HK$11,390,000) at 31 December 2023, accordingly, no additional provisions
for the onerous contracts are required to be made in the consolidated financial
statements.
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31. OTHER BORROWINGS

1. HfthfgH

2023 2022
2= =B
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FHET
Secured other borrowings (Note) BiRREMmER (D) 30,000 25,000
Analysed for reporting purpose: ABEFENDMUWT !
Current liabilities mENEE 30,000 25,000
Note: MI5E -
The maturity of the other borrowings are as follows: HMEMIAEHWOT ©
2023 2022
—g=-= —EoCF
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFHET FHET
On demand or within one year BERY—FNRN 30,000 25,000

The other borrowings at 31 December 2023 and 2022 are secured by the charge
over the Group’s leasehold land and buildings with the carrying amount of
HK$19,492,000 (2022: HK$21,105,000) as at that date (Note 16) and corporate
guarantees executed by the Company. These other borrowings are denominated
in HK$, carried interest ranged from 11.00% to 12.00% per annum (2022: (1) one
other borrowings at 9.125% and (2) one other borrowings at 4.125% plus Hong
Kong Prime Lending Rate), and are wholly repayable in October 2024.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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32. LEASE LIABILITIES 32. fHE&AR
2023 2022
—E-=HF B
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FAEIT
Present value of lease ENEEaEZIRE
liabilities payables:
Within one year —FRN 580 535
After one year and within two years —FEREMEN 448 1,088
1,028 1,623
Less: Amount due for settlement B AR REaEE TR 12EA
within 12 months shown A EIHBEIERIE
under current liabilities (580) (535)
Amount due for settlement after FIRIERBIBEE TMNM2ES%Z
12 months shown under ZIHREERIE
non-current liabilities 448 1,088

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities is 4.75% (2022: 4.75%) per annum and lease

liabilities are denominated in RMB.

33. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES

Movements of the deferred tax liabilities, which are attributable

HEABEERNNEELOEESER
FEAEGELT75% (ZEZ_F

4.75%) BHEEBEUAREFE-

33. RIEMIEE[T

MERBEFEBEZELEREERZ

to accelerated tax depreciation, are as follows: BEINT
2023 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT TFAET
Balance at 1 January R—B—HZ%&& 2,381 2,563
Credited to profit or loss (Note 13) s AIE@ (FI5E13) (182) (182)
Balance at 31 December R+B=+—HZ&& 2,199 2,381
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DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES (continued) 33. BREREER (&
Deferred tax asset has not been recognised in the consolidated EERNRAETEE BB R AR » Sk
financial statements in respect of unused tax losses available e BEmeRM e BLIRHB R R
for offset against future profits due to the uncertainty of future ZRBAMBEEERDEEREEE
profit streams. As at 31 December 2023, the unrecognised RIZZ=F+"A=+—H8 &x%H
tax losses of the Group amounted to approximately ZAMERIRIEREL447,131,0008 7T
HK$447,131,000 (2022: approximately HK$444,451,000). (ZEZTH 1 #9444,451,000%87T) °©
These tax losses have no expiry date except that approximately F%49176,811,0008 TR R Z S M4
HK$176,811,000 will expire from 2024 to 2028 (2022: EIZT)\FHEER (T2
approximately HK$176,964,000 will expire from 2023 to 2027). 49176,964,0008 TR -2 -_=FF
TEZEFHRBER I ZERIERE
BilmEEmER-
No deferred tax liabilities have been recognised in respect HRAEBEEREFHZENBELAB 2
of the unremitted earnings of PRC subsidiaries because the BREHSK BEMEBAFFTENRAAR
Group is in a position to control the dividend policies of these AR B O] UL ENBE AR 2k
subsidiaries and it is probable that such differences will not be EERMEDELEREBEERE KT
reversed in the foreseeable future. As at 31 December 2023 __EEZ_—\, ““H+ZHA=+—8>
and 2022, the unrecognised temporary differences in respect ERAAEREGETEINB AT ZKE
of the unremitted earnings of the PRC subsidiaries attributable HBEMNZABRREREBRIINOAR
to the Group are approximately of RMB55,583,000 and #%55,583,0007t /2 A 153,831,000
RMB53,831,000 respectively. JTe
SHARE CAPITAL AND PREMIUM 34. lRAFRiEE
Number of Share Share
shares capital premium Total
RHYE iy iR i o
'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR THET TET TET
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each SREBE.0IBTZLER
Issued and fully paid BEITREE
At 1 January 2022, 31 December 2022, R_E_"F—-F—Q>
1 January 2023 and 31 December 2023 “RICE+ZR=+—A
“ZRT=F-F-Hk
“ZT-#+-B=+—-H 7,748,958 77,489 1,673,299 1,750,788
The authorised ordinary shares of the Company comprise KRB AT 38 A% 8 3510,000,000,000
10,000,000,000 shares (2022: 10,000,000,000 shares) with a f% (& ——4 :10,000,000,0008%) &

par value of HK$0.01 per share (2022: HK$0.01 per share).
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35. RESERVE

(i)

(i)

(iii)

Special reserve

The special reserve of the Group represents the difference
between the nominal amount of the shares issued by the
Company and the aggregate of the nominal amount of the
issued share capital and share premium of Sinofortune
Financial Holdings (BVI) Limited acquired pursuant to the
corporate reorganisation undertaken in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on GEM on 11 January
2002.

Statutory reserve

PRC companies are required to appropriate 10% of
statutory net profits to statutory reserve, upon distribution
of their post-tax profits in accordance with the PRC
laws and regulations. A company may discontinue the
contribution when aggregate sum of the statutory surplus
reserve is more than 50% of its registered capital. The
statutory surplus reserves shall only be used to make
up losses of the companies, to expand the companies’
operation, or to increase the capital of the companies.

Translation reserve

Exchange translation reserve comprises foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with
in accordance with the accounting policies set out in note
3.8.

35. f#f#
(i)

(i)

(iii)

LERINEL
FEBZENREELIEEATIR
EREBEARAARMH_-EZ
—E—B+—HBHEGEM LA
ETCESHEMETRMOZE
B B P W BESinofortune Financial
Holdings (BVI) Limited 2 217 i3 2
HEMRMD G EBAEREE Z Z5E

ERE
RIFEREEZRRER FEAF
R IkEBRRE & %'JB%’/EF‘]&
EREEEBETEMAI0% - E
NEEEBBFREBERBNBER
%IHH%T?JKE%O%E%”AT_JF
B AERKRHEERTRBER
BARNBE -BERAATNEE
WIBMABELA

EREAE
ERREELERABINEFYHR
RMBEEENRMAINEER &
BT R 5E3.8F 71 & 5T BUR
FRIE o
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36. SIGNIFICANT RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 36.
In addition to the transactions and balances disclosed
elsewhere in these consolidated financial statements, the

NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #E"Z-_=F+"A=+—HI-FE

EXEMEALRS
BRILFREMBRREAMSNREZ
R RAEFHI > ZEBRERFTILUT

Group had the following related party transactions during the BREEALRS
year:
2023 2022
SS— =BT
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHAT TAET
Rental payment to a director of BARNE]—RESE
the Company (Note) A (fFE) 378 1,008
2023 2022
== =B
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHT FAET
Key management compensation FEBEEBEASZFHMN
Salaries and other short-term FreREMSIHAREERH
employee benefits 2,853 2,775
Post-employment benefits BER 2 F 36 36
2,889 2,811
Note: P -

Pursuant to the rental agreement entered into between a subsidiary of the
Company and a director of the Company, Mr. Wang Jiawei (“Mr. Wang”), on 1
November 2022, Mr. Wang leased an office premise to the subsidiary at monthly
rental of RMB28,000 for 3 years from the date of rental agreement.
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MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS 37. XEBERS
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group entered REEZZE“F+-A=+—HIt
into a new lease agreement for the use of leased properties FE 2 AERMEREEYET L —1H
for three years, under which on the lease commencement, the HREERE ABH=F B ¥
Group recognised right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, both ERBR AEBERIEAREE KA
of which amounted to HK$1,767,000. B1E97%1,767,0008 7T ©
RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 38. MEFEHFIELEAB/ZHIR
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities from TREAMRBEAEEMEBEGEFIESL
financing activities, including both cash and non-cash changes. 8ECE2y BREASKIFRSEHo
Liabilities arising from financing activities are liabilities for which HE S EBMESEBRERAERLGS
cash flow were, or future cash flows will be, classified in the RERERANDBAMEFTITMESE
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows REREZREAERRRBERE
from financing activities. zB8fEe
Lease Other
liabilities borrowings Total
HEAR Htfamm EEbE
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T#ET T#ET
At 1 January 2023 A TE_=F—HA—H 1,623 25,000 26,623
Change in financing cash flows: MERESREEE .
Proceeds from other borrowings REHMERZFEFTIE - 5,000 5,000
Repayment of lease liabilities HEABZER (615) - (615)
Interest paid BAFE - (2,643) (2,643)
Total changes in financing cash flows REBRESHREEHEEE (615) 2,357 1,742
Other changes: H#Es
Currency translation difference EBHhEESR (43) = (43)
Interest expenses B 63 2,643 2,706
Total other changes Hith & 8@ 20 2,643 2,663
At 31 December 2023 N ZE=F
+-HB=+—H 1,028 30,000 31,028
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38. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 38. MBS EBFREEEGBEZHIR &)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES (continued)

Lease Other
liabilities borrowings Total
HEaRE HfEmR 4a%E
HK$’ 000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAETT FAETT AT
At 1 January 2022 N _E__F—H—H 1,282 10,000 11,282
Change in financing cash flows: MERERESEH !
Proceeds from other borrowings  Z2& B EMERZ FASRIE - 17,000 17,000
Repayment of borrowings BRZER - (2,000) (2,000)
Repayment of lease liabilities HEaBZER (1,367) - (1,367)
Interest paid BUHE - (1,182) (1,182)
Total changes in financing cash MEREREEBNEL
flows (1,367) 13,818 12,451
Other changes: Hahgg .
Addition to lease liabilities HESEEM 1,767 - 1,767
Termination of lease HE&IE (45) - (45)
Currency translation difference ErinEEL (62) - (62)
Interest expenses FEMZ 48 1,182 1,230
Total other changes Hh & 5h 48 %8 1,708 1,182 2,890
At 31 December 2022 == —
+-A=+—H 1,623 25,000 26,623
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 39. EMT AR
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial RBESHFR FSETHEEREHREE
assets and financial liabilities as at the end of the reporting MERmEWT :
period are as follows:
2023 2022
-Gl 3 =
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FAET
Financial assets EREE
At amortised cost F7g: 370078
Statutory deposits and other assets EERERAEAMEE 405 405
Trade receivables FEUN & 5 718 340 2,509
Financial assets included in FTATENRIE e R EAM
prepayments, deposits and BRI &RIE E
other receivables 3,890 8,559
Bank balances and cash IRITHEFRRIRE
— trust accounts —(S5LER P 5,276 5,940
- general accounts ——fRER P 19,554 32,986
29,465 50,399
At fair value LA FE
Financial assets at fair value BATEFAEGZSHEE
through profit or loss 16,821 4,726
2023 2022
2= =B
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Financial liabilities E=MaR
At amortised cost 118 54 k2K
Trade payables AN 5,457 6,157
Other payables and accruals HARE(S I8 &k Est A 2,593 1,589
Provisions g 11,390 11,725
Other borrowings HMER 30,000 25,000
Lease liabilities HEaRE 1,028 1,623
50,468 46,094

S TO THE CoNSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk (including currency risk, price risk, fair value interest
rate risk, and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management program
focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks
to minimise potential adverse effects on the Group’s financial
performance.

Financial risk factors
(a) Market risk

()

(i)

Foreign exchange risk

Transactional currency exposures arise from the
sales or purchase by operating units in currency
other than the unit’s functional currency. The
Group’s exposure to foreign currency risk is minimal
as almost all of the Group’s revenue and costs
of the operating units are denominated in HK$ or
RMB, the respective functional currency of the
Group entities, with most of the Group’s monetary
assets, liabilities are principally denominated in the
respective functional currencies of HK$ or RMB.
The Group manages the foreign exchange exposure
arising from its normal course of business activities
and investments in foreign operations by funding its
local operations and investments through cash flows
generated from business transactions locally. The
Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy. However, the management monitors
foreign exchange exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure
should the need arise.

Price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising
from trading of listed equity securities which are
listed on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong and the
market price change of unlisted equity investment
classified as financial assets at FVTPL. To manage
its price risk arising from these investments, the
Group diversifies its portfolio. The sensitivity analysis
has been determined based in the exposure to
related price risk of these investments.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)
(a) Market risk (continued)

(1)

(i)

224

Price risk (continued)

At the end of the reporting period, if the quoted
market prices of the trading securities had been 5%
higher or lower while all other variables were held
constant, the Group’s net loss for the year would
decrease or increase by approximately HK$41,000
(2022: approximately HK$32,000) as a result of
changes in fair value of listed equity securities held
for trading.

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

During the years ended 31 December 2023 and
2022, the Group is exposed to cash flow interest
rate risk due to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on bank deposits and other
borrowings which carry prevailing market interest
rates. The directors consider that the Group’s
income and operating cash flows are substantially
independent of changes in market interest rates.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, the Group’s
cash flow interest rate risk relates primarily to
its variable bank deposits and other borrowings.
The Group currently does not use any derivative
contracts to hedge its exposure to interest rate
risk. However, management will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, if interest rates
on the other borrowings had been decreased/
increased by 50 basis points with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax losses for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$150,000
and approximately HK$125,000 respectively.

40. MBEAMEEBRRBE (&

MBRBEER (&
(a) WHHEE ()

(1)

(i)

1B15 R (48)
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (continued)
(i) Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (continued)

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, if interest
rates on the bank deposits had been decreased/
increased by 50 basis points with all other variables
held constant, the Group’s post-tax losses for the
years ended 31 December 2023 and 2022 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$98,000 and
approximately HK$165,000 respectively.

Credit risk

Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default
on its contractual obligations resulting in a financial loss
to the Group.

The Group reviews the recoverability of its financial assets
periodically to ensure that potential credit risk of the
counterparty is managed at an early stage and sufficient
provision is made for possible defaults. In addition,
receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing basis
and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.

The credit risk of the Group’s financial assets relate
mainly to bank balances, trade and other receivables. It
arises from default of the counterparty, with a maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

ERESEERARAR | ZE=ZFFK
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

226

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit
evaluations are performed on all customers requiring
credit over a certain amount. These evaluations focus on
the customer’s past history of making payments when
due and current ability to pay, and take into account
information specific to the customer as well as pertaining
to the economic environment in which the customer
operates. Debtors with balances that are more than 1
month past due are requested to settle all outstanding
balances before any further credit is granted. Normally,
the Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has
certain concentrations of credit risk as approximately
65% (2022: approximately 37%) and approximately
94% (2022: approximately 96%) of the Group’s trade
receivables were due from the Group’s largest trade
debtor and the five largest trade debtors respectively
within the brokerage and securities margin financing
services segment and trading of motor vehicles, provision
of agency services and accessories sourcing segment.
However, the directors of the Company consider the
credit risk is limited since the Group has held certain
listed equity securities of clients as collateral over these
receivables from the brokerage and securities margin
financing services segment. For the trading of motor
vehicles, provision of agency services and accessories
sourcing segment, the customer’s past history of making
payments are good. Further quantitative data in respect
of the Group’s exposure to credit risk arising from trade
receivables are disclosed in note 23 to the consolidated
financial statements.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade
receivables at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, which
is calculated using a provision matrix approach. As the
Group’s historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the loss allowance based on past due status
is not further distinguished between the Group’s different
customer bases.
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For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. MR EIEHERKE (&

POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued) RBEAKREE (&)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EERE (&)

Trade receivables (continued)

The following table provides information about the
Group’s exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
arising from trading of motor vehicles as at 31 December
2023 and 2022:

BN E ZHE (&)
TR

T =EFERZIF

T+ ZRA=+—HEXEEA
BREAEEZ ZBWNE ZMIA

EERBRZEK

31 December

2023
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance

FEHEsEE  +ZB=+—-H
(F9E) FRE4AE BHRE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Current (not past due) B (kA - - =
1 to 30 days past due HE1E30H - - -
31 to 60 days past due HH31EG0H - - -
More than 180 days past due A HEE180H 88.3% 1,892 1,672
1,892 1,672

31 December

2022
Expected loss Gross carrying Loss
rate (%) amount allowance

.-

BHEERX +-A=+—H
(BAt) REEE BEEE
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET TAET
Current (not past due) B8 CGRiaE) 0.5% 1,416 2
1 to 30 days past due AEES0H - - -
31 to 60 days past due AEAB1ZE60H - - -
More than 180 days past due AEAEE180H 62.3% 2,074 1,294
3,490 1,296
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For the year ended 31 December 20238 #HEZZT_=F+_F=+—HIEFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

(c)

Credit risk (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past one to two years. These rates are adjusted
to reflect differences between economic conditions
during the period over which the historic data has been
collected, current conditions and the Group’s view of
economic conditions over the expected lives of the
receivables.

Other receivables and deposits

The Group applies the simplified approach, using the 12
months expected credit losses for other receivables and
deposits paid. The Group has assessed that the expected
credit loss for other receivables and deposits paid were
immaterial, accordingly no loss allowance for other
receivables and deposits paid were recognised in respect
of the both years presented.

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests
with the board of directors. The Group manages liquidity
risk by maintaining adequate reserves and reserve
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring forecast
and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles
of financial assets and liabilities.

At 31 December 2023, the Group had other borrowings
with carrying amount of HK$30,000,000 (2022:
HK$25,000,000) (Note 31).

40. MBEAMEEBRRBE (&

MBRBRRERR (&

(b)

(c)

FEERE ()

BN E ZHE (&)
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OB BRI R B
FE R I8 7 T R 77 18 HA BY 4S5 1%
frz&E > MMM -

B BN F BRI E
FEEGEMBRRERE M
TRABEREZLRAB12EATE
HEEREAER ~EEFEH
fth FE W R TR LU B A #2259 TR BA
EEBRITREREHIL > R27]
BY 18 £F 2 a7 4% B 5 EL th & LR
BEUKRBNRERERERE -

BB = m g
EXTASNDEZRREES
FRBREF-FERERTER
WRERERRE  TEERTE
ARBEBEERE UREHE
MEERBEBZIHA EUE
ERBETREE-

R-ZF_=F+_A=+—
H AREBHMERZERE
30,000,0008 T (Z& ==
25,000,00077t) (fi5E31) ©

Sinofortune Financial Holdings Limited | Annual Report 2023



NoTeEs To THE CoNsOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR R M

For the year ended 31 December 2023 #HEZZ-_=—F+_F=+—HILFE

40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. MR EIEHERKE (&
POLICIES (continued)

Financial risk factors (continued) BEABEE (&
(c) Liquidity risk (continueqd) (c) FEEZRE (&)
The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities AEBEREEN IR SHABRR
as at the reporting period, based on the contractual BEEANRMLBRAMZEHABN
undiscounted payments, was as follows: T
On
demand Between 1 Total
or within and 2 undiscounted Carrying
1 year years cash flows amount
BRERR RERRE
DME 1526 RELE IREE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET THET TET TET
2023 ZEZ=F
Trade payables BB 5308 5,457 - 5,457 5,457
Other payables and accruals BN REREHRE 2,593 - 2,593 2,593
Provisions B 11,390 - 11,390 11,390
Other borrowings EiER 32,853 - 32,853 30,000
Lease liabilities HESE 616 457 1,073 1,028
52,909 457 53,366 50,468
2022 . ot
Trade payables EREZRE 6,157 - 6,157 6,157
Other payables and accruals EMERFBRETE 1,589 - 1,589 1,589
Provisions BB 11,725 - 11,725 11,725
Other borrowings EMER 27,375 - 27,375 25,000
Lease liabilities HESE 629 1,104 1,733 1,623
47,475 1,104 48,579 46,094
Capital management BELXER
Certain of the Group’s subsidiaries are regulated by the rEBETHBEABIRBSRFES
Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”) and are required to sEREZET (IBEZ))RE WER
comply with certain minimum capital requirements according BEEGRAIETETREEARSES
to the rules of the SFC. In addition, the Group’s objectives HE L REEEEEE2HES
when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability RIEREBRBFELE 2 UAKRE
to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns REEBBEABEMERITE AL KA
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to T ERREESEBLRLEEK
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of Z o
capital.
In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group BEFTHABREAGEE AEEH 2
may adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, BEERBRKNKRE 225 ARERE
return capital to shareholders or issue new shares. BEHBITHRM o
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T =F+_RA=t+—HLEEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. MHEKEREBERBR (&
POLICIES (continued)
Capital management (continued) BEXEE (&
The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of the AEERBEHEHCHABRA L EER
debt-to-adjusted capital ratio. This ratio is calculated as net HRRAR o IR ZEFR SRR CHER
debt divided by adjusted capital. Net debt is calculated as AetE - BF FHZEER (BFERD
total debt (including current and non-current liabilities but RIERBEREFNBERSM BRI
excluding current or deferred income tax liabilities as shown RPN BNEABUREFASIRAE) B
in the consolidated statement of financial position) less bank RITHEBERIRE (BERITELERAR
balances and cash (including bank trust accounts and pledged BIEFER) sTHEH - KBEBRABIERN
deposits). Adjusted capital comprises all components of equity BRI (BEFEMBIRRIREK
(including share capital and premium, reserves, accumulated SN2 AR RE B Rt RIE
losses and non-controlling interests as shown in the R REMET-
consolidated statement of financial position) and other debt.
During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Group’s AEEBRBEE_ZE-_="F+"A4
strategy was to maintain the debt-to-adjusted capital ratio —t—HIFEEEEFT T
within 50%, which was unchanged from 2022. The debt-to- E’J%H% BERASEHHKRERAL
adjusted capital ratios as at 31 December 2023 and 2022 were RUBFEIRFESONAN - N _E_=F R _ZF
as follows: I+ ZA=+t—BHZzEHHKH
BERALEEIT
2023 2022
—Eg-= —E-C
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET TAET
Total debt BFH B 123,861 93,014
Less: Bank balances and cash W IRITRE R RIRE
(including bank trust accounts) (BIEIRTTIEEEER )
(Note 26) (Mi526) (24,830) (38,926)
Net debt B 25 99,031 54,088
Total equity 1 75 AR RE 118,219 137,409
Adjusted capital KBEER 217,250 191,497
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio BEBHERAEERER 45.6% 28.2%
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value estimation
The table below analyses financial instruments carried at fair
value, by valuation method. The different levels have been
defined as follows:

° Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical
assets or liabilities (level 1).

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1
that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly
(that is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) (level 2).

40.

MBRBREEBRRER (&)

ATE2IEH
FREGEREDNUATEI B2
SMIR -EERZEBMT :

e HEEEHERINEERTHZRE
B CRERB) B -

s EBEWBFBIERE (BN NEE
CREER) BEZ2HABE (5
BEFE-—RZBRE (BEZHR) -

e Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on e EEYEBAILIFREBEUEBEZ™
observable market data (that is, unobservable inputs) SEEZGARE (BEEREZ
(level 3). WA (B=MH) -

Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
@Bt F—4 -t B4
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TAT TAT TAT TAT
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=
+=-B=+-H
Financial assets at fair value BAFEFARR
through profit or loss ZEMEE
(Note 24) (FHizk24)
- Securities held for trading —REEERS 819 819 - -
- Unlisted equity investment —FLTRERE 113 - - 113
- Unlisted fund investment —FLTEERE 15,889 - 15,889 -
At 31 December 2022 RWZEZTHE
+ZA=+—H
Financial assets at fair value BATESABE
through profit or loss JEHMEE
(Note 24) (2]
- Securities held for trading ~-FEEERS 759 759 - -
- Unlisted equity investment —FLTRERE 3,967 - - 3,967
- Unlisted fund investment —FLHEERE - - - -

As at 31 December 2023 and 2022, there were no
transfers of fair value measurements between Level 1 and
Level 2 and no transfers into or out of Level 3.
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 40. MR EIEHERKE (&
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued) AFEZME &
Information about Level 3 fair value measurements BFE=RAFEAEZEN

Fair values at 31 December

R+=B=+-BNATE

Significant Relationship of
Valuation unobservable unobservable inputs
2023 2022 techniques inputs Range to fair value
EXTAHRR FUHBRAYE
ZEZZE TETCHE fhER* BAYE #HE AATENMR
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET TET
Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss
RATESI A\ BRZEREE
Unlisted equity investment 113 3,967 Discounted Discount rate 22.67% The higher the discount rate,
cash flows (2022: 20.47%)  the lower the fair value
FLmRERE 113 3,967 HRELRE BhRE 2267% HREHE ATELE
CE-—&:
20.47%)
The fair value measurement of the Group’s interest in the REBREREGBEE R (MK
Limited Partnership (classified as financial assets at FVTPL as ARSI D AR RN FEFABRZ
detailed in note 24) was determined based on discounted cash SHEE) 2RAFEFENHENREBRS
flows from the patent of a medicine held by and new medicine BLEMPBFENEREN KA AEDN
development projects undertaken by the Limited Partnership MERZEEENELRREREET
with a discount rate of 22.67% per annum (2022: with a HEIREASF267% (T2
discount rate of 20.47% per annum). IR AEE20.47%) ©
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40. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Fair value estimation (continued)

Information about Level 3 fair value measurements
(continued)

Movements during the years of the financial assets with Level 3

fair value measurements are as follows:

. MBRAREERRREER (&

[AFEZMEE EF
EHFE=MAFEHAEZEHN (&

RAFS=ZMAFTEFENEREERN
ZEFENESHNT

Financial
assets

at fair value
through profit

or loss

BATESRA

EREZEMEE

HK$’000

FHET

At 1 January 2022 .S 10,854

Fair value loss N EEIE (6,217)

Currency translation difference B E £ (670)
At 31 December 2022 and RIZ2ZZHF+ZA=+—HkK

1 January 2023 = 3,967

Eliminated on disposal 1 R (113)

Fair value loss N EREIE (3,650)

Currency translation difference B E =% (91)

At 31 December 2023 RIEZ=F+"A=+—H 113
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 41. FATRBIKRR
COMPANY
2023 2022
—E-= —ETTHF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FHET FET
Non-current assets ERHEE
Property, plant and equipment MR RRE 2 3
Investments in subsidiaries RBRBZRE 94,221 82,637
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUS B BB A B) FR I8 33,207 52,751
127,430 135,391
Current assets MENEE
Prepayments, deposits and FENRIE - RER
other receivables H g W =kE 264 424
Bank balances and cash IRITAERRRIRE 1,009 1,330
1,273 1,754
Current liabilities mENEE
Other payables and accruals HAEI I8 &k EstTIE 1,737 662
Amounts due to subsidiaries FESH B AT IE 17,393 16,805
19,130 17,467
Net current liabilities EEEEE (17,857) (15,713)
Net assets HEEEE 109,573 119,678
Capital and reserves Bz R E
Share capital A& A 77,489 77,489
Reserves (Note) R (5D 32,084 42189
Total equity g e 109,573 119,678

ERBZHMBRREN T _MNE=
BT+ HEEFTHERRETIE

The Company’s statement of financial position was approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 March

2024 and are signed on its behalf by: WHMTEELREE
Wang Jiawei Lai Yuk Mui

FER 2ES

Director Director

BE EE
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41. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE 4. EATRBRAR (&)
COMPANY (continued)
Note:  Reserves of the Company are analysed as follows: MisE : AABHEBOWUWT :
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
fRniEE RitEsE FEE]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Balance at 1 January 2022 A—E— B0 1,673,299 (1,619,475) 53,824
Loss for the year FREIE - (11,635) (11,635)
Balance at 31 December 2022 and RZZEZZF+ZA=+—HK
1 January 2023 I = R = P - 1,673,299 (1,631,110) 42,189
Loss for the year FANEE - (10,105) (10,105)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RIZ2Z=F+"A=+—H
ZhERR 1,673,299 (1,641,215) 32,084
42. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 42. HREHEBREE

On 27 February 2024, the Company entered into a
memorandum of understanding with certain third parties for the
proposed disposal of certain group entities for an aggregate
consideration of approximately HK$15,500,000. The proposed
group entities to be disposed are principally engaged in the
businesses of securities and futures brokerage and margin
financing services, corporate finance services and asset
management. The memorandum of understanding had been
terminated up to the date of approval of these consolidated
financial statements. Details of the proposed disposal are set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 27 February

2024 and 6 March 2024.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

Bt %5 8 2

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the 1EBEEBTIEKLERIGEHBERR2AEHR
Group for the last five financial years as extracted from the published BEAEMBEEXEUREERGEHRE
audited consolidated financial statements is set out below: 2 RN

Year ended 31 December

HE+-A=+—-HLEE

2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EC-= TEBICE _E_—F _E_BFE “T-NE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
F#ER TET TET TET FATT
Results e
Revenue W 150,039 180,815 24,182 69,069 326,155
Loss before tax BRI A A (15,950) (30,854) (32,284) (41,742) (124,666)
Income tax credit FERE%R 154 182 182 182 182
Loss from discontinued BRIEREE KR
operation - - - - (9,138)
Loss for the year FREE (15,796) (30,672) (32,102) (41,560) (133,622)
Attributable to: e
Owners of the Company EABEEA (15,777) (30,660) (32,090) (41,399) (127,674)
Non-controlling interests R ER (19) 12 12) (161) (5,948)
(15,796) (30,672) (32,102) (41,560) (133,622)
At 31 December
®+=ZB=+—H
2023 2022 2021 2020 2019
—EBC=H ZEBICE “E-—F “ETREF “E-hE
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000 HK$'000 HK$’000
F#ERT FHET FATT FETT FET
Assets, Liabilities, and BE -BBERIEFRER
Non-Controlling Interests
Total assets BEMBE 244,279 232,804 295,567 242,665 312,873
Total liabilities BREE (126,060) (95,395) (116,943) (36,048) (66,897)
Non-controlling interests FEERER (167) (191) (220) (226) (7,428)
118,052 137,218 178,404 206,391 238,548
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